


Seven Consecutive Quarters of Growth
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2006 -2007 Quarterly Income (Loss)
Before Non-Cash Expense
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*Income (ipss) before non-cash expense is derived by adjusting

net income (loss) reported for each respective period to exclude
non-cash charges (credits) including stock-based compensation
expense, depreciation expense and income tax expense fbenefit).
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*All financial information is derived from linancial statements
included in the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on Forms 10KS8 and 10Q8B.

To my fellow
SHAREHOLDERS

| am delighted to report that Digital Ally’s sales rose
372% to a record $19.4 million in 2007. Moreover,
our gross profit margin expanded to an impressive
60.5% of revenue, and we were solidly profitable,
earning approximately $4.5 million, or $0.26 per
difuted share, for the year.

To date, our primary product, the DVM-500 In-Car Video
System Incorporated into a Rearview Mirror, has been
ordered by law enforcement agencies in all 50 states
and 12 foreign countries. Meanwhile, we have just
begun to tap the potential demand for our Digital

Video Fiashlight. Digital Ally’s product line wilf expand
in coming months, as we target additional products

for new market opportunities. Additional video
surveillance products planned for 2008 will target
school bus, mass transit, law enforcement and military
market applications. Overall, we expect another year
of impressive growth during 2008, when revenues

should more than double to approximately $40 million,

Our accomplishments during 2007 would have been
impossible without an outstanding management
organization and a team of hard-working, dedicated
employees, who should take pride in last year's
record results. Digital Ally has also achieved broader
recognition within the investment community, as
evidenced by a 312% improvement in the Company’s
stack price during 2007 and the listing of our
common stock on The Nasdaq Capital Market on
January 2, 2008.

in closing, on behalf of the Board of Directors,
I would like to thank alf of our employees, customers,
vendors and shareholders for their continued support,

Sincerely,

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Stanton E. Ross
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Digital Ally, Inc.
7311 West 130th Street, Saite 170
Overland Park, KS 66213

Stanton E. Ross
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board
March 2008

To our Stockholders:

I am pleased to invite you to attend the annual meeting of stockholders of Digital Ally, Inc. {*Digital”) to be
held on Thursday, May I, 2008 at 10:00 a.m., (CST), at The Sheraton Overland Park Hotel at the Convention
Center located at 6100 College Blvd., Overland Park, Kansas. Details regarding admission to the annual meeting
and the business 1o be conducted are more fully described in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting and
Proxy Statement,

If you are unable to attend the annual meeting in person, you may participate through the Internet. To
participate in the live webcast, log on at www.digitalallyinc.com and select the link for the webcast in the
*Upcoming and Featured Events” section of the site. The webcast will begin at 10:00 a.m. and will remain on
Digital’s website for one year. You cannot record your vote on this website.

We have elected to take advantage of new Securities and Exchange Commission rules that allow issuers to
furnish proxy materials to their stockholders on the Internet. We believe that the new rules will allow us to
provide our stockholders with the information they need, while lowering the costs of delivery and reducing the
environmental impact of our annual meeting.

Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the annual meeting, I hope that you will vote as
soon as possible. Please review the instructions on each of your voting options described in the Proxy Statement
and the Notice you received in the mail.

Thank you for your ongoing support of, and continued interest in, Digital.

Sincerety,

PRy =

Admussion to the annual meeting will be limited to stockholders. Please note that admisston ticket and
picture identification will be required to enter the annual meeting. Each stockholder will be entitled to
bring a guest to the annual meeting. For stockholders of record, an admission ticket is printed on the back
cover of these proxy materials and on the Notice. An individual arriving without an admission ticket will
not be admitted unless it can be verified that the individual was a Digital stockholder as of the record date,
Backpacks, cameras, cell phones with cameras, recording equipment and other electronic recording devices
will not be permitted at the annual meeting. Digital reserves the right to inspect any persons or ilems prior
to their admission to the annual meeting. Failure to follow the meeting rules or permit inspection will be
grounds for exclusion from the meeting.




Digital Ally, Inc.

7311 West 130th Street, Suite 170
Overland Park, KS 66213
(913) 814-7774

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON THURSDAY, MAY 1, 2008

The Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of Digital Ally, Inc., a Nevada corporation, will be held at the
Sheraton Overland Park Hotel at the Convention Center located at 6100 College Blvd., Overland Park, Kansas on
Thursday, May 1, 2008 at 10:00 A:M. (CST), for the following purposes:

1. Toelect five directors;
2. To approve the 2008 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan;

3. To ratify the appointment of McGladrey & Pullen LLP as our independent registered public accounting
firm; and

4. To act upon such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting.
The foregoing items of business are more fully described in the Proxy Statement accompanying this Notice.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on March 1, 2008 will be entitled to vote at the Annual
Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting. Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual
Meeting, please sign, date and retum your proxy to us promptly. Your cooperation in signing and returning the
proxy will help avoid further solicitation expense.

Copies of our Notice of Annual Meeting, Proxy Statement and Annual Report to Stockholders are available
at www.digitalallyinc.com

By order of the Board of Directors

Nk S o

Stanton E. Ross
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer

March 18, 2008
Overland Park, Kansas

YOUR YOTE IS IMPORTANT

TO ASSURE YOUR REPRESENTATION AT THE ANNUAL MEETING, YOU ARE REQUESTED
TO COMPLETE, SIGN AND DATE THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AS PROMPTLY AS
POSSIBLE AND RETURN IT IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE PROVIDED, WHICH REQUIRES
NO POSTAGE IF MAILED IN THE UNITED STATES.
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Digital Ally, Inc.

PROXY STATEMENT
FOR THE 2008 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

INFORMATION CONCERNING SOLICITATION AND YOTING

General

The enclosed proxy is solicited on behalf of the Board of Directors of Digital Ally, Inc., a Nevada
corporation, for use at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held Thursday, May 1, 2008 at 10:00 a.m.,
(CST), or at any adjournment or postponement thereof, for the purposes set forth herein and in the accompanying
Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockhotders. The Annual Meeting will be held at the Sheraton Overland Park
Hotel at the Convention Center located at 6100 College Bivd., Overland Park, Kansas. The telephone number at
that location is (913) 234-2100.

These proxy solicitation materials were first mailed on or about March 18, 2008 to all stockholders entitled
to vote at the meeting,.

Record Date and Voting Securities

Stockholders of record at the close of business on March 1, 2008 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the
meeting. At the record date, 14,527,685 shares of our authorized common stock were issued and outstanding and
held of record by 225 stockholders.

Revocability of Proxies

You may revoke your proxy at any time before it is voted at the Annual Meeting. In order to do this, you
may either:

= sign and return another proxy bearing a later date;

» provide written notice of the revocation to Thomas J. Heckman, our Secretary, prior to the time we take
the vote at the Annual Meeting; or

+ attend the meeting and vote in person.

Yoting

You are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held by you on the record date.

If a broker, bank or other nominee holds your shares, you will receive instructions from it that you must
follow in order to have your shares voted.

If you hold your shares in your own name as a holder of record, you may instruct the proxy holders how to
vote your common stock by signing, dating and mailing the proxy card in the postage paid reply envelope that we
have provided. Of course, you may also choose to come to the Annual Meeting and vote your shares in person.
The proxy holders will vote your shares in accordance with those instructions. If you sign and return a proxy card
without giving specific voting instructions, your shares will be voted as recommended by our Board of Directors.

Quorum Requirement

A quorum, which is a majority of our cutstanding shares of common stock as of the record date, must be
present or represented by proxy in order to hold the Annual Meeting and to conduct business. Your shares will be
counted as being present at the meeting if you attend the meeting in person or if you submit a properly executed
proxy card.



Stockholder List

The stockholder list as of the record date will be available for examination by any stockhelder a1 our
corporate office, 7311 West 130th Street, Suite 170, Overland Park, KS 66213, beginning April 15, 2008, which
is at least ten business days prior to the date of the meeting and the stockholder list wilt be available at the
Annuai Meeting.

Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes

If you return a proxy card that indicates an abstention from voting on all matters, the shares represented will
be counted as present for the purpose of determining a quorum, but they will not be voted on any matter a1 the
Annual Meeting. Consequently, if you abstain from voting on the proposal to elect directors, your abstention will
have no effect on the outcome of the vote with respect to this proposal.

Under the rules that govern brokers who have record ownership of shares that are held in “street name™ for
their clients, who are the beneficial owners of the shares, brokers have discretion to vote these shares on routine
matters but not on non-routine matters. Thus, if you do not otherwise instruct your broker, the broker may turmn in
a proxy card voting your shares “for” routine matters but expressly instructing that the broker is NOT voting on
non-routine matters. A “broker non-vote” occurs when a broker expressly instructs on a proxy card that it is not
voting on a matter, whether routine or non-routine. Broker non-votes are counted for the purpose of determining
the presence or absence of a quorum, but are not counted for determining the number of votes cast for or against
a proposal. Your broker will have discretionary authority to vote your shares on Proposal One, Proposal Two,
Proposal Three and Proposal Four, which are routine matters.

Proxy Solicitation Costs

This solicitation of proxies is made by our Board of Directors, and all related costs will be bome by us.
None of our directors intends to oppose any action for which stockholder approvat is being solicited. In addition,
we may reimburse brokerage firms and other persons representing beneficial owners of shares for their expenses
in forwarding solicitation materials to such beneficial owners. Proxies may also be solicited by certain of our
directors, officers and regular employees, without additional compensation, personally or by telephone or
facsimile.

Our Voling Recommendations
Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote:
»  FOR the election of the five nominees to the Board of Directors;
=  FOR the approval of the 2008 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan; and

» FOR the ratification of the appointment of McGladrey & Pulten LLP as our independent registered
public accounting firm.

Voting Results

The preliminary voting results will be anhounced at the Annual Meeting. The final voting results wilk be
calculated by our Inspector of Elections, and published in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the second
quarter of our fiscal year 2008.

Stockholders Sharing the Same Address

Digital has adopted a procedure called “householding,” which has been approved by the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Under this procedure, Digital is delivering only one copy of the annual report and proxy
statement to multiple stockholders who share the same address, unless Digital has received contrary instructions
from an affected stockholder. This procedure reduces Digital’s printing costs, mailing costs, and fees.
Stockholders who participate in householding will continue to receive separate proxy cards.
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Digital will deliver, promptly upon written or oral request, a separate copy of the annual report and the
proxy statement to any stockholder at a shared address to which a single copy of either of those documents was
delivered. To receive a separate copy of the annual report or proxy statement, you may write or call Digital’s
Investor Relations Department at 7311 West 130th Street, Suite 170, Overland Park, KS 66213, telephone
(913) 814-7774. Any stockholders of record who share the same address and currently receive multiple copies of
Digital’s annual report and proxy statement who wish to receive only one copy of these materials per household
in the future, please contact Digital’s Investor Relations Department at the address or telephone number listed
above to participate in the householding program.

A number of brokerage firms have instituted householding. If you hold your shares in “street name,"” please
contact your bank, broker, or other holder of record to request information about householding.

Deadiine for Receipt of Stockholder Proposals for 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

As a stockholder, you may be entitled to present proposals for action at an upcoming meeting if you comply
with the requirements of the proxy rules established by the Securities and Exchange Commission and our bylaws.
Stockholders wishing to present a proposal at our 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders must submit such
proposal to us by November 20, 2008, if they wish it to be eligible for inclusion in the proxy statement and form
of proxy relating to that meeting. In connection with our 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, we intend to
solicit proxies granting discretionary authority to the proxyholders to vote on any matters submitted by
stockholders on or after November 20, 2008. In addition, under our bylaws, a stockholder wishing 10 make a
proposal at the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders must submit such a proposal to us prior to November 20,
2008. Any such proposals should be in compliance with our bylaws and should be submitted to Digital Ally, Inc.,
7311 West 130th Street, Suite 170, Overland Park, KS 66213, Attention: Secretary.

Other Matters

Other than the proposals listed above, our Board of Directors does not intend to present any other matters 10
be voted on a1 the meeting, Cur Board of Directors is not currently aware of any other matters that will be
presented by others for action at the meeting. However, if other matters are properly presented at the meeting and
you have signed and returned your proxy card, the proxy holders will have discretion to vote your shares on these
matters 1o the extent authorized under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.




PROPOSAL ONE
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Nominees

A Board of five directors is to be elected at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Unless otherwise
instructed, the proxy holders will vote the proxies received by them for the five nominees named below, all of
whom are presently directors of Digital. In the event thal any nominee is unable or declines to serve as a director
at the time of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the proxies will be voted for any nominee who shall be
designated by the present Board of Directors to fill the vacancy. We are not aware of any nominee who will be
unable or will decline to serve as a director. The term of office for each person elected as a director will continue
until the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders or until a successor has been elected and qualified.

The names of the nominees and certain information about them as of the date of this proxy statement are set
forth below:

Director

Name of Neminee Age  Principal Occupations Since
StantonE.Ross ............... 46  Chairman, President and Chief Executive 2005

Officer
Leroy C. Richie {1)(2)(3} ....... 66 Lead outside director, attorney 2605
Daniel F. Hutchins (1) ......... 52 Chairman of Audit Committee, Chief 2007

Financial Officer of Infinity Energy

Resources, Inc., Certified Public

\ Accountant

Edward Juchniewicz (1)2)}¢3) ... 77  Chairman of the Nominating Committee 2005
Elliot M, Kaplan (D(2)(3) ...... 57 Chairman of the Compensation Commitiee, 2005

attorney

(1) Member of Audit Committee
{2y Member of Compensation Commiitlee
(3) Member of Nominating Committee

Stanton E. Ross. Mr. Ross has served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since September 2005.
From March 1992 (o June 2005, Mr. Ross was the Chairman and President of Infinity Energy Resources, Inc., a
publicly held oil and gas production and service company listed on Nasdaq (“Infinity”), and served as an officer
and director of each of Infinity’s subsidiaries. He resigned all of his positions with Infinity in June 2005, except
Chairman, but was reappointed President in October 2006. From 199t until March 1992, he founded and served
as President of Midwest Financial, a financial services corporation involved in mergers, acquisitions and
financing for corporations in the Midwest. From 1990 to 1991, Mr. Ross was employed by Duggan Securities,
Inc., an investment banking firm in Overland Park, Kansas, where he primarily worked in corporate finance.
From 1989 to 1990, he was employed by Stifel, Nicolaus & Co., a member of the New York Stock Exchange,
where he was an investment executive. From {987 to 1989, Mr. Ross was self-employed as a business consultant.
From 1985 to 1987, Mr. Ross was President and founder of Kansas Microwave, Inc., which developed a radar
detector product. From 1981 to 1985, he was employed by Birdview Satellite Communications, Inc., which
manufactured and marketed home satellite television systems, initially as a salesman and later as National Sales
Manager. Mr. Ross devotes such time to the business of Digital as he deems necessary to discharge his fiduciary
duties to it. Mr. Ross estimated that he divided his time equally between Infinity and Digital through the first
quarter of 2007 and thereafter, Mr. Ross has dévoted the majority of his time to Digital. In late 2007, Infinity sold
a substantial portion of its operating assets. Mr. Ross holds no public company directorships other than with the
Company and Infinity.




Lergy C. Richie. Mr. Richie has been the Lead Outside Director of Digital Ally since September 2005 and
he was the chairman of the Audit Committee in fiscal 2007 until Pecember 27, 2007, and is a member of the
Audit, Compensation and Nominating Committees. Since June 1, 1999 Mr. Richie has been a director of Infinity
Energy Resources, Inc., a Nasdaq-listed company. He has also been a member of the board of directors of JLW.
Seligman & Co. since 2000, Since November 2004, he has been of counsel to the Detroit law firm of Lewis &
Munday, P.C. From September 2000 to November 2004, he was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Q
Standards World Wide, Inc. From April 1999 to August 2000, he was President of Capitol Coating Technologies,
Inc. From September 1998 to April 1999 he was President of Intrepid World Communications. From January
1998 to September 1998, Mr, Richie reviewed business opportunities and served as Chairman of H.P. Devco and
Vice Chairman of the Detroit Economic Growth Corp. and Detroit Medical Center. Mr. Richie was formerly
Vice President of Chrysler Corporation and General Counsel for automotive legal affairs, where he directed all
legal affairs for that company’s automotive operations from 1986 to 1997. Before joining Chrysler, he served as
director of the New York office of the Federal Trade Commission. Mr. Richie received a B.A. from City College
of New York and a 1.D. from the New York University School of Law. Mr. Richie is a member of the board of
directors of OQGE Energy Corp. ("OGE”) and serves on its Compensation and Corporate Governance Committee.
OGE is a public company that provides services to the energy industry. Mr. Richie is also a board member of
J. & W. Seligman & Co., Incorporated, a mutual fund manager, and Tri-Continental Corporation, an investment
management company for a closed-end fund.

Daniel F. Hutchins. Mr. Hutchins was elected as a Director of Digital in December 2007. He will also
serve as Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Board’s financial expert. Mr. Hutchins, a Certified Public
Accountant, is a Principal with the accounting firm of Hutchins & Haake, LLC and curremly serves as the Chief
Financial Officer of Infinity Enérgy Resources, Inc., a Nasdag-listed company, of which Stanton E. Ross is the
Chairman and President. He was previously a member of the Advisory Board of Digital. Mr. Hutchins has served
as an instructor for the Becker CPA exam with the Keller Graduate School of Management and has over 17 years
of teaching experience preparing CPA candidates for the CPA exam. He has 30 years of public accounting
experience, including five years with Deloitte & Touche, LLP. He has served on the boards of various non-profit
groups and is 2 member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Hutching eamed his
Bachelor of Business Administration degree in Accounting at Washburn University in Topeka, Kansas.

Mr. Hutchins helds no other public company directorships.

Edward Juchniewicz. Mr. Juchniewicz has been a Director since September 2005 and he is Chairman of the
Nominating Committee and a member of the Audit and Compensation Committees. He joined the Central
Intelligence Agency in 1933 and retired in 1986 as Associate Deputy Director for Operations. Prior to joining the
CIA, he was a Senior Non SECed Imelligence Officer. Since retirement, he has been involved in the intelligence
and communications fields as president of ESL International (1986-1990) and an Advisory Board member of
Elsin Corporation, a subsidiary of TRACOR, Inc. (1990-1991). Mr. Juchniewicz currently serves on the
Advisory Board at the Higgins Foundation on Terrorism in Washington, DC. He attended the Naval Intelligence
Language School, Georgetown University—School of Foreign Service, and Sophia University in Tokyo.

Mr. Juchniewicz has acted as a consultant on espionage to the PBS television series “Frontline.” Mr. Juchniewicz
holds no other public company directorships.

Elliot M. Kaplan. Mr. Kaplan has been a Director since September 2005 and he is Chairman of the
Compensation Committee and a member of the Audit and Nominating Committees. Mr. Kaplan was a practicing
attorney with Danicls & Kaplan, P.C. from 1994 through 2006, with a concentration in corporate strategy. During
the years 1985 through 1993, Mr. Kaplan practiced with the [aw firms of Berman, DeLeve, Kuchan and
Chapman ( 1991-1993); DeWitt, Zeldin and Bigus (1990-1991); and Husch, Eppenberger, Donahue, Cornfeld and
Jenkins (1985-1990). From 1983 10 1985, he served as Vice President, Assistant General Counsel and Assistant
Secretary of Air One, Inc. He also serves on the board of directors of Nasdaq-listed Infinity Energy Resources,
Inc. (since July 2004). Mr. Kaplan serves as the chairman of the Advisory Board of Executive Action and is a
member of the SCCA ProRacing Advisory Board. Mr. Kaplan holds no public company directorships other than
with the Company and Infinity Energy Resources, Inc.




Qur Directors are elected annually and bold office until the next annual meeting of our stockholders or until
their sitccessors are elected and qualified. Officers are elected annually and serve at the discretion of the Board of
Directors. There is no family relationship between any of our directors, director nominees and executive
officers, Board vacancies are filled by a majority vote of the Board.

Yole Required

If a quorum is present and voting, the five nominees receiving the greatest number of votes will be elected
to the Board of Directors. Votes withheld from any nominee will be counted for purposes of determining the
presence or absence of a quorum for transaction of business at the meeting but will have no other legal effect
upon the election of directors under Nevada law.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE
FOR EACH OF THE FIVE NOMINEES NAMED ABOVE.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board of Directors and Committee Meetings

Our Board of Directors held four regular and seven telephonic meetings during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007. Each of our directors atiended at least 75% of the meetings of the Board of Directors and the
committees on which he served in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. Our directors are expected, absent
exceptional circumstances, to attend all Board meetings and meetings of committees on which they serve, and are
also expected to attend our Annual Meeting of Stockholders. All directors then in office attended the 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Our Board of Directors currently has three committees: an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee
and a Nominating Committee. Each committee has a written charter approved by the Board of Directors outlining
the principal responsibilities of the committee. These charters are also available on the Investor Relations page of
our website. All of our directors, other than our Chief Executive Officer, plan to meet in executive sessions
without management present on a regular basis in 2008.

Audit Commiitee

Our Audit Committee appoints the Company’s independent auditors, reviews audit reports and plans,
accounting policies, financial statements, internal controls, audit fees, and centain other expenses and oversees our
accounting and financial reporting process. Specific responsibilities include selecting, hiring and terminating our
independent auditors; evaluating the qualifications, independence and performance of our independent auditors;
approving the audit and non-audit services to be performed by our auditors; reviewing the design, implementation,
adequacy and effectiveness of our internal controls and critical accounting policies; overseeing and monitoring the
integrity of our financial statements and our compliance with [egal and regulatory requirements as they relate to
financial statements or accounting matters; reviewing any earnings announcements and other public announcements
regarding our results of operations, in conjunction with management and our public auditors; and preparing the
report that the Securities and Exchange Commission requires in our annual proxy statement. The repont of the Audit
Committee for the year-ended December 31, 2007 is inctuded in this proxy statement,

The Audit Committee is comprised of four Directors, each of whom is independent, as defined by the nules
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Audit Commitiee held two meetings during the
year-ended December 31, 2007. On September 22, 2005, the Company created the Audit Committee and adopted
a written charter for it. The members of our Audit Committee are Daniel F. Hutchins, Leroy C. Richie, Elliot M.
Kaplan and Edward Juchniewicz. Mr. Richie was the Chairman of the Committee during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007, when Daniel F. Hutchins was appointed as the Chairman. The Board of Directors
determined that each of Messrs. Richie and Hutchins qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert,” as
defined under the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, and is independent as noted
above.

Under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, all audit and non-audit services performed by the Company’s
independent accountants must be approved in advance by the Audit Commitiee to assure that such services do
not impair the accountants’ independence from the Company. Accordingly, the Audit Committee has adopted an
Audit and Non-Audit Services Pre-Approval Policy (the “Policy™) which sets forth the procedures and the
conditions pursuant to which services 1o be performed by the independent accountants are to be pre-approved.
Pursuant to the Policy, certain services described in detail in the Policy may be pre-appraved on an annual basis
together with pre-approved maximum fee levels for such services. The services eligible for annual pre-approval
consist of services that would be included under the categories of Audit Fees, Audit-Related Fees and Tax Fees
in the above table, as well as services for limited review of actuarial reports and calculations. If not pre-approved
on an annual basis, proposed services must otherwise be separately approved prior to being performed by the
independent accountants. In addition, any services that receive annual pre-approval but exceed the pre-approved
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maximum fee level also will require separate approval by the Audit Committee prior to being performed. The
Audit Committee may delegate authority to pre-approve audit and non-audit services to any member of the Audit
Committee, but may not delegate such authority to management.

Compensation Committee

Our Compensation Comuniitee assists our Board of Directors in determining the development plans and
compensation of our officers, directors and employees. Specific responsibilities include approving the
compensation and benefits of our executive officers; reviewing the performance objectives and actual
performance of our officers; administering our stock option and other equity compensation plans; and reviewing
and discussing with management the compensation discussion and analysis that the Securities and Exchange
Commission requires in our future Form 10-Ks and proxy statements. The report of the Compensation
Committee for the year-ended December 31, 2007 is included in this proxy statement.

Our Compensation Committee is comprised of three Directors, whom the Board considers to be independent
under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Compensation Comumnittee held two meetings
during the year-ended December 31, 2007. On September 22, 2007, the Board of Directors adopted a written
charter. The members of our Compensation Committee are Elliot M. Kaplan, Chairman, Leroy C. Richie and
Edward Juchniewicz.

Nominating Committee

Qur Nominating Committee assists our Board of Directors by identifying and recommending individuals
qualified to become members of our Board of Directors, reviewing correspondence from our stockholders, and
establishing, evaluating and overseeing our corporate governance guidelines. Specific responsibilities include the
following: evaluating the composition, size and governance of our Board of Directors and its committees and
making recommendations regarding future planning and appointing directors to our committees; establishing a
policy for considering stockholder nominees for election to our Board of Directors; and evaluating and
recommending candidates for election to our Board of Directors.

Our Nominating Committee is comprised of three Directors, whom the Board considers to be independent
under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The members of our Nominating Committee are
Edward Juchniewicz, Chairman, Elliot M, Kaplan and Leroy C. Richie. The Nominating Committee was created
by our Board of Directors on December 27, 2007, when the Board of Directors adopted a written charter.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The Compensation Committee is made up of three independent, non-employee directors, Messrs. Richie,
Kaplan and Juchniewicz. No interlocking relationship exists between the members of our Compensation
Committee and the board of directors or compensation committee of any other company.

Director Independence

In accordance with the Nasdaq listing standards, our Board of Directors undertook its annual review of the
independence of the directors and considered whether any director had a material relationship with Digital or its
management that could compromise his ability 10 exercise independent judgment in carrying out his
responsibilities. As a result of this review, the Board affirmatively determined that the current board members,
other than Mr. Ross, our President and Chief Executive Officer, are “independent directors™ under the Nasdaq
Rules. Additionally, the members of our three standing committees are required to be, and the Board of Directors
has determined that each member is, independent in accordance with the Nasdaq and SEC rules.

Stockholder Communications with the Board of Directors

Stockholders may comumunicate with she Board of Directors by writing to us at Digital Ally, Inc., Attention:
Corporate Secretary, 7311 West 130th Sureet, Suite 170, Overland Park, KS 66213. Stockholders who would like
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their submission directed to a particular member of the Board of Directors may so specifly and the
communication will be forwarded as appropriate.

Policy for Director Recommendations and Neminations

Our Nominating Committee of the Board will consider candidates for Board membership suggested by
Board members, management and our stockholders. It is the policy for our Nominating Committee to consider
recomunendations for candidates to the Board of Directors from any stockholder of record in accordance with our
bylaws. A director candidate recommended by our stockholders will be considered in the same manner as a
nominee recommended by a Board member, management or other sources. in addition, a stockholder may
nominate a person directly for election to the Board of Directors at an Annual Meeting of Stockholders, provided
the stockholder meets the requirements set forth in our bylaws.

When the Nominating Committee has either identified a prospective nominee or determined that an
additional or replacement director is required, the Nominating Committee may take such measures as it considers
appropriate in connection with its evaluation of a director candidate, including candidate interviews, inquiry of
the person or persons making the recommendation or nomination, engagement of an outside search firm to gather
additional information, or reliance on the knowledge of the members of the Board of Directors or management.
In its evaluation of director candidates, including the members of the Board eligible for re-election, the
Nominating Committee considers a number of factors, including: the current size and composition of the Board
of Directors, the needs of the Board of Directors and the respective committees of the Board, and such factors as
judgment, independence, character and integrity, age, arca of expertise, diversity of experience, length of service,
and potential conflicts of interest.

The Nominating Committee of the Board selects director nominees. In relation to such nomination process,
the Nominating Committee:
* determine the criteria for the selection of prospective directors and committee members;

» review the composition and size of the Board and its committees 1o ensure proper expertise and
diversity among its members;

» evaluate the performance and contributions of directors eligible for re-election;

» determine the destred qualifications for individual directors and desired skills and characteristics for
the Board;

*» identify persons who can provide needed skills and characteristics;
= screen possible candidates for Board membership;
+ review any potential conflicts of interests between such candidates and the Company’s interests; and

* share information concemning the candidates with the Board, and solicit input from other directors.

The Nominating Committee has specified the following minimum qualifications that it believes must be met
by a nominee for a position on the Board: the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity; proven
achievement and competence in the nominee’s field and the ability 10 exercise sound business judgment; skills
that are complementary to those of the existing Board; the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to our success, and an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that are required of
a member of the Board of Directors and the commitment of time and energy necessary to diligently carry out
those responsibilities,

After completing its evaluation, the Nominating Committee makes a recommendation to the fuil Board of
Directors as to the persons who should be nominated to the Board, and the Board of Directors determines the
nominees after constdering the recommendation and report of the Nominating Committee.

9



Code of Ethics and Conduct

Our Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Ethics and Conduct that is applicable to all of our employees,
officers and directors. Our Code of Ethics and Conduct is intended to ensure that our employees act in
accordance with the highest ethical standards. The Code of Ethics and Conduct is available on the Investor
Relations page of our website at http:/Avww.digitalally.com. and the Code of Ethics and Conduct has been filed
as an exhibit o our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.

Director Compensation

The non-employee directors received the stock option grants noted in the section below entitled
“Compensation of Directors and Advisory Board Members” for agreeing to serve on our Board, including on the
Audit and Compensation Committees. Our Directors and members of our Advisory Board, who are neither
employees nor our affiliates, receive options upon their appointment as Directors and as members of our
Advisory Board. Each member of our Advisory Board receives a grant of 10,000 options upon appoinument to a
one-year term on cur Advisory Board. The options are exercisable at the price our common stock is trading at on
the day of the grant of such options. The grants to such Directors are set forth in the Section entitled
“Compensation of Directors and Advisory Board Members.” In 2007, non-employee members of our Board of
Directors received compensation of $5,000 per quarter for their services as Board members, with Leroy C.
Ritchie, our lead director, receiving $6,000 in compensation per quarter. In addition, we reimburse the
non-employee directors for their out-of-pocket costs in attending the meetings of the Board of Directors.

In 2008, we will pay each of our non-employee directors an annual fee of $30,000 and a meeting fee of
$4 000 for his services as » Board member. We will pay Leroy C. Richie an additional annual fee of $10,000 as
our lead director. Daniel F. Hutchins will receive an annual fee of $10,000 as Chairman of the Audit Committee
and members of such Committee will be paid $4,000 annually. Elliot M. Kaplan will be paid an annual fee of
$5,000 as Chairman of the Compensation Committee and members of such Committee will be paid $1,000
annually. Edward Juchniewicz will receive an annual fee of $5,000 as Chairman of the Nominating Committee
and members of such Commitice will be paid $1,000 annually. We will compensate non-employee directors at
the rate of $500 per telephonic meeting.

In addition, in 2008 we have granted to each of our non-employee directors options to purchase 50,000
shares of our Common Stock, vesting 5,000 shares on January 2, 2009; 10,000 shares on January 2, 2010; 15,000
shares on January 2, 2011; and 20,000 shares on January 2, 2012. All of the foregoing options are subject to
approval of the 2008 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan by the sharcholders at this Annual Meeting.

Director Compensation

Non-Qualified
Non-Equity Deferred
Fees Earned  Stock Option  Incentive Plan Cempensation Al Other
Or Paidin  Awards Awards ($) Compensation Earnings (§) Compensation Total (§)

Name (a) Cash ($) (b) ($) (©) (d) (%) (e} i ($)(g) (h)
StantonE.Ross ............ — —— — - — _ —
Leroy C.Richie ............ $24000 —  $147982w — — — $171,982
Edward Juchniewicz ........ $20,000 — $I35752%  — - — $155,752
Elliot M. Kaplan ........... $20000 — $i47982® — — — $167,982
Daniel F. Hutchins . .. ....... — — — & — — — —

(1) Mr. Ross” option awards are noted in the Executive Compensation table because he did not receive options
for his services as a director.

(2) Option awards noted are related stock option expense during 2007 for the 2007 Stock Option and Restricted
Stock Plan (the “2007 Plan™) and 2006 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan (the 2006 Plan™). No
options were exercised in 2007,

(3) Mr. Hutchins was appointed 10 the Board on December 27, 2007 and received no compensation as a director
in 2007.
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Mr. Stanton E. Ross received no compensation in 2007 or 2006 as a Board member. All compensation he
received in these years was for his services as an executive officer and is noted in the Executive Compensation
table.

For all outside Board members (Messrs. Richie, Juchniewicz and Kaplan), no fees were paid for serving on
the Board during 2005 and 2006. [n 2007, outside Board members, except Mr. Richie, received compensation of
$5,000 per quarter and Mr. Richie received $6,000 per quarter as lead director.

Mr. Richie’s total compensation noted of $171,982 represents expense attributable to 2007 for options
received as part of the 2007 (399,065) and 2006 ($48,917) Plans.

Mr. Juchiewicz’s total compensation noted of $155,752 represents expense attributable to 2007 for options
received as part of the 2007 ($99,065) and 2006 ($36,687) Plans.

Mr. Kaplan’s total compensation noted of $167,982 represents expense attributable 1o 2007 for options
received as pan of the 2007 ($99,065) and 2006 ($48,917) Plans.

11




PROPOSAL TWO
APPROVAL OF THE 2008 STOCK OPTION AND RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN

The Company is seeking stockholder approval for the 2008 Stock Option and Restricied Stock Plan (the
“2008 Pian”) including the reservation of 1,000,000 shares issuable under the 2008 Plan. The 2008 Plan was
adopted by the Board of Directors on January 2, 2008 and, subject to stockholder approval at the annual meeting,
grants of 900,000 options with an exercise price of $6.80 have been made under the 2008 Plan to date. As of the
date of the proxy statement, 100,000 shares remained available under the 2008 Plan for future equity grants.
Upon stockholder approval for the 2008 Plan, 100,000 shares would be available for future grants. The aggregate
market value of the 900,000 shares of common stock subject to outstanding options on February 1, 2008 was
$5,319,000, based on a closing price of $5.91 for the Company’s Common Stock on the Nasdaq Capital Market.

The Board of Directors believes that it is in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders for the
Company to approve the 2008 Plan and the 1,000,000 shares available for grant under the 2008 Plan. The Board
believes that equily awards assist in retaining, motivating and rewarding employees, executives and consultants
by giving them an opportunity to obtain long-term equity participation in the Company. In addition, equity
awards are an important contributor to aligning the incentives of the Company’s employees with the interests of
the Company’s stockholders. The Board also believes equity awards are essential to atiracting new employees.
The Board of Directors believes that to remain competitive with other technology companies with regard to its
leng-term incentive plans, the Company must continue to provide employees with the opportunity o obtain
equity in the Company and that an inability to offer equity incentives to new and current employees would put
the Company at a competitive disadvantage with respect to attracting and retaining qualified personnel. Our
named executive officers and directors have an interest in this proposal because they have received awards under
the 2008 Plan, subject to the approva! of the 2008 Plan at this Annual Meeting.

Yote Required and Recommendation

The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast will be required to approve the 2008 Plan,

QOUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE
FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE 2008 STOCK OPTION AND RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN.

Summary of the 2008 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Flan

Qur Board of Directors adopted the 2008 Plan on January 2, 2008. At the annual meeting, we are asking
stockholders to approve the 2008 Plan and to approve the reservation of 1,000,000 shares issuable under the 2008
Plan. The 2008 Plan authorizes us 10 issue 1,000,000 shares of common stock upen exercise of options and grant
of restricted stock awards. Subject to stockholder approval, we have granted 900,000 options under the 2008
Plan. The 2008 Plan authorizes us to grant (i) to the key employees incentive stock options to purchase shares of
commen stock and non-qualified stock options to purchase shares of common stock and resiricted stock awards
and {ii) to non-employee directors and consultants non-qualified stock options and restricted stock.

The following paragraphs provide a summary of the principal features of the 2008 Plan and its operation.
The following summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the 2008 Plan as set forth in Appendix A.

Objectives. The objective of the 2008 Plan is to provide incentives to our key employees, directors and
consultants to achieve financial results aimed at increasing shareholder value and attracting tlented individuals
to us. Persons eligible to be granted stock options or restricted stock under the 2008 Plan will be those persons
whose performance, in the judgment of the Compensation Commitiee of our Board of Directors, can have
significant effect on our success.

Oversight. Our Board will administer the 2008 Plan by making determinations regarding the persons to
whotn options or restricted stock should be granted and the amount, terms, conditions and restrictions of the

12




awards. The Board also has the authority to interpret the provisions of the 2008 Plan and to establish and amend
rules for its administration subject to the 2008 Plan’s limitations.

Number of Shares of Common Stock Available Under the 2008 Plan. 1f the stockholders approve the 2008
Plan, a total of 1,000,000 shares of our common stock will be reserved for issuance under the 2008 Plan.

Types of Grants. The 2008 Plan allows for the grant of incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options
and restricted stock awards. The 2008 Plan does not specify what portion of the awards may be in the form of
incentive stock options, non-slatutory options or restricted stock. Incentive stock options awarded to our
employees are quatified stock options under the Internal Revenue Code,

Statutory Conditions on Stock Option—Exercise Price. Incentive stock options granted under the 2008
Plan must have an exercise price at least equal to 100% of the fair market value of the common stock as of the
date of grant. Incentive stock options granted to any person who owns, immediately after the grant, stock
possessing more than 10% of the combined voting power of all classes of our stock, or of any parent or
subsidiary corporation, must have an exercise price at least equal to 110% of the fair market value of the
common stock on the date of grant. Non-statutory stock options may have exercise price at least equal to 100%
of the fair market value of the common stock as of the date of the grant.

- Dallar limit. The aggregate fair market value, determined as of the time an incentive stock option is
granted, of the common stock with respect to which incentive stock options are exercisable by an employee
for the first time during any calendar year cannot exceed $100,000. However, there is no aggregate doltar
limitation on the amount of non-statutory stock options that may be exercisable for the first time during any
calendar year.

- Expiration date. Any option granted under the 2008 Plan will expire at the time fixed by our Board of
Directors, which cannot be more than ten years after the date it is granted or, in the case of any person who
owns more than 10% of the combined voting power of all classes of our stock or of any subsidiary
corporation, not more than five years after the date of grant.

- Exerciseability. Our Board may also specify when all or part of an option becomes exercisable, but in
the absence of such specification, the option will ordinarily be exercisable in whole or in part at any time
during its term. However, the board of directors may accelerate the exerciseability of any option at its
discretion.

- Assignability. Options granted under the 2008 Plan are not assignable. Incentive stock options may be
exercised only while the optionee is employed by us or within twelve months after termination by reason of
death or disabilities or within three months after termination for any other reason.

Payment upun Exercise of Options. Payment of the exercise price for any option may be in cash, or with
our consent, by withheld shares which, upon exercise, have a fair market value at the time the option is exercised
equal 1o the option price (plus applicable withholding tax) or in the form of shares of common stock, subject o
restrictions.

Restricted Stock. Our Board is authorized to grant restricted stock awards. A restricted stock grant is a grant
of shares of our common stock, which is subject 10 restrictions on transferability, risk of forfeiture and other
restrictions and which may be forfeited in the event of certain terminations of employment or service prior to the
end of a restricted period specified by the Board of Directors. A participant granted Restricted stock generally
has all of the rights of one of our sharcholders, unless otherwise determined by the committee.

Merger or Sale of Assets. In the event of our merger with or into another corporation, or the sale of all or
substantialty all of our assets, any unvested Awards will vest immediately prior 10 closing of the event resulling
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in the change of control, and the Board shall have the power and discretion to provide for each award holder’s
election alternatives regarding the terms and conditions for the exercise of such awards. The alternative may
provide that each outstanding stock option and restricted stock award will be assumed or substituted for by the
successor corporation (or a parent or subsidiary or such successor corporation). If there is no assumption or
substitution of outstanding awards, the administrator will provide notice to the recipient of their alternatives
regarding their right to exercise the stock option as to all of the shares subject to the siock option.

Amendment and Termination of the 2008 Plan. The administrator has the authority to amend, alier,
suspend, or terminate the 2008 Plan, except that stockholder approval will be required for any amendment to the
plan to the extent required by any applicable law, regulation, or Nasdaq or stock exchange rule. Any amendment,
alteration, suspension, or termination will not, without the consent of the participant, materially adversely affect
any rights or obligations under any stock option or restricted stock award previously granted. The 2008 Plan has
a term of 1en (10) years beginning January 2, 2008, unless terminated earlier by the Administrator.

Recent Stock Option and Restricted Stock Award Grants to Employees, Consultants, and Directors

Our Board of Directors adopted the 2005 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan (the “2005 Plan™) on
September 1, 2005. The 2005 Plan authorizes us to issue 2,500,000 shares of our common stock for issuance
upon exercise of options and grant of restricted stock awards. We have issued all of the options available under
the 2005 Plan. The grants under the 2005 Plan were effective upon stockolder approval of the 2005 Plan. On
January {7, 2006, our Board adopted the 2006 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan (the 2006 Plan™). The
2006 Plan authorizes us 10 reserve 1,500,000 shares for fuware grants under it, We have issued all 1,500,000 of
the options available under the 2006 Plan. The grants under the 2006 Plun were effective upon stockholder
approval of the 2006 Plan. On January 24, 2007, our Board adopted the 2007 Stock Option and Restricted Stock
Plan (the “2007 Plan™). The 2007 Plan authorizes us to reserve 1,500,000 shares for future grants under it. We
have issued 1,493,600 of the options available under the 2007 Plan, all of which were effective on grant. The
2005 Plan, 2006 Plan and 2007 Plan are referred to as the “Plans.”

The number of stock options and restricted stock awards that an employee, director, or consultant may
receive under our Plans is in the discretion of the administrator and therefore cannot be determined in advance,
although the Board of Directors’ policy for 2008 is to grant directors an award of 50,000 shares, which options
vest over a four-year period. To date, only stock options have been granted under the Plans. The following table
sets forth (a) the aggregate number of shares subject to options granted under the Plans during the year-ended
December 31, 2007 and (b) the average per share exercise price of such options.

Number of Options  Average per Share

Name of Individual or Group Granted Exercise Price
Stanton B ROSS . ... .ot e 375,000 $2.74
Leroy C. Richie ...... ..o S 200,000 $1.60
Edward Juchniewicz .. ... .. .. i 200,000 $1.60
Elliot M. Kaplan ... ... . . e 200,000 $1.60
Daniel F. Hutchins .. ... . . e 10,000 $4.00
Robert D.Haler ... ..o 100,000 31.60
Kenneth L. McCoy ..o ir i e 100,000 51.60
Jeffrey AL Bakalar ... ... ... 100,000 51.60
Thomas ). Heckman ... ... ... . . e 20,000 $4.05
Ali executive officers,asagroup ....... ... . ... 693,000 $2.29
All directors who are not executive officers,asagroup ... ....... ... ... 610,000 $1.64
All employees who are not executive officers, as a'group ............... 188,500 $2.62

Please see our “Compensation Tables” below for more information about option grants.
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Federal Tax Aspects

The following summary is a general discussion of certain of the federal income tax consequences to U.S.
1axpayers and 1o the Company of stock option, stock appreciation rights, and restricted stock awards granted
under the 2008 Plan. This summary is not intended to be a complete discussion of all of the federal income tax
consequences of the 2008 Plan or of all of the requirements that must be met in order to qualify for the tax
treatment described herein. The following summary is based upon the provisions of U.S. federal tax law as in
effect on the date hereof, which is subject to change (perhaps with retroactive effect), and does not constitute tax
advice. In addition, because tax consequences may vary, and certain exceptions to the generat rules discussed in
this summary may be applicable, depending upon the personal circumstances of individual recipients and each
recipient should consider his or her personal situation and consult with his or her own tax advisor with respect to
the specific tax consequences applicable to him or her. The following assumes stock options have been granted at
an exercise price per share at least equal to 100% of the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on
the date of grant.

Tax consequences of nonqualified stock options. An employee, director or consultant will not recognize
income on the awarding of nonqualified options under the 2008 Pian. An optionee will recognize ordinary
income as the result of the exercise of a nonqualified stock option in the amount of the excess of the fair market
value of the stock on the day of exercise less the option exercise price. Upon a subsequent sale or exchange of
stock acquired pursuant to the exercise of a nongualified stock option, the optionee will have taxable capital gain
or loss, measured by the difference between the amount realized on the disposition and the tax basis of the stock,
generally, the amount paid for the stock plus the amount treated as ordinary income at the time the stock option
was exercised.

Tax consequences of incentive stock options. An employee will not recognize income on the awarding of
incentive stock options under the 2008 Plan, Except with respect to the alternative minimum tax, an optionee will
not recognize income on the exercise of an incentive stock option, unless the option exercise price is paid with
stock acquired on the exercise of an incentive stock option and the following holding period for such stock has
not been satisfied. The optionee will recognize long-term capital gain or loss on a sale of the shares acquired on
exercise, provided the shares acquired are not sold or otherwise disposed of before the earlier of: (i) two years
from the date of award of the option or (ii) one year from the date of exercise of the option. If the stock is not
held for the required period of time, the optionee will recognize ordinary income to the extent the fair market
value of the stock at the time the option is exercised exceeds the option price, but limited to the gain recognized
on sale. The balance of any such gain will be a short-term or long-term capital gain.

An optionee generally must include in alternative minimum taxable income the amount by which the price
he or she paid for an incentive stock option is exceeded by the option’s fair market value at the time his rights to
the stock are freely transferable or are not subject (o a substantial risk of forfeiture.

For the exercise of a stock option to qualify for the foregoing incentive stock option tax treatment, the
optionee generally must be an employee of the Company from the date the stock option is granted through a date
within three months before the date of exercise of the stock option.

Tax consequences of restricted stock awards. In general, the recipient of a stock award will recognize
ordinary income at the time the stock is received equal to the excess, if any, of the fair market value of the stock
received over any amount paid by the recipient in exchange for the stock. If, however, the stock is subject to
vesting or other restrictions (that is, they are nontransferable and subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture) when
it s received (for example, if the émployee is required to work for a period of time in order 10 have the right to
sell the stock), the recipient generally will not recognize income until the stock becomes vested or the restrictions
otherwise lapse, at which time the recipient will recognize ordinary income equal to the excess, if any, of the fair
market value of the stock on the date it becomes vested less any amount paid by the recipient in exchange for the
stock. A recipient may, however, file an election under Section 83(b} of the Internal Revenue Code with the
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Internal Revenue Service, within thirty (30) days of his or her receipt of the stock award, to recognize ordinary
income, as of the date the recipient receives the award, equal to the excess, if any, of the fair market value of the
stock on the date the award is granted less any amount paid by the recipient in exchange for the stock. If the
recipient does not make a Section §3(b) election, dividends paid to the recipient on the stock prior to the date the
vesting or restrictions lapse will be treated as compensation income. The recipient’s basis for the determination
of gain or loss upon the subsequent disposition of shares acquired as stock awards will be the amount paid for
such shares plus any ordinary income recognized either when the stock is received or when the stock becomes
vested. If the stock is forfeited under the terms of the restricted stock award, the recipient will not be allowed a
tax deduction with respect to the forfeiture.

Tax consequences of stock appreciation right awards. In general, there are no immediate tax consequences
of receiving an award of stock appreciation rights under the 2008 Plan (whether as a stand-alone award or in
tandem with a related option award). Upon the exercise of a stock appreciation right the amount by which the fair
market value of the stock subject to the stock appreciation right on the exercise date exceeds the stock
appreciation right grant price is treated as ordinary income received by the participant in the year of exercise,
whether received in cash, shares of stock or both.

Tax effect for the Company. The Company generally is entitled to a tax deduction in connection with a
stock option, stock appreciation right or restricted stock award granted under the 2008 Plan in an amount equal to
the ordinary income realized by a participant and at the time the participant recognizes such income (for
example, the exercise of a nonqualified stock option). Special rules limit the deductibility of compensation paid
to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and to each of its four most highly compensated executive officers.
Under Section 162(mm) of the Internal Revenue Code, the annual compensation paid to any of these specified
executives is deductible only to the extent that it does not exceed $1,000,000. However, the Company can
preserve the deductibility of certain compensation in excess of $1,000,000 if the conditions of Section 162(m) are
met. These conditions include stockholder approval of the 2008 Plan, setting limits on the number of stock
options and restricted awards that any individual may receive and for awards other than certain stock options,
establishing performance criteria that must be met before the stock option or restricted stock award actually will
vest or be paid. The 2008 Plan has been designed to permit the administrator to grant stock options, stock
appreciation rights and restricied stock awards that qualify as performance-based for purposes of satisfying the
conditions of Section 162{m), thereby permitting the Company to continue to receive a federal income tax
deduction in connection with such stock option and restricted stock awards.

THE FOREGOING IS ONLY A SUMMARY OF THE EFFECT OF FEDERAL INCOME TAXATION UPON
PARTICIPANTS AND THE COMPANY WITH RESPECT TO THE GRANT AND EXERCISE OF STOCK OPTIONS AND
RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS UNDER THE 2008 PLAN. [T DOES NOT PURPORT TO BE COMPLETE, AND DOES
NOT DISCUSS THE TAX CONSEQUENCES OF A RECIPIENT’S DEATH OR THE PROVISIONS OF THE INCOME TAX
LAWS OF ANY MUNICIPALITY STATE OR FO]:lElGN COUNTRY IN WHICH THE RECIPIENT MAY RESIDE.
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PROPOSAL THREE
RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed McGladrey & Pullen LLP as the independent
registered public accounting firm to audit our financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2008 and
recomumends that stockholders vote for ratification of such appointment. During the 2007 fiscal year,

McGladrey & Pullen LLP served as our independent registered public accounting firm and also provided certain
tax and other non-audit services. Although we are not required to seek stockholder approval of this appointment,
the Board believes it 10 be sound corporate governance to do so. Notwithstanding the selection by the Audit
Commitiee of McGladrey & Pullen LLP, the Audit Committee may direct the appointment of a new independent
registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if the Board of Directors determines that such a
change would be in our best interest and in that of our stockholders. If the appointment is not ratified, the Audit
Committee will investigate the reasons for stockholder rejection and will reconsider the appointment,

Representatives of McGladrey & Pullen LLP are expecied 1o attend the Annual Meeting, where they will be
available to respond to questions and, if they desire, to make a statement.

Audit and Related Fees

The following table is a summary of the fees billed to us by McGladrey & Pullen LLP for professional
services for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006:

Fiscal Fiscal
2007 Fees 2006 Fees
Fee Category
AU FEeS . oo e e e e $113,937 $ 45,000

Audit-Related Fees . ....... e $ 49971 S 53,288

Tax FEeS ..ottt e e e $ 29963 § 5781
AlLOTher Fees . .. o e 5 - & —
Total Feas ... e $193,871 $104,069

Audit Fees. Consists of fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of our consolidated
financial statements and review of the interim consolidated financial statements included in quarterly reports and
services that are normally provided by our independent registered public accounting firms in connection with
statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.

Audit-Related Fees. Consists of fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to
the performance of the audit or review of our consolidated financial statements and are not reported under *Audit
Fees.” These services include employee benefit plan audits, accounting consultations in connection with
acquisitions, attest services that are not required by statute or regulation, and consultations concerning financial
accounting and reporting standards.

Tax Fees. Consists of fees billed for professional services for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.
These services include assistance regarding federal, state and international tax compliance, tax audit defense,
customs and duties, mergers and acquisitions, and international tax planning.

All Other Fees. Consists of fees for products and services other than the services reported above. In fiscal
2007 and 2006, these services incleded administrative services.
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I
The Audit Committee’s practice is to consider and approve in advance all proposed audit and non-audit
services to be provided by our independent registered public accounting firm.

The audit report of McGladrey & Pullen LLP on the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2007 did not contain an adverse apinion or disclaimer of opinion, and was not qualified or
modified as 1o uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles. The audit report for the year ended
December 31, 2006 was modified as to an uacertainty relative to the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

During our fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, there were no disagreements with
McGladrey & Pullen LLP on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or
auditing scope or procedures, which disagreements if not resolved to McGladrey & Pullen LLP’s satisfaction
would have caused it to make reference to the subject matter of such disagreements in connection with its reports
on the financial statements for such periods. '

During our fiscal years ended Decembef 31, 2007 and 2006, there were no reportable events (as described in
Ttem 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K).

Vote Required

If a quorum is present, the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present and entitled to vote at the
Annual Meeting wiil be required to ratify the appointment of McGladrey & Pullen LLP as our independent
registered public accounting firm. Abstentions will have the effect of a vote against this proposal, and broker
non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the voie with respect to this proposal.

Our BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE FOR THE
RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF MCGLADREY & PULLEN LLP
AS THE INDEPENDENT REGISTERED ACCOUNTING FIRM OF
DIGITAL ALLY, INC. FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2008.




Nowithstanding anything 1o the contrary set forth in any of our previous filings under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that might incorporate future filings,
including this proxy statement, in whole or in part, the Audit Commitiee Report shall not be incorporated by
reference into any such filings.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Below is the report of the Audit Committee with respect to our audited financial statements for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2007, which include our balance sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 and the notes thereto.

In accordance with the writien charter adopted by the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors has the primary responsibility for overseeing our financial reporting, accounting principles and
system of internal accounting controls, and reporting its observations and activities to the Board of Directors. It
also approves the appointment of our independent registered public accounting firm and approves in advance the
services performed by such firm.

Review and Discussion with Management

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with management our audited financial statements for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, the process designed to achieve compliance with Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, our assessment of internal control over financial reporting and the report by our
independent registered public accounting firm thereon.

Review and Discussions with Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Audit Commitiee has discussed with McGladrey & Pullen LLP, cur independent registered public
accounting firm for fiscal year 2007, the matters the Audit Committee is required to discuss pursuant to
Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61 {Communications with Audit Committees), which includes, among
other items, matters related 1o the conduct of the audit of our consolidated financial statements.

The Audit Committee also has received the written disclosures and the letter from McGladrey & Pullen LLP
required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussions with Audit Commitiees)
and has discussed with McGladrey & Pullen LLP any relationships that may impact its independence, and
satisfied itself as to the independent regisiered public accounting firm’s independence.

Conclusion

Based on the review and discussions referred 1o above, the Audit Commitiee recommended 1o the Board of
Directors that our audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 be included in our
Annual Report on Form £0-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 for filing with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Respectfully submitted by:

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF DIGITAL ALLY, INC,

Daniel F. Hutchins, Chairman
' Leroy C. Richie

Elliot M. Kaplan

Edward Juchniewicz
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
|
COMPENSATION TABLES

The following table presenis information concerning the totat compensation of the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and the three other most highly compensated officers during the last
fiscal year (the “Named Executive Officers™) for services rendered to the Company in all capacities for the year
ended December 31, 2007:

Summary Cempensation Table
The table below sets forth all cash compensation paid or proposed to be paid by us to the chief executive

officer and the most highly compensated executive officers, and key employees for services rendered in all
capacities to the Company during fiscal years 2007 and 2006.
i

Option All Other
Year Salary Bonus ($) Awards Compensation Total {$)

Name (a} (b) ($){c) (d) ($) (D) ($) (i) 0
Stanton E.ROSS .......ooiiviiiinnns 2007 $150,000 $100,000 $391,767% -0- $641,767
Chairman, CEQ and Prestdentt!} 2006 -0- -0-  $178,3420) -0- $274,592
RobertD.Haler,...................... 2007 $125,000 $ 25,000 $170,830% 3914 $324744
Executive Vice President and Director of 2006 $120,000 $ 35,000 $101,910® -0- $486,759

Product Development
Kenneth L. McCoy, ................... 2007 3 93,750 % 35840 $185868%) 28,650 $344,108
Vice President—Marketing 2006 $ 90,000 $ 11,991 $101,910% 12,000 $540,712
ThomasJ. Heckman, .................. 2007 § 21,000 -0- % 33,4449 -0- $ 54444
CFO, Treasurer and Secretary(? . 2006 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Jeffrey A, Bakalar, . ................... 2007 $132,000 § 15000 § 93,864 14,696 $255,560
former CFQ, Treasurer and Secretary™ 2006 $120,000 $ 9,500 3 73,8850 -0- $236,962
Chasles A.Ross, Jr. ... ... ... ...... 2007 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
{former President and Director of Product 2006 $ 45000 $ 25,000 -0- -0- $ 70,000

Development )+

(1) Stanton E. Ross received no salary during fiscal year 2006. During 2007, he received a base salary of
$150,000. '

(2) Mr. Heckman worked as a consultant to the Company during 2007 and effective December 31, 2007, was \
appointed CFO, Treasurer and Secretary, replacing Mr. Bakalar.

(3) Mr. Bakalar resigned as CFQ, Treasurer and Secretary on December 31, 2007. He was paid at the rate of
$120,000 per year for 2006 and 2007.

{4) Mr. Charles A. Ross, Jr., who is the brother of Stanton E. Ross, resigned as a director and officer of the
Company effective February 23, 2006.

(5) The amount indicated is related to stock option expense recorded in fiscal year 2007 and related to options
granted in 2005, 2006 and 2007 under the 2005 Plan, 2006 Plan and 2007 Plan, No options were exercised
in 2007. This expense is included in the total compensation column (§} for 2007 in the above table. Please
see “Recent Stock Option and Restricted Stock Award Grants to Employees, Consultants and Directors” for
additional information on the options set forth in this table.

{6) The amount indicated is related to stock option expense recorded in fiscal year 2006 and related to options
granted in 2005 and 2006 under the 2005 Plan and 2006 Plan. No options were exercised during 2006. This
expense is included in the total compensation column (j) for 2006 in the above table.
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Compensation Policy. The Company’s executive compensation plan is based on attracting and retaining
qualified professionals who possess the skills and leadership necessary to enable the Company to achieve
earnings and profitability growth to satisfy its stockholders. The Company must, therefore, create incentives for
these executives to achieve both Company and individual performance objectives through the use of
performance-based compensation programs.

No one component is considered by itself, but all forms of the compensation package are considered in total.
Wherever possible, objective measurements will be utilized to quantify performance, but many subjective factors
still come into play when determining performance.

Compensation Components. The main elements of its compensation package consist of base salary, stock
options and bonus.

Base Salary. The base salary for each executive officer is reviewed and compared to the prior year, with
considerations given for increase. During 2005 and 2006, the executive officers noted had no change in their base
salaries because the Company was in the development stage in 2005, and became an operating company in
second quarter 2006. The Company will review the base salaries for possible adjustments on an annual basis.

Base salary adjustrents will be based on both individual and Company performance and will include both
objective and subjective criteria specific to each executive’s role and responsibility with the Company.

Stock Options. Stock option awards were determined by the Compensation Committee based on numerous
factors, some of which include responsibilities incumbent with the role of each executive to the Company, tenure
with the Company, as well as Company performance, such as shipment of product at certain thresholds. The
vesting period of said options is also tied, in some instances, to Company performance directly related to certain
executive’s responsibilities with the Company.

Bonuses. To date, bonuses have been granted on a limited basis, with these bonuses related to meeting
certain performance criteria that are directly related to areas within the executive's responsibilities with the
Company, such as production of product and sales of product to customers. As the Company continues (o grow,
morte defined bonus programs will be created to attract and retain its employees at all levels.

Other. At this time, the Company has no profit sharing plan in place for employees. However, this is another
area of consideration to add such a plan to provide yet another level of compensation to its compensation plan.

In 2007, Stanton E. Ross received a base compensation was $150,000 and a bonus of $100,000 in October
2007. As agreed between Mr. Ross and the Board of Directors, he received no salary from the Company during
2005 and 2006. His total compensation noted for 2006 was all attributable to stock option expense for stock
option granted to him under the 2006 and 2003 Plans. He received no compensation as a director in 2005, 2006
or 2007.

Mr. Haler received a base salary of $120,000 during 2007 and a bonus of $25,000 in October 2007. These
earnings, coupled with the $170,830 of stock option expense ($49,533, $61,146 and $60,151 from the 2007, 2006
and 2005 Plans), total $315,830 for 2007. Mr. Haler earned a base salary of $120,000 during 2006 along with a
bonus of $35,000 for performance criteria he met during the year. These earnings, coupled with the $101,910 and
$229,849 of stock option expense for the respective plans, total $486,759 for 2006.

Mr. McCoy received a base salary of $90,000 in 2007 along with a bonus totaling $35,840 based on centain
performance criteria. He also received $1,000 per month for travel allowance, a total of $12,000 for 2007. These
earnings, coupled with the $185,868 of stock option expense ($49,533, $61,146 and $75,189 from the 2007, 2006
and 2005 Plans}), total $323,708 for 2007. Mr. McCoy received a base salary of $90,000 in 2006 along with a
bonus totaling $11,991 based on centain performance criteria. He also received $1,000 per month for travel
allowance, a total of $12,000 for 2006. These amounts, coupled with the $101,910 and $324,811 of stock option
expense for the respective plans, total $540,712 for 2006,
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Mr. Bakalar earned a base salary of $1?0,000 in 2007 along with bonus totaling $15,000 based on certain
performance criteria. These earnings, coupled with the $93,864 of stock option expense {$49,533 and $44,331
from the 2007 and 2006 stock option plans), total $228,864 for 2007. Mr. Bakatar eamned a base salary of
$120,000 in 2006 along with bonus totaling $9,500 based on certain performance criteria. These earnings,
coupled with the $73,885 and $33,577 of stock option expense for the respective plans, total $236,962 for 2006.

Mr. Charles A. Ross, Jr. was paid salary at an annual rate of $120,000 during 2006 and was given a bonus of
$25,000. He resigned as an officer and director effective February 23, 2006.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

Option Awards

Equity Incentive
Number of Number of Plan Awards:

Securities Securities Number of
Underlying Underlying Securities
Unexercised  Unexercised Underlying Option Option
Options (#) Options (#) Unexercised Exercise Expiration
Exercisable  Unexercisable Unearned Price Date
Name (a) (b} {c) Options (#) {d) ($) (e} N
Stanton E, Ross, Chatrman, ............ L. 21,875 153,125 — $4.05  10/15/2017
CEO and President 66,667 133,333 — $1.60 3/1/2017
350,000 —_ — $2.15 91252011
' 500,000 — — $1.00 8/31/2015
Robert D . Haler, ....................... 33,334 66,660 — $1.60 31112017
Executive Vice President and Director of 200,000 — — $2.15 9/2512011
Product Development 500,000 — — $1.00  9/21/2015
Kenneth L. McCoy, . ........ .. ... ... ... 33,334 66,666 — 51.60 32017
Vice President—Marketing 200,000 — — $2.15  9/25/2011
. 500,000 — — $1.00 972172015
Thomas J. Heckman, .................... 20,000 — — $4.05 10/15/2017
CFO, Treasurer and Secretary
Jeffrey A. Bakalar, ..................... 33,334 66,066 — $1.60 3412017
former CFQ, Treasurer and Secretary 145,000 — — $2.15 9/25/2011
100,000 — — $1.00 9/21/2015

Mr. Ross received 200,000 options as part of the 2007 Plan (all options are priced at $1.60 each and expire
in ten years), which vest ratably on October 1, 2007, April 1, 2008 and October 1, 2008. He also received
175,000 options in October 2007 as part of the same Plan (all options are priced at $4.05 each and expire in ten
years), with vesting of 21,875 options at grant date, and the remaining balance vesting ratably over the seven
subsequent quarters beginning January 1, 2008 and ending July 1, 2009 (21,875 each quarter). Mr. Ross received
350,000 options as part of the 2006 Plan (all options are priced at $2.15 each and expire in five years), with
173,000 vested at time of issuance, and the rémaining 175,000 vesting one year from the date of issuance. For the
2005 Plan, Mr. Ross received 500,000 options, with 250,000 vested and the remaining 250,000 to vest upon
meeting certain Company performance criteria, which were satisfied. All of these options have an exercise price
of $1.00 each and have a ten-year expiration period from the date of issuance,

Mr. Haler received 100,000 options as part of the 2007 Plan (all options are priced at $1.60 each and-expire
in ten years), which vest ratably on October 1, 2007, April 1, 2008 and October 1, 2008. Mr. Haler received
200,000 options as part of the 2006 Plan (all options are priced at $2.15 each and expire in five years), with
100,000 vested at the time of issuance and the remaining 100,000 vesting one year from the date of issuance. For
the 2005 Plan, Mr. Haler received 500,000 options, with 300,000 vested and the remaining 200.000 to vest upon

22




meeting certain Company performance criteria, which were satisfied. All of these options have an exercise price
of $1.00 each and have a ten-year expiration period from the date of issuance.

Mr. McCay received 100,000 options as part of the 2007 Plan {ali options are priced at $1.60 each and
expire in ten years), which vest ratably on October 1, 2007, April 1, 2008 and October 1, 2008, Mr. McCoy
received 200,000 options as part of the 2006 Plan (all options are priced at $2.15 each and expire in five years),
with 100,000 vested at time of issuance and the remaining 100,000 vesting one year from date of issuance. For
the 2005 Plan, Mr. McCoy received 500,000 options, with 250,000 vested and the remaining 250,000 to vest
upon meeting certain Company performance criteria, which were satisfied. All of these options have an exercise
price of $1.00 each and have a ten-year expiration period from the date of issuance.

Mr. Heckman received 20,000 options on October 15, 2007 as part of the 2007 Plan (all options are priced
at $4.05 each and expire in ten years), which vested on the date of grant. Mr. Heckman was appointed Chief
Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary of the Company effective December 31, 2007.

Mr. Bakalar received 100,000 options as part of the 2007 Plan (all options are priced at $1.60 each and
expire in ten years), with vesting in equal parts on Qctober 1, 2007, April 1, 2008 and October 1, 2008. He
received 145,000 options as part of the 2006 Plan (all options are priced at $2.15 each and expire in five years),
with 72,500 vested at time of issuance, and the remaining 72,500 vesting one year from date of issuance. For the
2005 Plan, Mr. Bakalar received 100,000 options, with all 100,000 vested. All of these options have an exercise
price of $1.00 each and have a ten-year expiration period from date of issuance. Mr. Bakalar resigned as Chief
Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary of the Company effective December 31. 2007.

All of the 2,500,000 options available under the 2005 Plan were granted in 20035, The table above indicates
options granted under the Plan to directors and officers in fiscal 2005, a total of 2.000,000 options. The balance
of 500,000 options granted under the 2005 Plan were granted to employees who were not directors or officers,
During 2006, 1,500,000 options were granted under the 2006 Plan, of which 165,000 were granted to employees
who were not directors and officers, and during 2007, 1,493,600 options were granted under the 2007 Plan, of
which 193,600 were granted o employees who were not directors or officers.

Stock Option Plans

Our board of directors adopied the 2005 Plan on September 1, 2005. The 2005 Plan authorizes us to issue
2,500,000 shares of our common stock for issuance upon exercise of options and grant of restricted stock awards.
We have issued all of the options available under the 2005 Plan. The grants under the 2005 Plan were effective
upon shareholder approval of the 2005 Plan.

On January 17, 2006, our Board adopted the 2006 Plan, which authorizes us to reserve 1,500,000 shares for
future grants under it. We have tssued all 1,500,000 of the options available under the 2006 Plan. The grants
under the 2006 Plan were effective upon shareholder approval of the Plan.

On January 26, 2007, our Board adopted the 2007 Plan, which authorizes us to reserve 1,500,000 shares for
future grants under it. We have issued 1,493,600 of the options available under the 2007 Plan.

On January 2, 2008, our Board adopted the 2008 Plan. The 2008 Plan authorizes us to reserve 1,000,000
shares for future grants under it. We have issued 900,000 of the options available under the 2008 Plan. The grants
under the 2008 Plan will be effective upon stockholder approval of the 2008 Plan. The 2005 Plan, 2006 Plan,
2007 Plan and the 2008 Plan are referred to as the “Plans.”

The Plans authorize us to grant (i) to the key employees incentive stock options (except for the 2007 Plan) to
purchase shares of common stock and non-qualified stock options 10 purchase shares of common stock and

restricted stock awards, and (ii) 1o non-employee directors and consultants’ non-qualified stock options and
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restricted stock. Our Compensation Committee will administer the Plans by making recommendations to the
board or determinations regarding the persons to whom options or restricted stock should be granted and the
amount, terms, conditions and restrictions of the awards.

Incentive stock options granted under the 2005 and 2006 Plans must have an exercise price at least equal to
100% of the fair market value of the common stock as of the date of grant. Incentive stock options granted to any
person who owns, immediately after the grant, stock possessing more than 10% of the combined voting power of
all classes of our stock, or of any parent or subsidiary corporation, must have an exercise price at least equal to
110% of the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant. Non-statutory stock options may have
exercise prices as determined by our Compensation Committee.

The Compensation Committee is also authorized to grant restricted stock awards under the Plans. A
restricted stock award is a grant of shares of the common stock that is subject to restrictions on transferability,
risk of forfeiture and other restrictions and that may be forfeited in the event of certain terminations of
employment or service prior to the end of a restricted period specified by the Compensation Committee.

Compensation of Directors and Advisory Board Members

The non-employee directors received the stock option grants noted in the section above entitled “Stock
Option Grants in Fiscal Year 2007” for agreeing to serve on the Board of Directors in 2007 and 2000, including
on the Audit and Compensation Comunittees. Our Directors and members of our Advisory Board, who are neither
employees nor our affiliates, receive options upon their appoinunent as Directors and as members of our
Advisory Board. Each member of our Advisory Board receives a grant of 10,000 options upon appointment to a
one-year term. The options are exercisable at the price our common stock is trading at on the day of the grant of
such options. The grants to such Directors are set forth in the Section entitled “Stock Option Grants in Fiscal
Year 2007 Beginning in 2007, members of our Board of Directors received compensation of $3,000 per quarter
for their services as Board members, with Leroy C. Ritchie, our lead director, receiving $6,000 in compensation
per quarter. The non-employee directors also receive fees as members of various comumittees of the Board and
are reimbursed for their out-of-pocket costs in attending the meetings of the Board of Directors. See “Corporate
Governance—Director Compensation” for non-employee director compensation to be paid in fiscal 2008.

Director Compensation

Change in Pension

Value and
Nongualified
Fees Earned Non-Equity Deferred
Or Paid Stock Option Incentive Plan  Compensation All Other
inCash  Awards Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation Total
Name (a) $){b) ($) (c} ($} (d) ($} {e) (%) (0 $) (g {$) (h)
Stanton E. Ross .. ... .. 5 — —  § — — — — 5 —
Leroy C. Richie ....... 524000 — $147.982@ — — — $171,982
Edward Juchniewicz ... 320,000 —  $135752™ — — — $155.752
Elliot M. Kaplan ...... $20,000 — 31479821 — — — 5167982

Dantel F. Hutchins .. . .. — — — — —_ — _

(1) Mr. Ross’ option awards are noted in the Executive Compensation table because he did not receive options
for his services as a director.

{2) Option awards noted are related stock option expense during 2007 for the 2007 and 2006 Option Plans. No
options were exercised in 2007.

{3} Mr. Hutchins was appointed to the Board on December 27, 2007 and received no compensation as a director
in 2007,
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Mr. Ross received no cash compensation in 2007 or 2006 as a Board member. All compensation he received
in these years was for his services as an executive officer and is noted in the Executive Compensation table.

For all outside Board inembers (Messrs. Richie, Juchniewicz and Kaplan}, no fees were paid for serving on
the Board during 2005 and 2006. In 2007, outside Board members received compensation of $5,000 per quarter
and Mr. Richie received $6,000 per quarter as lead director.

Mr. Richie’s total compensation noted of $171,982 represents expense attributable to 2607 for options
received as part of the 2007 ($99,065) and 2006 (348,917) Plans.

Mr. Juchiewicz’s total compensation noted of $155,752 represents expense astributable to 2007 for options
received as pant of the 2007 ($99,065) and 2006 (336,687) Plans.

Mr. Kaplan’s total compensation noted of $167,982 represents expense attributable to 2007 for aptions
received as part of the 2007 ($99,065) and 2006 ($48,917) Plans.

Employment Contracts; Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements

We do not have any employment agreements with any of our executive officers.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The following table sets forth, as of February 18, 2008, the number and percentage of outstanding shares of
common stock beneficially owned by (a) each person known by us to beneficially own more than five percent of
such stock, (b) each director of the Company, (c) each named officer of the Company, and (d) all our directors
and executive officers as a group. We have no other class of capital stock outstanding.

Number

of Shares Percent
of Common of

Name and Address of Beneficial OwnerV Stocki2 Class
Stanton B ROSS) L e e e e et 1,838,958 9.9
Leroy C. Richiet®) . e i e 443,334 24
Elliot M. Kaplan@Xsy e 453,334 24
Edward Juchniewiczt® . .. i i e e e e 357,334 1.9
Daniel FoHUIChINS .0 it it et e e et ettt et 10,000 0.1
Robert D). Halert0) e e e 1,033,501 5.6
Kenneth L. McCoy®l i i e e e 766,667 4.1
Jeffrey A, Bakalart® . e s 311,667 1.7
Thomas J. HecKiman . ... ... . e e e e e e e e e 20,000 0.1
All officers and directors as a group (RiNE PErsons) .. ... ... ... ..o, 5,234,796 282

(1) The address of these persons is cfo 7311 West 1301h Street, Suite 170, Overland Park, KS 66213,
(2) The foregoing beneficial owners hold investment and voting power in their shares.

(3) Includes options to purchase 88,541 shares of commen stock exercisable within sixty days. Mr. Ross has
pledged 700,000 common shares to financial institutions as collateral for personal loans.

(4) TIncludes options to purchase 66,667 shares of common stock exercisable within sixty days.
(5) Mr. Kaplan has pledged 150,000 common shares to a financial institution as collateral for a personal loan.

(6) Includes options to purchase 33,333 shares of common stock exercisable within sixty days. Mr. Bakalar
resigned as an officer effective December 31, 2007,
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS
Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions

On September 1, 2004, we borrowed $500,000 from Acme Resources, LLC, a Mississippi limited tiability
company controlled by Brooks Warren, one of our shareholders. The note bears interest at the rate of seven
percent per annum and is due and payable on May 15, 2007. The note is payable in cash or, at the option of the
holder, by conversion of the note into 500,000 shares of our common stock. Charles A. Ross, Jr., who was a
director and officer, personally guaranteed our obligation from September 1, 2004 to May 15, 2006 and agreed to
pledge shares of his common stock to provide cotlateral for the note. The note holder convented the note to
500,000 shares of common stock on May 15, 2007.

On September 25, 2006, we issued options to purchase 10,000 shares of our common stock to Daniels &
Kaplan, P.C. for services rendered. The options have a term of five years and are exercisable at $2.135 per share.
Mr. Elliot Kaplan, a director of the Company since September 2005, chairman of our Compensation Committee
and a member of the Audit Commitlee, was a practicing attorney with Daniels & Kaplan, P.C. through 2006. In
early 2007, Daniels & Kaplan dissolved and such options were returned to the Company for cancellation.

We sell primarily through a network of unaffiliated distributors and sales agents. McCoy’s Marketing, Inc.
serves as an independent sales agent and is wholly-owned by the spouse of Kenneth L. McCoy, who is our Vice
President of Marketing. We paid commissions on sales generated by McCoy's Marketing, Inc. aggregating
$251,982 and $84,800 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. As of December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively, we had accrued and unpaid commissions of $5,107 and $11,590 due to this entity.
Subsequent to December 31, 2007, McCoy’s Marketing, Inc. was dissolved and will no longer serve as an
independent sales agent.

Section 16{a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting

Section 16(a) of the Securities Act of 1934, as amended, requires our executive officers and directors, and
persons who own more than ten percent (10%) of our common stock, to file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission reports of ownership of, and transactions in, our securities and to provide us with copies of those
filings. To our knowledge, based solely on our review of the copies of such forms received by us, or written
representations from certain reporting persons, we believe that during the year ended December 31, 2007, all
filing requirements applicable to our officers, directors and greater than ten percent beneficial owners were
complied with, with the following exceptions: Messrs. Ross, Haler, McCoy, Bakalar, Kaplan, Richie and
Juchniewicz each failed 1o file their initial reports on Form 3 in a timely fashion during fiscal 2007 and
Mr. Juchniewicz failed to file a Form 4 in a timely fashion during fiscal year 2007.

OTHER MATTERS
The Board of Directors is not aware of any other maiters to be presented for action at the Annual

Meeting. However, if any other matter is properly presented at the Annual Meeting, it is the intention of the
persons named in the enclosed proxy to vote the shares they represent as the Board of Directors may recommend.
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ADVANCE NOTICE PROVISIONS FOR
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS AND NOMINATIONS

|

The bylaws of the Company provide that in order for a stockholder to nominate directors at an annual
meeting or to propose business to be brought before an annual meeting, the stockholder must give timely, written
notice to the Secretary of the Company and such notice must be received at the principal executive offices of the
Company not less than 120 days before the date of its release of the proxy statement to stockholders in
connection with its previous year’s annual meeting of stockholders. Such stockholder’s notice shall include, with
respect to each matter that the stockholder proposes to bring before the meeting, a brief description of the
business desired to be brought before the annual meeting and the reasons for conducting such business at the
annual meeting, and with respect to each person whom the stockholder proposes to nominate for election as a
director, al! information relating to such person, including such person’'s written consent to being named in the
proxy statement as a nominee and to serving as a director, that is required under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended. In addition, the stockholder must include in such notice the name and address, as they appear
on the Company’s records, of the stockholder proposing such business or nominating such persons, and the name
and address of the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the proposal or nomination is made, the class and
number of shares of capital stock of the Company that are owned beneficially and of record by such stockholder
of record and by the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the proposal or nomination is made, and any
material interest or relationship that such stockholder of record and/or the beneficial owner, if any, on whose
behalf the proposal or nomination is made may respectively have in such business or with such nominee. At the
request of the Board of Directors, any person nominated for election as a director shall fumish to the Secretary of
the Company the information required to be set forth in a stockholder's notice of nomination which pentains to
the nominee.

FUTURE PROPOSALS OF STOCKHOLDERS

The deadline for stockholders to submit proposals to be considered for inclusion in the proxy statement for
the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders is November 20, 2008.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Nt S o

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and
President

March 18, 2008
Overtand Park, Kansas




Appendix A
DIGITAL ALLY, INC.

2008 STockK OPTION AND RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN

L. PURPOSES.

(a} Background. This 2008 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan was adopted on Janvary 2, 2008 by the
Board of Directors, subject to the approval of the Company’s stockholders. Options granted under the Plan prior
to the stockholders” approval will be effective upon approval of the stockholders as of their respective dates of
grant.

(b) Eligible Award Recipients. The persons eligible to receive Awards are the Employees and Directors of
the Company and its Affiliates.

(c) Available Awards. The purpose of the Plan is to provide a2 means by which eligible recipients may be
given an opportunity to benefit from increases in value of the Common Stock through the granting of the
following: (i) Incentive Stock Options, (ii) Nonqualified Stock Options, (iii) rights to acquire restricted stock, and
(iv) stock appreciation rights.

(d) General Purpose. The Company, by means of the Plan, seeks to retain the services of the group of
persons eligible to receive Awards, 1o secure and retain the services of new members of this group and to provide
incentives for such persons to exert maximum efforts for the suecess of the Company and its Affiliates.

2. DEFINITIONS.

(a) “Affiliate” means any entity thal controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the
Company.

(h) “Award” means any right granted under the Plan, including an Option, a right to acquire restricted
Common Stock, and a stock appreciation right,

(c) “Award Agreement”™ means a written agreement between the Company and a holder of an Award (other
than an Option) evidencing the terms and conditions of an individual Award grant.

(d) “Board” means the board of directors of the Company.

(e) “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder,

(f) “Committee” means a pre-existing or newly formed committee of members of the Board appointed by
the Board in accordance with subsection 3{c).

(g) “Commen Stock™ means the shares of the Company’s common stock par value $0.001 and other rights
with respect to such shares.

{(h} “Company’ means Digital Ally, Inc., a Nevada corporation.
g y p

(i) “Continuous Service” means that the Participant’s service with the Company or an Affiliate, whether as
an Employee or Director is not interrupied or terminated. Unless otherwise provided in an Award Agreement or
Option Agreement, as applicable, the Participant’s Continuous Service shall not be deemed to have terminated
merely because of a change in the capacity in which the Participant renders service to the Company or an
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Affiliate as an Employee or Director or a change in the entity for which the Participant renders such service,
provided that there is no interruption or termination of the Participant’s service to the Company or an Affiliate as
an Employee or Director. The Board, in its sole discretion, may determine whether Continuous Service shall be
considered interrupted in the case of any leave of absence, including sick leave, military leave or any other
personal leave.

(j) ““Covered Employee” means the Company’s chief executive officer and the four (4) other highest
compensated officers of the Company for whom total compensation is required to be reported to stockholders
under the Exchange Act, as determined for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code.

(%) “Director’’ means a inember of the Board of the Company.
p

(1) “Disability” means the Participant’s inability, due to illness, accident, injury, physical or mental
incapacity or other disability, to cany out effectively the duties and obligations to the Company and its Affiliates
perfarmed by such person immediately prior to such disability for a period of at least six (6) months, as
determined in the good faith judgment of the Board.

(m) “Dollars or “$? means United States doflars.

(n) “Employee” means any person employed by the Company or an Affiliate. Service as a Director or
payment of a director’s fee by the Company or an Affiliate alone shall not be sufficient to constitute
“employment” by the Company or an Affiliate.

(0) “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

(p) “Fair Market Value” means, as of any date, the value of the Common Stock determined as follows:

(i) If the Comimon Stock is listed on any established stock exchange, or traded on the Nasdaq Global
Market, the Nasdaq Capital Market or the Nasdag OTC Bulletin Board, the Fair Market Value of the
Common Stock shall be the closing sales price for such stock (or the closing bid, if no sales were reported)
as quoted on such exchange or market (or the exchange or market with the greatest volume of trading in
Common Stock if such stock is traded on more than one such exchange or market) on the last market rading
day prior to the day of delermination, as reported by such exchange or market or such other source as the
Board reasonably deems reliable.

(ii) In the absence of such markets for the Common Stock, the Fair Market Value shall be determined
in good faith by the Board.

{q) “Incentive Stock Option” means an option designated as an incentive stock option in an Option
Agreement and that is granted in accordance with the requirements of. and that conforms to the applicable
provisions of, Section 422 of the Code.

(r) “Independent Director” means (i) a Director who satisfies the definition of Independent Director or
similar definition under the applicable stock exchange or Nasdaq rules and regulations upon which the Common
Stock is traded from time to time and (ii) a Director who either (A} is not a current employee of the Company or
an “affiliated corporation™ (within the meaning of Treasury Regulations promulgated under Section 162(m) of
the Code), is not a former employee of the Company or an “affiliated corporation” receiving compensation for
prior services (other than benefits under a tax qualified pension plan), was not an officer of the Company or an
“affiliated corporation” at any time and is not currently receiving direct or indirect remuneration from the
Company or an “affiliated corporation” for, services in any capacity other than as a Director or (B) is otherwise
considered an “outside director” for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code.
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(s) “Nongualified Stock Option’ means an option that is not designated in an Option Agreement as an
Incentive Stock Option or was not granted in accordance with the requirements of, and does not conform to the
applicable provisions of, Section 422 of the Code.

(t) “Officer” means a person who is an officer of the Company within the meaning of Section 16 of the
Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promutgated thereunder.

(u) “Option™ means an Incentive Stock Option or a Nonqualified Stock Option granted pursuant to the Plan.

(v) “Opfion Agreement” means a written agreement between the Company and an Optionholder evidencing
the terms and conditions of an individual Option grant.

(w) “Optionholder” means a person to whom an Option is granted pursuant to the Plan or, if applicable,
such other person who holds an outstanding Option.

(x) “Participant’’ means a person to whom an Award is granted pursuant to the Plan or, if applicable, such
other person whao holds an outstanding Award.

(y) “Plan” means this Digital Ally, Inc. 2008 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan.

(z) “Rule 16b-3 means Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act or any successor to Rule 16b-3, as
in effect from time to time.

(aa) “Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

(bb) “Ten Percent Stockholder” means a person who owns (or is deemed to own pursuant to
Section 424(d) of the Code} stock possessing more than ten percent (10%) of the total combined voting power of
all classes of stock of the Company or any parent corporation or any subsidiary corporation, both as defined in
Section 424 of the Code,

3. ADMINISTRATION.

(a) Administration by Board. The Board shall administer the Plan unless and until the Board delegates
administration to a Committee, as provided in subsection 3(c). The Board may, at any time and for any reason in
its sole discretion, rescind some or all of such delegation.

(b) Powers of Board. The Board shall have the power, subject to, and within the limitations of, the express
provisions of the Plan:

(i) To determing from time to time which of the persons eligible under the Plan shall be granted
Awards; when and how each Award shall be granted; what type or combination of types of Award shail be
granted; the provisions of each Award granted (which need not be identical), including the time or times
when a person shall be permitted to receive Common Stock pursuant 10 an Award; and the number of shares
of Common Stock with respect to which an Award shall be granted to each such person.

(ii) To construe and interpret the Plan, Awards granted under it, Option Agreements and Award
Agreements, and to establish, amend and revoke rules and regulations for their administration. The Board, in
the exercise of this power, may correct any defect, omission or inconsistency in the Plan or in any Option
Agreement or Award Agreement, in a manner and to the extent it shall deem necessary or expedient to make
the Plan fully effective.

(iii} To amend the Plan, an Award, an Award Agreement or an Option Agreement as provided in
Section 12, provided that the Board shall not amend the exercise price of an option, the Fair Market Value
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of an Award or extend the term of an Option or Award without obtaining the approval of the stockholders if
required by the rules of any stock exchange upon which the Common Stock is listed.

(iv) Generally, to exercise such powers and to perform such acts as the Board deems necessary or
expedient to promote the best interests of the Company which are not in conflict with the provisions of the
Plan.

(c) Delegation to Committee.

(i) General. The Board may delegate administration of the Plan and its powers and duties thereunder to
a Committee or Committees, and the term “Committee” shall apply to any person or persons to whom such
authority has been delegated. Upon such delegation, the Committee shall have the powers theretofore
possessed by the Board, including the power to delegate to a subcomimittee any of the administrative powers
the Committee is authorized to exercise (and references in this Plan to the Board shall thereafter be deemed
to include the Committee or subcommittee), subject, however, to such resolutions, not inconsistent with the
provisions of the Plan, as may be adopted from time 1o time by the Board. In its absolute discretion, the
Board may at any time and from time to time exercise any and all rights and duties of the Committee under
this Plan, except respecting matters under Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act or Section 162(m) of the Code,
or any rules or regulations issued thereunder, which are required to be determined in the sole discretion of
the Committee.

(ii) Committee Composition. A Commitiee shal! consist solely of two or more Independent Directors.
Within the scope of its authority, the Board or the Committee may (1) delegate to a committee of one or
more members of the Board who are not Independent Directors the authority to grant Awards to eligible
persons who are either {a) not then Covered Employees and are not expected to be Covered Employees at
the time of recognition of income resulting from such Award or (b) not persons with respect to whom the
Company wishes to comply with Section 162(m) of the Code, and/or (2) delegate to a committee of ore or
more members of the Board who are not independent Directors or to the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer the authority to grant Awards to eligible persons who are not then subject to Section 16 of the
Exchange Act.

(d) Effect of Board’s Decision; No Liability. All determinations, interpretations and constructions made by
the Board in good faith shall not be subject to review by any person and shall be final, binding and conclusive on
all persons. No member of the Board or the Comimittee or any person to whom duties hereunder have been
delegated shall be liable for any action, interpretation or determination made in good faith, and such persons shall
be entitled to full indemnification and reimbursement consistent with applicable law and in the manner provided
in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, as the same may be amended from time to time, or as
otherwise provided in any agreement between any such member and the Company.

4. STOCK SUBJECT TO THE PLAN.

(a) Stock Reserve. Subject to the provisions of Section 11 relating to adjustmenis upon changes in Common
Stock, the shares of Common Stock that may be issued pursuant to Awards shall not exceed in the aggregate one
million (1,000,000) shares of Common Stock.

{b) Reversion of Stock to the Steck Reserve. If any Award shall for any reason expire or otherwise
terminate, in whole or in pan, without having been exercised in full, the shares of Commeon Stock not acquired
under such Award shall revert to and again become available for issuance under the Plan.

(¢) Source of Stock. The Common Stock subject to the Plan may be unissued stock or reacquired stock,
bought on the market or otherwise.
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5.ELIGIBILITY.

(a) Eligibility for Specific Awards. Incentive Stock Options may be granted only to Employees. Awards
other than Incentive Stock Options may be granted to Employees and Directors.

(b) Ten Percent Stockholders. A Ten Percent Stockholder shall not be granted an Incentive Stock Option
unless the exercise price of such Option is at least one hundred ten percent (110%) of the Fair Market Value of
the Common Stock at the date of grant and the Option is not exercisable after the expiration of five (5) years
from the date of grant.

6. OPTION PROVISIONS.

Each Option Agreement shalt be subject to the terms and conditions of this Plan. Each Option and Option
Agreement shall be in such form and shall contain such terms and conditions as the Board shall deem
appropriate. All Options shall be separately designated Incentive Stock Options or Nonqualified Stock Options a1
the time of grant, and, if certificates are issued, a separate certificate or certificates will be issued for the shares of
Common Stock purchased on exercise of each type of Option. The provisions of separate Options need not be
identical.

(a) Provisions Applicable to All Options.

(i) Consideration, The purchase price of the shares of Common Stock acquired pursuant to an Option
shall be paid as follows: (a) in cash or by certified or official bank check, payable to the order of the
Company, in the amount (the “Purchase Price™) equal to the exercise price of the Option multiplied by the
number of shares plus payment of all taxes applicable upon such exercise; (b} with shares owned by the
Optionholder having a Fair Market Value at the time the Option is exercised equal to the Purchase Price
plus payment in cash of all taxes applicable upon such exercise, with the prior approval of the Board; (c) by
surrendering to the Company the right to acquire a number of shares having an aggregate value such that the
amount by which the Fair Market Value of such shares exceeds the aggregate exercise price is equal to the
Purchase Price plus payment in cash of all taxes applicable upon such exercise, with the prior approval of
the Board; {d) any combination of the foregoing; or (¢} a manner acceptable 10 the Board.

(ii) Vesting Generally. An Option may (A) vest, and thercfore become exercisable, in periodic
installments that may, but need not, be equal, or (B) be fully vested at the time of grant. The Option may be
subject to such other terms and conditions on the time or times when it may be exercised (which may be
based on performance or other criteria) as the Board may deem appropriate. The vesting provisions, if any,
of individual Options may vary. The provisions of this subsection 6(a)(ii) are subject to any Option
Agreement provisions governing the minimum number of Commeon Stock as to which an Option may be
exercised.

(iii} Termination of Continuous Service. Unless otherwise provided in the Option Agreement, in the
event an Optionholder’s Continuous Service terminates (other than upon the Optionholder’s death,
Disability, retirement or as a result of a Change of Control}, all Options held by the Optionholder shalt
immediately terminate; provided, however, that an Option Agreement may provide that if an Optionholder’s
Continuous Service is terminated for reasons other than for cause, all vested Options held by such person
shall continue to be exercisable until the earlier of the expiration date of such Option or ninety (90} days
after the date of such termination. All such vested Options not exercised within the period described in the
preceding sentence shall terminate.

(iv) Disability or Death of Optionholder. Unless otherwise provided in the Option Agreement, in the
event of an Optionholder’s Disability or death, all unvested Options shall immediately terminate, and all
vested Options held by such person shall continue to be exercisable for twelve months after the date of such
Disability or death. All such vested Options not exercised within such twelve-month period shall terminate.
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(v) Retirement. Unless otherwise provided in the Option Agreement, in the event of the
Optionholder’s retirement, all unvested Options shall automatically vest on the date of such retirement and
all Options shall be exercisable for the eartier of twelve (12) months after such retirement date or the
expiration date of such Options. All such Options not exercised within the period described in the preceding
sentence shall terminate.

(b) Provisions Applicable to Incentive Stock Options.

(i) Term. Subject 10 the provisions of subsection 5(b) regarding Ten Percem Stockholders, no
Incentive Stock Option shall be exercisable after the expiration of ten (10) years from the date it was
granted. Further, no grant of an Incentive Stock Option shall be made under this Plan more than ten
(10) years after the date the Plan is approved by the stockholders of the Company.

(ii) Exercise Price of an Incentive Stock Option. Subject to the provisions of subsection 5(b)
regarding Ten Percent Stockholders, the exercise price of each Incentive Stock Option shall be not less than
one hundred percent (100%) of the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock subject to the Option on the
date the Option is granted.

(iii) Transferability of an Incentive Stock Option. An Incentive Stock Option shall not be
transferable except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution and shall be exercisable during the
lifetime of the Optionholder only by the Optionholder.

(iv) Incentive Stock Option $100,000 Limitation. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan or
an Option Agreement, the aggregate Fair Market Value of the Common Stock with respect to which
Incentive Stock Options are exercisable for the first time by an Optionholder in any calendar year, under the
Plan or any other option plan of the Company or its Affiliates, shall not exceed One Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($100,000). For this purpose, the Fair Market Vaiue of the Common Stock shall be determined as of
the time an Option is granted. The Options or portions thereof which exceed such limit (according to the
order in which they were granted) shall be treated as Nonqualified Stock Options.

(¢) Provisions Applicable to Nonqualified Stock Options.

(i) Exercise Price of a Nonqualified Stock Option. The exercise price of each Nonqualified Stock
Option shall be not less than one hundred percent (100%}) of the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock
subject to the Option on the date the Option is granted.

(ii) Transferability of a Nonqualified Stock Option. A Nonqualified Stock Option shall be
transferable, if at all, 1o the extent provided in the Option Agreement. If the Option Agreement does not
provide for transferability, then the Nonqualified Stock Option shall not be transferable except by will or by
the laws of descent and distribution and shall be exercisable during the lifetime of the Optionholder only by
the Optionholder.

7. PROVISIONS OF AWARDS OTHER THAN OPTIONS.

(a) Restricted Stock Awards. Each restricted stock Award agreement shall be in such form and shall
contain such restrictions, terms and conditions, if any, as the Board shall deem appropriate and shall be subject 10
the terms and conditions of this Plan. The teris and conditions of restricted stock Award Agreements may
change from time to time, and the terms and conditions of separate restricted stock Award Agreements need not
be identical, but each restricted stock Award Agreement shall include (through incorporation of provisions hereof
by reference in the agreement or otherwise) the substance of each of the following provisions:

(i} Consideration. A restricted stock Award may be awarded in consideration for past services actually
rendered, or for future services to be rendered, to the Company or an Affiliate for its benefit.

(ii} Vesting. Common Stock awarded under the restricied stock Award Agreement may {A) be subject
to a vesting schedule o be determined by the Board or (B) be fully vested at the time of grant.

(iii) Termination of Participant’s Continuous Service. Unless otherwise provided in the restricted
stock Award Agreement, in the event a Participant’s Continuous Service terminates prior to a vesting date
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set forth in the restricted stock Award Agreement, any unvested restricted stock Award shall be forfeited
and automatically transferred to and reacquired by the Company at no cost to the Company, and neither the
Participant nor his or her heirs, executors, administrators or successors shall have any right or interest in the
restricted stock Award. Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless otherwise provided in the restricted stock
Award agreement, in the event a Participant’s Continuous Service terminates as a result of (A) being
terminated by the Company for reasons other than for cause, (B) death, (C) Disability, (D) retirement, or
(E) a Change of Control (subject 10 the provisions of Section !1(c) hereof), then any unvested restricted
stock Award shall vest immediately upon such date.

(iv} Transferability. Rights to acquire Common Stock under the restricted siock Award Agreement shall
be transferable by the Participant only upon such terms and conditions as are set forth in the restricted stock
Award Agreement, as the Board shall determine in its discretion, so long as Common Stock awarded under the
restricted stock Award Agreement remain subject to the terms of the restricted stock Award Agreement.

{b) Grant of Stock Appreciation Rights. Stock appreciation rights to receive in shares of Common Stock
the excess of the Fair Market Value of Common Stock on the date the rights are surrendered over the Fair Market
Value of Common Stock on the date of grant may be granted to any Employee or Director selected by the Board.
A stock appreciation right may be granted (i) in connection and simultaneously with the grant of another Award,
(ii) with respect to a previously granted Award, or (iii) independent of another Award. A stock appreciation right
shall be subject to such terms and conditions not inconsistent with this Plan as the Board shall impose and shall
be evidenced by a writien stock appreciation right agreement, which shall be executed by the Panticipant and an
authorized officer of the Company. The Board, in its discretion, may determine whether a stock appreciation
right is to qualify as performance-based compensation as described in Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code and
stock appreciation right agreements evidencing stock appreciation rights intended to so qualify shall contain such
terms and conditions as may be necessary 1o meet the applicable provisions of Section 162(m) of the Code. The
Board may, in its discretion and on such terms as it deems appropriate, require as a condition of the grant of a
stock appreciation right that the Participant surrender for cancellation some or all of the Awards previously
granted to such person under this Plan or otherwise. A stock appreciation right, the grant of which is conditioned
upon such surrender, may have an exercise price lower (or higher) than the exercise price of the surrendered
Award, may contain such cther terms as the Board deems appropriate, and shall be exercisable in accordance
with its terms, without regard to the number of shares, price, exercise period or any other term or condition of
such surrendered Award.

8. AVAILABILITY OF STOCK. Subject to the restrictions set forth in Section 4(a}, during the terms of the
Awards, the Company shall keep available at all times the number of shares of Common Stock required to satisfy
such Awards.

9. USE OF PROCEEDS FROM STOCK.

Proceeds from the sale of Common Stock pursuant to Awards shall constitute general funds of the Company.

10. MISCELLANEOQUS.

{a) Exercise of Awards. Awards shall be exercisable at such times, or upon the occurrence of such event or
events as the Board shall determine at or subsequent to grant. Awards may be exercised in whole or in part.
Common Stock purchased upon the exercise of an Award shall be paid for in full at the time of such purchase.

(b} Acceleration of Exercisability and Vesting. The Board shail have the power to accelerate the time at
which an Award may first be exercised or the time during which an Award or any part thereof will vest in
accordance with the Plan, notwithstanding the provisions in the Award stating the time at which it may first be
exercised or the time during which it will vest.

(c) Stockholder Rights.

(i) Options. Unless otherwise provided in and upon the terms and conditions in the Option Agreement,
no Participant shall be deemed to be the holder of, or to have any of the rights of a holder with respect to,
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any Common Stock subject to an Qption unless and unti! such Participant has satisfied all requirements for
exercise of, and has exercised, the Option pursuant to its terms.

(ii) Restricted Stock. Unless otherwise provided in and upon the terms and conditions in the restricted
stock Award Agreement, a Participant shall have the right to receive all dividends and other distributions
paid or made respecting such restricted stock, provided, however, no unvested restricted stock shall have
any voting rights of a stockholder respecting such unvested restricted stock unless and until such unvested
restricted stock become vested.

(d) No Employment or other Service Rights. Nothing in the Plan or any instrument executed or Award
granted pursuant thereto shall confer upon any Participant any right to continue to serve the Company or an
Affiliate in the capacity in effect at the time the Award was granted, or any other capacity, or shall affect the
right of the Company or an Affiliate to terminate with or without notice and with or without cause (i} the
employment of an Employee or an Affiliate or (if} the service of a Director of the Company or an Affiliate.

{e) Withholding Obligations. If the Company has or will have a legal obligation to withhold the taxes
related to the grant, vesting or exercise of the Award, such Award may not be granted, vested or exercised in
whole or in part, unless such tax obligation is first satisfied in a manner satisfactory to the Company. To the
extent provided by the terms of an Award Agreement or Option Agreement, the Participant may satisfy any
federal, state or loca) 1ax withholding obligation relating to the exercise or acquisition of Common Stock under
an Award by any of the following means (in addition to the Company’s right to withhold from any compensation
paid to the Participant by the Company} or by a combination of such means: (i} tendering a cash payment in
Dollars; (ii) authorizing the Company to withhold Common Stock from the Common Stock otherwise issuable to
the Participant as a result of the exercise or acquisition of Common Stock under the Award, provided, however,
that no shares of Common Stock are withheld with a value exceeding the minimum amount of tax required to be
withheld by law; or (iii) delivering 10 the Company owned and unencumbered Common Stock.

(I} Listing and Qualification of Stock. This Plan and the grant and exercise of Awards hereunder, and the
obligation of the Company 10 sell and deliver Common Stock under such Awards, shall be subject to all
applicable United States federal and state laws, rules and regulations, and any other laws applicable to the
Company, and 10 such approvals by any govemment or regulatory agency as may be required. The Company, in
its discretion, may postpone the issuance or delivery of Comumon Stock upon any exercise of an Award until
completion of any stock exchange listing, or the receipt of any required approval from any stock exchange or
other qualification of such Common Stock under any United States federal or state law rule or regulation as the
Company may consider appropriate, and may require any individual to whom an Award is granted, such
individual’s beneficiary or legal representative, as applicable, to make such representations and fumish such
information as the Board may consider necessary, desirable or advisable in connection with the issuance or
delivery of the Common Stock in compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

(g) Non-Uniform Determinations. Thé Board’s determinations under this Plan (including, without
limitation, determinations of the persons 1o receive Awards, the form, term, provisions, amount and timing of the
gram of such Awards and of the agreements evidencing the same) need not be uniform and may be made by it
selectively among persons who receive, or are eligible to receive, Awards under this Plan, whether or not such
persons are similarly situated.

11. ADJUSTMENTS UPON CHANGES IN STOCK.

(a) Capitalization Adjustments. If any change is made in the Common Stock subject to the Plan, or subject
to any Award, without the receipt of consideration by the Company (through merger, consolidation,
reorganization, recapitalization, reincorporation, stock dividend, dividend in propenty other than cash, stock split,
liquidating dividend, combination of stock, exchange of stock, change in corporate structure or other transaction),
the Plan will be appropriately adjusted in the class(es) and maximum number of securities subject 1o the Plan
pursuant to subsection 4(a) and the maximum number of securities subject to award to any person pursuant 1o
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subsection 5(c), and the outstanding Awards will be appropriately adjusied in the class(es) and number of
securities and price per stock of Common Stock subject to such outstanding Awards. The Board shall make such
adjustments, and its determination shatl be final, binding and conclusive. (The conversion of any convertible
securities of the Company shall not be treated as a transaction “without receipt of consideration” by the
Company.)

(b} Dissolution or Liquidation. In the event of a dissolution or liquidation of the Company, then all
outstanding Awards shall terminate immediately prior to such event.

(c) Asset Sale, Merger, Consolidation or Reverse Merger. In the event of a Change of Control (as defined
below), any unvested Awards shall vest immediately prior 1o the closing of the Change of Control, and the Board
shall have the power and discretion to provide for the Panticipant’s election alternatives regarding the terms and
conditions for the exercise of, or modification of, any outstanding Awards granted hereunder, provided, however,
such alternatives shall not affect the then current exercise provisions without such Participant’s consent. The
Board may provide that Awards granted hereunder must be exercised in connection with the closing of such
transaction, and that if not so exercised such Awards will expire. Any such determinations by the Board may be
made generally with respect to all Participants, or may be made on a case-by-case basis with respect to particular
Participants. For the purpose of this Plan, a “Change of Control” shall have occurred in the event one or more
persons acting individually or as a group (i) acquires sufficient additional stock to constitute more than fifty
percent (50%) of (A) the total Fair Market Value of all Common Stock issued and outstanding or (B) the total
voling power of all shares of capital stock authorized to vote for the election of directors; (ii} acquires, in a
twelve (12) month pertod, thiny-five percent (35%) or more of the voting power of all shares of capital stock
authorized to vote for the election of directors, or alternatively a majority of the members of the board is replaced
during any twelve (12) month period by directors whose appointiment was not endorsed by a majority of the
members of the board; or (iii) acquires, during a twelve (12) month period, more than forty percent (40%) of the
total gross fair market value of all of the Company’s assets. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of this
Section 11(c) shall not apply 10 (i) any transaction involving any stockholder that individually or as a group owns
more than fifty percent (50%}) of the outstanding Common Stock on the date this Plan is approved by the
Company’s stockhaolders, until such time as such stockholder first awns less than forty percent (40%) of the total
outstanding Common Stock, or (i1) any transaction undertaken for the purpose of reincorporating the Company
under the laws of another jurisdiction, if such transaction does not materially affect the beneficial ownership of
the Company’s capital stock.

12. AMENDMENT OF THE PLAN AND AWARDS.

{2) Amendment of Plan. The Board at any time, and from time to time, may amend the Plan. However,
except as provided in Section 11 relating to adjustments upon changes in Common Stock, no amendment shall be
effective unless approved by the stockholders of the Company to the extent stockholder approval is necessary to
satisfy the requirements of Section 422 of the Code, Rule 16b-3 or any applicable Nasdaq or securities exchange
listing requirements,

(b) Stockholder Approval. The Board may, in its sole discretion, submit any other amendment to the Plan
for stockholder approval, including, but not [imited to, amendmenis to the Plan intended to satisfy the
requirements of Section 162(m) of the Code and the regulations thereunder regarding the exclusion of
performance-based compensation from the limit on corporate deductibility of compensation paid to certain
executive officers.

{c) Contemplated Amendments. It is cxpressly contemplated that the Board may amend the Plan in any
respect the Board deems necessary or advisable to provide eligible Employees with the maximum benefits
provided or to be provided under the provisions of the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder relating
to Incentive Stock Options and/or to bring the Plan and/or Incentive Stock Options granted under it into
compliance therewith.
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(d) No Impairment of Rights. Rights under any Award granted before amendment of the Plan shall not be
impaired by any amendment of the Plan unless the Participant consents in writing.

(e) Amendment of Awards. Subject to Section 3(b)(iii}, the Board at any time, and from time to time, may
amend the terms of any one or more Awards; provided, however, that the rights under any Award shall not be
impaired by any such amendment unless the applicable Participant consents in writing.

13. TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE PLAN.

{(a) Plan Term. The Board may suspend or terminate the Plan at any time. Unless sooner terminated, the
Plan shalt terminate on the day before the tenth {10th) anniversary of the date the Plan is adopted by the
stockholders of the Company. No Awards may be granted under the Plan while the Plan is suspended or after it is
terminated.

(b) No Impairment of Rights. Suspension or termination of the Plan shall not impair rights and obligations
under any Award granted while the Plan is in effect except with the writien consent of the Participant.

(c) Savings Clause. This Plan is intended to comply in all aspects with applicable laws and regulations. In
case any one or more of the provisions of this Plan shall be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect
under applicable law or regulation, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not
in any way be affected or impaired thereby and the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision shall be deemed
null and void; however, to the extent permissible by law, any provision which could be deemed null and void
shall first be construed, interpreted or revised retroactively to permit this Plan to be construed in compliance with
all applicable laws so as 1o foster the intent of this Plan.

14. EFFECTIVE DATE OF PLAN.

The Plan shall become effective as determined by the Board, but no Award shall be exercised (or, in the
case of a restricted stock Award, shall be granted) unless and until the Plan has been approved by the
stockholders of the Company, which approval shall be within twelve (12} months before or after the date the Plan
is adopted by the Board.

15. CHOICE OF LAW.

The law of the state of Nevada shall govern all questions concerning the consiruction, validity and
interpretation of this Plan, without regard 1o such state’s conflict of laws rules.

(The Plan was adopted by the Board of Directors on January 2, 2008 and amended by it effective March 14,
2008.)
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NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annua) report contains forward-looking statements as that term is defined in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking
statements by terminology such as “may,” “should,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,”
“continue,” “intend,” and other variations of these words or comparable words. In addition, any statements that refer to expectations,
projections or other characterizations of events, circumstances or trends and that do not relate to historical matters are forward-looking
statements. These forward-looking statements are based largely on our expectations or forecasts of future events, can be affected by
inaccurate assumptions, and are subject to various business risks and known and unknown uncertainties, a number of which are
beyond our control. Therefore, actual results could differ materially from the forward-looking statements contained in this document,
and you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. These statements are only predictions and
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, including the risks in the section entitled “Risk Factors,” that may
cause our or our industry's actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future
results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements.

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee
future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date of this report. Except as required by law, we do not undertake to update or revise any of
the forward-looking statements to conform these statements to actual results, whether asa result of new information, future events or
otherwise.

As used in this annual report, “Digital Ally,” the “Company,” “we,” “us,” or “our” refer to Digital Ally, Inc., unless otherwise
indicated.




PART I

ITEM 1. Description of Business.

Digital Ally produces digital video imaging and storage products for use in law enforcement and security applications. Qur
current products are a low cost, easy-to-install, in-car digital video rear view mirror and a digital video flashlight. These products
make self-contained video and audio recordings onto flash memory cards that are incorporated into the body of the digital video rear
view mitror and the flashlight. We sell our products to law enforcement agencies and other security organizations and for consumer
and commercial applications through direct sales and third-party distributors.

We intend to also produce other digital video devices in the future. We believe that the same high-performance digital video
recording may be incorporated into a wide array of other products; therefore, we plan to offer our technology on an original equipment
manufacturing basis to those non-competing manufacturers who may have existing products and distribution capabilities,

Corporate History

We were incorporated in Nevada on December 13, 2000 as Vegas Petra, Inc, From that date until November 30, 2004, when we
entered into a Plan of Merger with Digital Ally, Inc., a Nevada corporation which was formerly known as Trophy Tech Corporation
(the “Acquired Company”), we had not conducted any operations and were a closely-held company. In the merger, the stockholders of
the Acquired Company received one of our shares of comrmon stock for each three shares of the Acquired Company they owned,
resulting in the issuance of 5,000,000 shares of our common stock to stockholders of the Acquired Company. Qur original
stuckholders retained 1,500,000 shares of our common stock after they transferred 1,000,000 of their shares to a former officer,
director and principal stockholder of the Acquired Company, in connection with, but not as a part of, the merger. We were renamed
Digital Ally, Inc. after the merger.

The Acquired Company, which was incorporated on May 16, 2003, engaged in the design, development, marketing and sale of
bu.w hunting-related products. Its principal product was a digital video recording system for use in the bow hunting industry. It
changed its business plan in 2004 to adapt its digital video recording system for use in the law enforcement and security markets. We
began shipments of our in-car digital video rear view mirror in March 2006 and have enjoyed tremendous growth in sales since
commencement of shipments. We are also shipping digital video flashlights; however, our digital mirror product has been our
predominant source of revenues to date.

On May 3, 2007, our registration statement on Form SB-2 was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC"}, which registered 6,733,750 shares of our common stock for resale. On January 2, 2008, we commenced trading on the
NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “DGLY.” We conduct our business from 7311 West 130th Street, Suite 170, Overland
Park, Kansas 66213. Our telephone number is (913) 814-7774.

Products

We produce and sell two products: an in-car digital video rear view mirror and a digital video flashlight, each of which use our
technology in digital video compression, recording and storage. We also intend to produce and sell other digital video devices in the
future. All of these products incorporate our standards-based digital compression capability that allows the recording of significant
time periods on a chip and circuit board that can be designed into small form factors. In addition to selling our products directly to our
customers, we may sell assemblies or complete units containing our technology incorporating digital video and sound recording for
use in non-competing products to OEM (Original Equipment Manufacturer) customers.

In-Car Digital Video System
In-car video systems for patrol cars are now a necessity and have generally become standard. Current systems are digital and
VHS-based with cameras mounted in the windshield and the recording device generally in the trunk. Most manufacturers have already

developed or are at least have begun transitioning to digital video, but many have had problems obtaining the appropriate technology.

The digital video rear view mirror unit is a self-contained video recorder, microphone and digital storage that is integrated into a
rear-view mirror, with a monitor, GPS and 900 MHz audio transceiver,




Our in-car digital video rear view mirror has the following features:

. wide angle zoom color camera;

. standards-based video and audio compression and recording;

. system is concealed in the rear view mirror, replacing factory rear view mirror;
. monitor in rear-view mirror is invisible when not activated; -

. eliminates need for analog tapes to store and catalogue;

. eastly installs in any vehicle;

. archive to computers, servers, DVDs, CID-ROMs, or file servers;

. 900 MHz audio transceiver with autoratic activation;

. marks exact location of incident with integrated GPS;

. playback using Windows Media Player;
. proprietary software protects the chain of custody; and

. records to rugged and durable solid state memory.

We believe there are several other markets and industries which may find our in-car digital video rear view mirror unit useful ,
such as the school bus, mass transit and delivery service industries among others. These potential markets could find our units
attractive from a feature and cost perspective as compared to other providers.

Digital Video Flashiight

The digital video flashlight is a high-quality police-type flashlight with a built-in digital video and audio recording system. All
recorded data is stored in an on-board flash memory for later download to a computer. From the computer, the images and sound can
be stored, reviewed or bumed to a DVD or CD. Storage can take place at the police station or transmitted by Interet to a service
provider or central storage and recording facility. Edach frame of the video can be date and time stamped to provide evidence that
protects the officer and the suspect.

The unit is a high-quality, water-resistant, machined aluminum body law enforcement style flashlight that integrates a complete
digital video and audio recording system. The system is so compact that the size, shape and weight of the digital video flashlight are
virtually the same as a traditional flashtight. This allows the use of the flashlight as a standard tactical flashlight or as a defense baton
if necessary. As a self contained unit, the digital video flashlight does not rely on transmitters, cables, external batteries or a separate
recorder. The digital video flashlight makes room for the digital video system by replacing regular flashlight bulbs with new ultra-
bright light-emitting diode (“LED”) technology, as opposed to fragile conventional lamps. The small physical size and mechanical
ruggedness of LED’s make them ideal for use in professional flashlights.

We believe that the brightness and light quality is superior to incandescent bulbs. The digital video recording system is
xtremely easy to use and requires only one button to start and stop recording. There are no complicated controls or distracting
isplays to interfere with a police officer’s normal activities or compromise his safety. All internal settings are controlled through an
n-board USB interface or by plugging into an external video monitor, The digital video flashlight includes proprietary software for
ownloading and managing video,

In addition to law enforcement, the digital video flashlight has potential applications in lighter-duty activities that require a less
geed flashlight as compared to law enforcement applications. Such lighter-duty applications include private security, the insurance
ndustry, homeland security and underground inspections of telephone, cable, water and sewer lines. Home inspectors ¢an use the
igital video flashlight te record and explain property defects or features, Private security firms can use the digital video flashlight to
cord rounds and provide evidence of inspection and presence, replacing the current system of time clocks and punch cards. Other
otential users are the military, fire departments, coast guard, border patrol and customs inspectors.




Our digital video flashlight product has the following features:

. virtually the same size and shape as a traditional flashlight;

. easy to use, requiring one button to start and stop recording;

. on-board flash memory card;

. extra-wide field of view for digital video and audio recording;

. each frame of video can be date and time stamped;

. LED flashlight bulb is an improvement over conventional bulbs; and

. proprietary chain of custody software to protect delivery of data back to the police station.
Other Products

During the last year, we have increased our research and development efforts to meet the varying needs of our customers,
enhance our existing products and commence development of new products and product categories. Qur research and development
efforts are intended to maintain and enhance our competitiveness in the market niche we have carved out, as well as positioning us to
compete in diverse markets outside of law enforcement.

Original Equipment Manufacturers

Built-in digital video recording is growing in multiple uses. For example, Taser International, Inc. has demonstrated the use of
digital video recording for its hand held stun gun. Applications exist in many sports products, such as baseball and tennis speed
measuring instruments. Medical practitioners are recording procedures for liability and teaching purposes, many with recording
capabilities built into their devices. Medical laboratories are recording digital photographs and video of slides and samples to provide
proof of results and to transmit to other researchers.

Rather than encouraging the creation of technology that could prospectively compete with us, we may sell our board-level
components or complete units for inclusion in non-competing products marketed under other brand names. By making it easy for other
companies to obtain digital video technology, we can provide a bridge between the large semiconductor companies and smaller
businesses with distinct and effective marketing skills.

We expect that our role in original equipment manufacturing operations will be to utilize our design and production expertise to
provide subsystems that can be incorporated into the customer’s product. Once a design is accepted, fabrication can be done by one of
our subcontractors. Our original equipment manufacturing operations are not expected to be a significant part of our revenue and
profitability in our early stages.

We have no agreements with original equipment manufacturing customers for incorporating our technology into their products.
In such a relationship we might supply product labeled with the customer’s brand or license others to use our technology. This may be
a potentially lucrative market for us in the future. To date, we have concentrated our time and resources in the development of our
own technology and brand. Our intention in the near term is to pursue those opportunities that provide synergies with our existing
products and make minimal demands on our staff. In the future, as resources become available and as we identify appropriate market
niches, we may decide to devote a portion of our efforts to the active acquisition and servicing of original equipment manufacturing
accounts.

Market and Industry Overview

A new adaptation of technology usually determines its own market size. The number of potential uses of the digital video
flashlight and other products make it difficult to quantify. We intend to pursue initial markets in the law enforcement community,
private security companies, homeland security market, general consumer and commercial markets and the original equipment
manufacturing market.




Law Enforcement

We believe that one of the most valuable uses of our digital video flashtight may be in the recording of roadside DW! sobriety
tests. According to the Department of Justice, in 2003 there were almost 14 million arrests each year, with approximately 10%, or
1.4 million of those arrests for DWI (Source: FBI Crime Reports, Crime in the United States, annually.) Without some form of video
or audio recording, court proceedings usually consist of the police officer’s word against the suspect’s. Records show that where there
is video evidence to back up officer testimony, conviction rates increase substantially. Video evidence also helps to protect police
departments against frivolous lawsuits.

The largest source of police video evidence today is in-car video. Unfortunately, some police cars still do not have in-car video,
and in those that do, the camera usually points forward rather than to the side of the road where the sobriety test takes place. The in-
car video is typically of little use for domestic violence investigations, burglary or theft investigations, disorderly conduct calls or
simple assaults. In all of these cases the digital video flashlight may provide recorded evidence of the suspect’s actions and reactions
to police intervention.

Additionally, motorcycle patrolmen rarely have video systems, The digital video flashlight can become an essential tool for the
motorcycle policeman to provide the evidence that previously had not been available.

Crime scene investigations, including detailed photography, takes up a large part of the budgets of metropolitan police forces.
The digital video flashlight may record a significant portion of such evidence at a much lower cost, for gathering, analyzing and
storing data/evidence.

There are approximately 18,000 law enforcement agencies in the United States, (Source: U.S. Department of Justice, Bureau of
Justice Statistics, Census of State and Local Law Enforcement Agencies, 2000.) Smaller departments with 20 or fewer officers account
for the majority of sworn officers. (Source: National Institute of Justice, Law Enforcement Technology ~ Are Small and Rural
Agencies Equipped and Trained? June 2004.)

Private Security Companies

There are approximately 10,000 private security agencies in the United States who employ over two million guards. (Source:
International Association of Chiefs of Police, President's Message: Building Partnerships between Private-Sector Security and
Public-Sector Police, 2004.) In 1997, Americans were spending over 390 billion a year on private security services. (Source: National
Center for Policy Analysis, citing “Welcome to the New World of Private Security,” Ecoromist, April 17, 1997.) Police forces use
video systems for proof of correct conduct by officers, but private security services usually have no such tool.

The digita video flashlight presents an excellent management tool for these companies to monitor conduct and timing of
curity rounds. In addition to the digital video flashlight, the digital video security camera can provide fill-in security when guards
ave large areas to cover or in areas that do not have to be monitored around the clock.

omeland Security Market

In addition to government spending, American corporations are spending heavily for protection against the potential of terrorist
ttacks. In 2004, the New York Times reported on the “Homeland Security-Industrial Complex.” That report indicated that private-
ector outlays for antiterrorism measures and to guard against other forms of violence may be as much as $40 billion to $50 billion per
ear, or two to three times higher than the annual rate prior to September 11, 2001. (Source: Louis Uchitelle, The Rise of the
omeland Security-Industrial Complex, NEW YORK TIMES, October 17, 2004.) As of 2004, the federal government’s expenditure
or security has also passed $40 billion per year, double what it was before 9/11. (Source: Congressional Budget Office, Federal
unding for Homeland Security, April 30, 2004.) Estimates for the fiscal year of 2005 are for the federal government to spend $47
illion and state and local governments to spend an additional $7 billion for antiterrorism security. (Source: Congressional Budget
ffice, Federal Funding for Homeland Security, April 30, 2004.)

onsumer, Commercial and Other Markets

There are numerous potential applications for the digital video flashtight and digital video security camera products. We believe
at other markets for the digital video flashlight include private investigators, the U.S. Coast Guard, municipal fire departments and
e U.S. military, Commercial markets for the digital video flashlight include plumbers and appraisers. Markets for the digital video
curity camera product also include surveillance of construction job sites.




Manufacturing

We may eventually enter into contracts with manufacturers for the assembly of the circuit boards and the majority of
subassembly operations. Dedicated circuit boards manufacturers are well-suited to the assembly of circuit boards with the complexity
found in our products. Dedicated board manufacturers can spread the extensive capital equipment costs of circuit board assembly
amony multiple projects and customers. Such manufacturers also have the volume to enable the frequent upgrade to state-of-the-art
equipment. We have identified multiple suppliers who meet our quality, cost, and performance ctiteria. We intend to use more than
one source for circuit board assembly to ensure a reliable supply over time. We will continue to perform final assembly and testing in-
house. Due to the complexity of our products, we believe that it is important to maintain a core of knowledgeable production
personnel for consistent quality and to limit the dissemination of sensitive intellectual property.

License Arrangements

On March 15, 2004, we entered into a software license agreement with Ingenient Technologies, Inc. (“Ingenient”) regarding the
license of certain software products to be used in our video products. Ingenient has written the software for a specific Texas
Instrument chip which is included in our products. On April 5, 2005, we entered into a second software license agreement with
Ingenient regarding the license of the software for an additional Texas Instrument chip. Both of these licenses with Ingenient are for a
three-year term and each is automaticaily extended for an additional one-year term unless both parties agree not to renew the license
ninety days prior to any expiration of the relevant term or unless the agreement is terminated due to a material breach that is not cured
within thirty days of notice of such breach by the other party. The 2004 agreement was renewed automatically in 2007 and will be
renewed in 2008 for an additional year at the end of its current term. Each license agreement provides for licensing fees and royalty
payments. The license fees under both agreements total $150,000 and the royalties are paid on a per device basis, To date, we have
paid $150,000 in license fees and $42,500 in advance royaltics. There are no minimum royalty amounts owed under either license
agreement, although the agreements require that we purchase the chips in increments of 10,000 units, We have paid for and received
the initial block of 10,000 units under the agreements and we expect such supply to meet our production needs for the majority of
2008.

Sales and Marketing
We use our direct sales force and third party distributors to market our products. Our key promotional activities include:

. attendance at industry trade shows and conventions;

. use of a cut-away police car model to demonstrate the digital video rear view mirror product at trade shows,
conventions and other marketing venues;

. direct sates, with a force of industry-specific sales people who will identify, call upon and build on-going
relationships with key purchasers and targeted industries;

. support of our direct sales with passive sales systems, including inside sales and e-commerce;

. print advertising in journals with specialized industry focus;

. direct mail campaigns targeted to potential customers;

. web advertising, including supportive search engines and website and registration with appropriate sourcing
entities;

. public relations, industry-specific venues, as well as general media, to create awareness of Digital Ally and our

products, including membership in appropriate trade organizations; and

. brand identification through trade names associated with us and our products.




Competition

The law enforcement and security survetllance markets are extremely competitive. Competitive factors in these industries
include ease of use, quality, portability, versatility, reliability, accuracy and cost. Qur primary competitors include companies with
substantially greater financial, technological, marketing, personnel and research and development resources than we currently have.
There are direct competitors with competitive technology and preducts in the law enforcement and surveillance markets for all of our
products and those we have in development. We will also compete with any company making surveillance devices for residential and
commercial use. There can be no assurance that we will be able to compete successfully in this market. Further, there can be no

assurance that new and existing companies will not enter the digital video and security surveitlance markets in the future. See “Risk
Factors-Competition.”

Intellectual Property

Our ability to compete effectively will depend on our success in protecting our proprietary technology, both in the United States
and abroad. We have filed for patent protection in the United States and certain other countries to cover certain design aspects of our
roducts. However, we license the critical technology on which our products are based from a third party, Ingenient Technologies, Inc.

These patent applications are under review by the U.S. Patent Office and therefore we have not been issued any patents in the
nited States. No assurance can be given that any patents relating to our existing technology will be issued from the United States or
ny foreign patent offices, that we will receive any patents in the future based on our continued development of our technology, or that

ur patent protection within and/or outside of the United States will be sufficient to deter others, legally or otherwise, from developing
r marketing competitive products utilizing our technologies.

In addition to seeking patent protection, we will rely on trade secrets, know-how and continuing technological advancement to
eek to achieve and thereafter maintain a competitive advantage. Although we have entered into or intend to enter into ¢onfidentiality
nd invention agreements with our employees, consullants and advisors, no assurance can be given that such agreements will be
onored or that we will be able to effectively protect our rights to our unpatented trade secrets and know-how. Moreover, no assurance

an be given that others will not independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information and techniques or otherwise
ain access to our trade secrets and know-how.

mployees

We had 72 full-time employees as of December 31, 2007. Our employees are not covered by any collective bargaining
greement and we have never experienced a work stoppage. We believe that our relations with our employees are good.




RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following risk factors in evaluating our business and us. The factors listed below represent
certain important factors that we believe could cause our business results to differ. These factors are not intended to represent a
complete list of the general or specific risks that may affect us. It should be recognized that other risks may be significant, presently or
in the future, and the risks set forth below may affect us to a greater extent than indicated. If any of the following risks occur, our
business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. You should also consider the other
information included in this Annual Report and subsequent quarterly reports filed with the SEC.

Risk Factors
We have a short operating history -

From May 2003 through March 2006, we were a development stage company. In March 2006, we started selling our products
and became an operating company. We have an accumulated deficit of $3,009,114 as of December 31, 2007, which includes our net
income of $4,523,334 for 2007 and the net loss of $3,361,229 for 2006 as noted in our audited financial statements., We have a limited
operating history upon which investors may rely to evaluate our prospects; however we reported substantial net income and positive
cash flows from operating activities in 2007. Qur future prospects must be considered in light of the problems, expenses, delays and
complications associated with a relatively new business, including research and development expenditures, production development
costs, establishing and maintaining a supply chain for material and component parts, and hiring, training and retaining a labor force,
including marketing, sales, distribution and management personnel. At December 31, 2007, we had working capital of approximately
$7,196,000. Losses prior to 2007 resulted principally from costs incurred in the research and development of our technology and
products, salaries and general and administrative costs.

If we are unable to manage our rapid expansion in business, our prospects may be limited and our future profitability may be
adversely affected

We have experienced rapid expansion during 2007 resulting from the success of our marketing activities and the overall
acceptance of our products by the market. We expanded our production capabilities and capacity significantly and more than tripled
our workforce during 2007, which has strained our managerial, financial and other resources. We will need to continually improve our
operations, financial and other internal systems to manage our growth effectively, and any failure to do so may lead to inefficiencies
and redundancies which may result in reduced growth prospects and profitability.

We are operating in a developing market and there is uncertainty as to market acceptance of our technology and products

The markets for our products and technology are developing and rapidly evolving and are characterized by an increasing
number of market entrants who have developed or are developing a wide variety of products and technologies, a number of which
offer certain of the features that our products offer. Because of these factors, demand and market acceptance for new products are
subject to a high level of uncertainty. There can be no assurance that our technology and products will become widely accepted. It is
also difficult to predict with any assurance the future growth rate, if any, and size of the market. If a substantial market fails to
develop, develops more slowly than expected or becomes saturated with competitors or if our products do not achieve or continue to
achieve market acceptance, our business, operating results and financial condition will be materially and adversely affected.

Our technology is also intended to be marketed and licensed to device manufacturers for inclusion in the products and
equipment they market and sell as an embedded solution. As with other new products and technologies designed to enhance or replac
existing products or technologies or change product designs, these potential partners may be reluctant to integrate our digital video
recording technology into their systems untess the technology and products are proven to be both reliable and available at a
competitive price. Even assuming product acceptance, our potential partners may be required to redesign their systems to effectively
use our digital video recording technology. The time and costs necessary for such redesign could delay or prevent market acceptance
of our technology and products. A lack of, or delay in, market acceptance of our digital video recording technology and products
would adversely affect our operations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to market our technology and products
successfully or that any of our technology or products will be accepted in the marketplace.

There are risks related to dealing with governmental entities as customers

One of the principal target markets for our products is law enforcement. In this market, the sale of products will be subject to
budget constraints of governmental agencies purchasing these products, which could result in a significant reduction in our anticipate
revenues. These agencics also may experience political pressure that dictates the manner in which they spend money. As a result, eve
if an agency wants to acquire our products, it may be unable to purchase them due to budgetary or political constraints. We cannot
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assure investors that such governmental agencies will have the necessary funds to purchase our products even though they may want
to do so. Further, even if such agencies have the necessary funds, we may experience delays and relatively long sales cycles due to
their internal decision making policies and procedures.

We expend significant resources in anticipation of a sale due to our lengthy sales cycle and may receive no revenue in return

Generally, law enforcement and other agencies that may consider using our products must analyze a wide range of issues before
committing to purchase products like ours, including training costs, product reliability and budgetary constraints. The length of our
sales cycle may range from 60 days to a year or more. We may incur substantial selling costs and expend significant effort in
connection with the evaluation of our products by potential customers before they place an order. Initial orders by agencies typically
are for a small number of units that are used to evaluate the products. If these potential customers do not purchase our products, we
will have expended significant resources and receive no revenue in return,

Qur market is characterized by new products and rapid technological change

The market for our preducts is characterized by rapidly changing technology and frequent new product introductions. Our future
uccess will depend in part on our ability to enhance our existing technologies and products and to introduce new products and
echnologies to meet changing customer requirements. We are currently devoting, and intend to continue to devote, significant
sources toward the development of new digital video recording technology and products bath as stand-alone products and embedded
olutions in third party products and systems. There can be no assurance that we will successfully complete the development of these
echnologies and related products in a timely fashion or that our current or future products will satisfy the needs of the digital video
cording market. There can also be no assurance that digital video recording products and technologies developed by others will not
dversely affect our competitive position or render our products or technologies non-competitive or obsolete.

e substantially depend on sales from our DVM-500 product and if this product becomes obsolete or not widely accepted, our
rowth prospects will be diminished

In the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, we derived our revenues predominantly from sales of our DVM-500 digital
ideo mirror and accessories and expect to depend on sales of this product for the foreseeable future. A decrease in the prices of, or the
emand for, this product, or the failure to achieve broad market acceptance, would significantly harm our growth prospects, operating
sufts and financial condition,

we are unable to compete in our market, you may lose all or part of your investment

Our market is highly competitive and highly fragmented. The law enforcement and security surveillance markets are extremely
mpetitive, Competitive factors in these industries include ease of use, quality, portability, versatility, reliability, accuracy, cost and
ther factors, Our primary competitors include: Coban Technologies, Inc., Integrian, Inc., Kustom Signals, L-3 Communications and
anasonic Corporation and a number of other competitors who sell or may in the future sell in-car video systems to law enforcement
encies. There are direct competitors who have competitive technology and products for all of our products. Many of these
mpetitors have significant advantages over us, including greater financial, technical, marketing and manufacturing resources, more
tensive distribution channels, larger customer bases and faster response times to adapt new or emerging technologies and changes in
stomer requirements. As a result, our competitors may develop superior products or beat us to market with products similar to ours.
rther, there can be no assurance that new companies will not enter our markets in the future. Although we believe that our products
ill be distinguishable from those of our competitors on the basis of their technological features and functionality at an attractive
lue proposition, there can be no assurance that we will be able to penetrate any of our anticipated competitors’ portions of the
rket. Many of our anticipated competitors may have existing relationships with equipment or device manufacturers which may
pede our ability to market our technology to those potential customers and build market share. There can be no assurance that we
ill be able to compete successfully against current or future competitors or that competitive pressures will not have a material
verse effect on our business, operating results and financial condition, If we are not successful in competing against our current and
ture competitors, you could lose your entire investment. See “Description of Business-Competition,”

fgital video has yet to be widely accepted as admissible scientific evidence in court

Videos from analog mobile-in-car video systems have long been accepted by the courts as reliable scientific evidence. However,
cause of their relatively recent introduction, digital video systems, in general, and our products, specifically, have not undergone the
orous scientific testing that courts may demand before recognizing their reliability. If video files from digital in-car video units are
t admissible in a court of law, law enforcement agencies are not likely to purchase our products.
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Defects in our products could impair our ability to sell our products or could result in litigation and other significant costs

Detection of any significant defects in our products may result in, among other things, delay in time-to-market, loss of market
acceptance and sales of our products, diversion of development resources, injury to our reputation, or increased warranty costs.
Because our products are technologically complex, they may contain defects that cannot be detected prior to shipment. These defects
could harm our reputation and impair our ability to sell our products. The costs we may incur in correcting any product defects may be
substantial and could decrease our profit margins. Additionally, errors, defects or other performance problems could result in financial
or other damages to our customers, which could result in litigation. Product liability litigation, even if we prevail, would be time
consuming and costly to defend. Our product liability insurance may not be adequate to cover claims. Our product liability insurance
coverage per occurrence is $1,000,000, with a $2,000,000 aggregate for our general business liability coverage and an additional
$1,000,000 per occurrence. Qur excess or umbrella liability coverage per occurrence is $2,000,000, with an aggregate of $4,000,000.

Product defects can be caused by design errors, programming bugs, or defects in component parts or raw materials. This is
common te every product manufactured which is based on modern electronic and computer technology. Because of the extreme
complexity of digital in-car video systems, one of the key concerns is operating software robustness. Some of the software modules
are provided to us by outside vendors under license agreements, while other portions are developed by our own sofiware engineers. As
with any software-dependant product, “bugs” can occur, even with rigorous testing before release of the product. The software
included in our digital video rear view mirror and digital video flashlight products is designed to be “ficld upgradeable” so that
changes or fixes can be made by the end user by downloading new software through the internet. We intend to incorporate this
technology into any future products as well, providing a quick resolution to potential software issues that may arise over time.

As with all electronic devices, hardware issues can arise from many sources. The component electronic parts we utilize come
from many sources around the world. We attempt to mitigate the possibility of shipping defective products by fully testing sub-
assemblies as they come in and thoroughly testing assembled units before they are shipped out to our customers. Because of the natun
and complexity of some of the electronic components used, such as microprocessor chips, memory systems, and zoom video camera
modules, it is not technically or financially realistic to attempt to test every single aspect of every single component and their potential
intetactions. By using components from reputable and reliable sources, and by using professional engineering, assembly, and testing
methods, we seek to limit the possibility of defects slipping through. In addition to internal testing, we now have thousands of units in
the hands of police departments and in use every day. Over the past year of field use, we have fixed many subtle issues and made
many changes as requested by the end-user.

We are dependent on key personnel

Our success will be largely dependent upon the efforts of our executive officers, Stanton E. Ross, Kenneth L. McCoy and
Robert D. Haler. We do not have employment agreements with Messts. Ross, McCoy or Haler. The loss of the services of these
individuals could have a material adverse effect on our business and prospects. There can be no assurance that we will be able to retai
the services of such individuals in the future. We have obtained and will maintain key-man life insurance policies on Stanton E. Ross
and Robert D. Haler in the amounts of $500,000 each. We are also dependent to a substantial degree on our technical and developme:
staff. Our success will be dependent upen our ability to hire and retain additional qualified technical, research, management,
marketing and financial personnel. We will compete with other companies with greater financial and other resources for such
personnel. Although we have not to date experienced difficulty in attracting qualified personnel, there can be no assurance that we wi
be able to retain our present personnel or acquire additional qualified personnel as and when needed.

We rely on third party distributors and representatives for our marketing capability

Our distribution strategy is to pursue sales through multiple channels with an emphasis on independent distributors and
representatives. Our inability to recruit and retain police equipment distributors and representatives who can successfully sell our
products would adversely affect our sales. In addition, our arrangements with our distributors and representatives are generally short-
term. 1f we do not competitively price our products, meet the requirements of our distributors and representatives or end-users, provi
adequate marketing and technical support, or comply with the terms of our distribution arrangements, our distributors and
representatives may fail to aggressively market our products or may terminate their relationships with us. These developments woul
likely have a material adverse effect on our sales. Our reliance on the sales of products by others also makes it more difficult to predi
our revenues, cash flow and operating results.



We are dependent on manufacturers and suppliers

We purchase, and intend to continue to purchase, substantially all of the components for our products from a limited number of
manufacturers and suppliers, We do not intend to directly manufacture any of the equipment or parts to be used in our products. Our
reliance upon outside manufacturers and suppliers is expected to continue and involves several risks, including limited control over
the availability of components, delivery schedules, pricing and product quality. We may experience delays, additional expenses and
lost sales if we are required to locate and qualify altemnative manufacturers and suppliers. '

A few of the semiconductor chip components for our products are produced by a very small number of specialized
manufacturers. Currently, we purchase one essential semiconductor chip from a single manufacturer, While we believe that there are
| alternative sources of supply, if, for any reason, we are precluded from obtaining such a semiconductor chip from this manufacturer,
we may experience long delays in product delivery due to the difficulty and complexity involved in producing the required component
and we may also be required to pay higher costs for our components.

While we do the finai assembly, testing, packaging, and shipment of our products in-house, several component parts are being
manufactured by subcontractors. These subcontractors include: raw circuit board manufacturers, circuit board assembly houses,
injection plastic molders, metal parts fabricators, and other custom component providers. While we are dependent upon these
subcontractors to the extent that they are producing custom subassemblies and components necessary for manufacturing our products,
we still own the designs and intellectual property involved. This means that the failure of any one contractor to perform may cause
delays in production. However, we can mitigate potential interruptions by maintaining “buffer stocks” of criticat parts and
subassemblies and by using multiple sources for critical components. We also have the ability to move our subcontracting to alternate
providers. Being forced to use a different subcontractor could cause production interruptions ranging from negligible, such as a few
weeks, to very costly, such as four to six months. Currently, the only subcontractor that could cause a delay in our production of
greater than 45 days is our radio supplier, TriSquare Communications, because the device it supplies to us is unique. We plan to locate
a second source of production for this component.

There is only one component group that would require a complete redesign of our digital video electronics package: the Texas
Instruments chips. While there are competitive products available, each chip has unique characteristics that would require extensive
tailoring of product designs to use it. The Texas Instrument chips are the heart of our video processing system. If Texas Instruments
became unwilling or unable to provide us with these chips, we would be forced to redesign our digital video encoder and decoder
systems. Such a complete redesign could take over six months to complete, We attempt to mitigate the potential for interruption by
maintaining continuous stocks of these chips to support several months’ worth of production. In addition, we regularly check on the
end-of-life status of these parts to make sure that we will know well in advance of any decisions by Texas Instruments to discontinue
these parts. There are other semiconductors that are integral to our product design and which could cause delays if discontinued. but
not to the same scale as the Texas Instrument chips,

We are uncertain of our ability to protect technology through patents

Our ability to compete effectively will depend on our success in protecting our proprietary technology, both in the United States
and abroad. We have filed for patent protection in the United States and certain other countries to cover certain design aspects of cur
products, However, we license the critical technology on which our products are based from Ingenient, Inc. pursuant to license
agreements. However, the technology licensed from Ingenient, Inc. is only critical in that it is the basis of our current product design.
We may choose to use other video encoding and decoding technology in future products, thus lessening our dependence on our
licenses with Ingenient, Inc.

Our patent applications are under review by the U.S. Patent Office and therefore we have not been issued any patents in the
nited States. No assurance can be given that any patents relating to our existing technology will be issued from the United States or
ny foreign patent offices, that we will receive any patents in the future based on our continued development of our technology, or that
ur patent protection within and/or outside of the United States will be sufficient to deter others, legaily or otherwise, from developing
r marketing competitive products utilizing our technologies.

If our patents were to be denied as filed, we would seek to obtain different patents for other parts of our technology. If our main
atent, which relates to the placement of the in-car video system in a rear view mirror, is denied, it could potentially allow our
ompetitors to build very similar devices. However, we believe that very few of our competitors would be capable of this because of
he level of technical sophistication and level of miniaturization required. Even if we obtain patents, there can be no assurance that
hey will be enforceable to prevent others from developing and marketing competitive products or methods. If we bring an
nfringement action relating to any future patents, it may require the diversion of substantial funds from our operations and may
equire management {0 expend efforts that might otherwise be devoted to our operations, Furthermore, there can be no assurance that

e will be successful in enforcing our patent rights. BEST AVA, LAB!.E COP Y
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Further, if any patents issue there can be no assurance that patent infringement claims in the United States or in other countries
will not be asserted against us by a competitor or others, or if asserted, that we will be successful in defending against such claims. If
one of our products is adjudged to infringe patents of others with the likely consequence of a damage award, we may be enjoined from
using and selling such product or be required to obtain a royalty-bearing license, if available on acceptable terms. Alternatively, if a
license is not offered, we might be required, if possible, to redesign those aspects of the product held to infringe so as to avoid
infringement liability. Any redesign efforts undertaken by us might be expensive, could delay the introduction or the re-introduction of
our products into certain markets, or may be so significant as to be impractical.

We are uncertain of our ability to protect our proprietary technology and information

In addition to seeking patent protection, we wilt rely on trade secrets, know-how and continuing technological advancement to
seek to achieve and thereafter maintain a competitive advantage. Although we have entered into or intend to enter into confidentiality
and invention agreements with our employees, consultants and advisors, no assurance can be given that such agreements will be
honored or that we will be able to effectively protect our rights to our unpatented trade secrets and know-how. Moreover, no assurance
can be given that others will not independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information and techniques or otherwise
gain access to our trade secrets and know-how.

Risks related to our license arrangements

We have two licensing agreements with Ingenient, Inc. regarding certain software used as the platform for the proprietary
software we have developed for use in our products. Each of these licensing agreements has a term of three years. One such
agreement, whose term was to expire in March 2007, has been renewed through March 2008, and the other has been renewed through
April 2008. Such licenses are renewable on an annual basis thereafter unless both parties determine not to renew them and provided
the parties are in compliance with the agreements. If we fail to make the payments under these licenses or if these licenses are not
renewed for any reason, it would cause us significant time and expense to redevelop our software on a different software platform,
which would have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results and financial condition.

Our revenues and operating results may fluctuate unexpectedly from quarter to quarter, which may cause our stock price to
decline

Our revenues and operating results have varied significantly in the past and may vary significantly in the future duc to various
factors that are both within and outside our control. As a result, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our operating results
may not be meaningful in the short-term, and our performance in a particular period may not be indicative of our performance in any
future period.

Coalitions of a few of our larger stockholders have sufficient voting power to make corporate governance decisions that could have
significant effect on us and the other stockholders

Our officers, directors and principal stockholders (greater than five percent stockholders) together control approximately 27.5%,
including options vested or to vest within 60 days, of our outstanding common stock. As a result, these stockholders, if they act
together, will be able to exert a significant degree of influence over our management and affairs and over matters requiring
stockholder approval, including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions. In addition, this
concentration of ownership may delay or prevent a change in our control and might affect the market price of our common stock, even
when a change in control may be in the best interest of all stockholders. Furthermore, the interests of this concentration of ownership
may not always coincide with our interests or the interests of other stockholders. Accordingly, these stockholders could cause us to
enter into transactions or agreements that we would not otherwise consider.
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Risks Relating to our Common Stock

The sale of substantial amounts of our common stock may have a depressive effect on the market price of the outstanding shares of
our commen stock

Of the 14,092,260 shares of our common stock outstanding at December 31, 2007, 5,124,094 are “restricted securities,” as that
term is defined in Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act, and may be sold only in compliance with Rule 144, pursuant to
- registration under the Securities Act or pursuant to an exemption from such registration, We have registered a number of the foregoing
restricted shares of common stock under a registration statement filed with the SEC that became effective in May 2007, Sales of
substantial amounts of common stock by our stockholders under Rule 144 or otherwise, or even the potential for such sales, could
have a depressive effect on the market price of the shares of our common stock and could impair our ability to raise capital through the
sale of our equity securities.

The possible issuance of common stock subject to options and warrants may dilute the interest of stockholders

We have granted options to purchase a total of 5,728,767 shares of our common stock for issuance under our stock option and
restricted stock plans which remain cutstanding and unexercised as of December 31, 2007. In addition, we had 583,250 shares
issuable upon exercise of outstanding warrants granted to third parties as of December 31, 2007. To the extent that outstanding stock
options and warrants are exercised, dilution to the interests of our stockholders may occur. Moreover, the terms upon which we will be
able to obtain additional equity capital may be adversely affected since the holders of the outstanding options can be expected to
exercise them at a time when we would, in all likelihoed, be able to obtain any needed capital on terms more favorable to us than
those provided in such outstanding options.

We may experience difficalties in the future in complying with Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404

We are required to evaluate our internal controls under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. We will be required to
comply with the internal control requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for each fiscal year ending on or after
December 31, 2009. If we fail to maintain the adequacy of our internal controls, we could be subject to regulatory scrutiny, civil or
criminal penalties and/or stockholder litigation. Any inability to provide reliable financial reports could harm our business. Section
404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act also requires that our independent registered public accounting firm report on management’s
evaluation of our system of internal controls. Furthermore, any failure to implement required new or improved controls, or difficulties
encountered in the implementation of adequate controls over our financial processes and reporting in the future, could harm our
operating results or cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations.

If we fail to maintain proper and effective internal controls in future periods, it could adversely affect our operating results,
financial condition and our ability to run our business effectively and could cause investors to lose confidence in our financial
reporting,.

We have never paid dividends and have no plans 1o in the future

Holders of shares of our common stock are entitled to receive such dividends as may be declared by our board of directors. To
date, we have paid no cash dividends on our shares of common stock and we do not expect to pay cash dividends on our common
tock in the foreseeable future. We intend to retain future eamings, if any, to provide funds for operation of our business. Therefore,
ny refurn investors in our common stock will have to be in the form of appreciation, if any, in the market value of their shares of
ommon stock.

We have additional securities available for issuance, which, if issued, could adversely affect the rights of the holders of our
ommon stock

Qur articles of incorporation authorize the issuance of 75,000,000 shares of our common stock. The common stock can be
ssued by our board of directors, without stockholder approval. Any future issuances of our common stock would further dilute the
ercentage ownership of our Company held by public stockholders.

wr stock price is likely to be highly volatile because of several factors, including a limited public float

The market price of our common stock is likely to be highly volatile because there has been a relatively thin trading market for
ur stock, which causes trades of small blocks of stock to have a significant impact on our stock price. You may net be able to resell
hares of our common stock following perieds of volatility because of the market’s adverse reaction to volatility
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Other factors that could cause such volatility may include, among other things:

. digital video in-car recording products not being accepted by the law enforcement industry or digital video
recording not being accepted as evidence in criminal proceedings;

. actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;
. the potential absence of securities analysts covering us and distributing research and recommendations about us;
. we expect our actual operating results to fluctuate widely as we increase our sales and production capabilities and

other operations;

. we may have a low trading volume for a number of reasons, including that a large amount of our stock is closely
held;

. overall stock market fluctuations;

. economic conditions generally and in the law enforcement and security industries in particular;

. announcements concerning our business or those of our competitors or customners;

. our ability to raise capital when we require it, and to raise such capital on favorable terms;

. changes in financial estimates by securities analysts or our failure to perform as anticipated by the analysts;

. announcements of technological innovations;

. conditions or irends in the industry;

. litigation;

. changes in market valuations of other similar companies;

. announcements by us or our compeltitors of new products or of significant technical innovations, contracts,

acquisitions, strategic partnerships or joint ventures;

. future sales of common stock;

. actions initiated by the SEC or other regulatory bodies;

. existence or lack of patents or proprietary rights;

. departure of key personnel or failure 1o hire key personnel; and
. general market conditions.

Any of these factors could have a significant and adverse impact on the market price of our common stock. In addition, the stoc
market in general has at times experienced extreme volatility and rapid decline that has often been unrelated or disproportionate to the
operating performance of particular companies. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the trading price of our commo
stock, regardless of our actual operating performance.

Indemnification of officers and directors

Our articles of incorporation and the bylaws contain broad indemnification and liability limiting provisions regarding our
officers, directors and employees, including the limitation of liability for certain violations of fiduciary duties. Our stockholders
therefore will have only limited recourse against such individuals.
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ITEM 2. Description of Properties.

Our executive office consists of approximately 8,500 square feet and is located at 7311 West 130 " Street, Suite 170, Overland
Park, Kansas 66213, The lease will terminate on October 31, 2012 and its current monthly rent is $11,562.

We lease approximately 20,000 square feet of office and warehouse space at 1212 and 1218 Valley Ridge Drive, Grain Valley,
Missouri 64029 under three different lease agreements. We use this facility for engineering, warehousing, assembling and shipping of
-~ our finished product. The leases on these facilities terminate from September 2008 through September 2010 and the aggregate
monthly rent is $15,298,

ITEM 3, Legal Proceedings.

We are not party to any legal proceedings, nor are we aware of any contemplated or pending legal proceedings against us,

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matters were submitted to a vote of our sharcholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.
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. PARTII
ITEMS.  Market for Commen Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Small Business Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Market Prices

Our common stock commenced trading on the NASDAQ Capital Market on January 2, 2008 under the symbol “DGLY.” From
July 2007 until we became listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market, our common stock was traded on the OTC Bulletin Board and
prior to that it was quoted in the “Pink Sheets.”

The high/low bid prices of our common stock were as follows for the periods below. The bid quotations below reflect inter-
dealer bid prices without retail markup, markdown, or commission and may not represent actual transactions:

High Bid Low Bid

Year Ended December 31, 2007

1st Quarter b 1.80 % 1.45

2nd Quarter $ 270 $ 1.65

3rd Quarter $ 345 % 2.00

4th Quarter $ 735 §% 3.70
Year Ended December 31. 2006

1st Quarter $ 290 § 2.00

2nd Quarter 5 300 8 1.45

3rd Quarter $ 270§ 2.00

4th Quarter $ 234§ 1.50

Holders of Common Stock

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately 270 shareholders of record for our common stock.

Dividend Policy

To date, we have not declared or paid cash dividends on our shares of common stock. The holders of our common stock will be
entitled to non-cumulative dividends on the shares of common stock, when and as declared by our board of directors, in its discretion.
We intend to retain all future earnings, if any, for our business and do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Any future determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will be dependent upon
our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, general business conditions and such other factors as our board of

directors may deem relevant.
Recent Issuances of Unregistered Securities

Set forth below is a description of all of our sales of unregistered securities during the fiscal year end December 31, 2007. All
sales were made to “accredited investors” as such term as defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as

amended (the “Act”). All such sales were exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the Act, as transactions not involving a
public offering. We did not pay any commissions to third parties in connection with the sales.

On May 15, 2007, we issued 500,000 shares of our common stock to Acme Resources, LLC (“Acme”) upon Acme’s exercise of
its right to convert an outstanding $500,000 promissory note at a rate of $1.00 per share.
|

On April 1, 2007, we issued 50,000 shares of common stock in lieu of cash for consulting services provided by an independent
contractor. Such transaction was valued at $87,500 or $1.75 per share.
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ITEM 6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Plan of Operation,

This Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate,” “may,”
“should,” “could,” “will,” “plan,” “future,” “continue,” and other expressions that are predictions of or indicate future events and
trends and that do not relate to historical matters identify forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based
largely on our expectations or forecasts of future events, can be affected by inaccurate assumptions, and are subject to various business
risks and known and unknown uncertainties, a number of which are beyond our control. Therefore, actual results could differ
materially from the forward-looking statements contained in this document, and readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on
such forward-looking statements, We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as
a result of new information, future events or otherwise. A wide variety of factors could cause or contribute to such differences and
could adversely impact revenues, profitability, cash flows and capital needs. There can be no assurance that the forward-looking
statements contained in this document will, in fact, transpire or prove to be accurate.

Factors that could cause or contribute to our actual results differing materially from those discussed herein or for our stock price
to be adversely affected include, but are not limited to: (i) our short operating history; (ii) our ability to increase revenues and profits
in 2008 as we anticipate through greater market penetration within and outside of the United States and operating and other
efficiencies and to otherwise manage our rapid business expansion; (iii) whether there will be a commercial market, domestically and
internationally, for one or more of our new products, (iv) nsks related to dealing with governmental entities as customers; (v) our
expenditure of significant resources in anticipation of a sale due to our lengthy sales cycle and the potential to receive no revenue in
return; (vi) characterization of our market by new products and rapid technological change and an ability to adapt to the same;

{vii) our dependence on sales of our DVM-500 product; (viii) our ability to compete against other companies that have greater
economic and human resources than we do; (ix) failure of digital video to yet be widely accepted as admissible scientific evidence in
court; (x) defects in our products that could impair our ability to sell our products or could result in litigation and other significant
costs; (xi) our dependence on key personnel; (xii) our ability to attract and retain quality employees; (xiii) our reliance on third party
distributors and representatives for our marketing capability; (xiv} our dependence on manufacturers and suppliers; (xv) our ability to
protect technology through patents; (xvi) our ability to protect our proprietary technology and information as trade secrets and through
other similar means; (xvii) risks related to our license arrangements; (xviii) our revenues and operating results may fluctuate
unexpectantly from quarter to quarter; (xix) sufficient voting power by coalitions of a few of our larger stockholders to make corporate
governance decisions that could have significant effect on us and the other stockholders; (xx) sale of substantial amounts of our
common stock that may have a depressive effect on the market price of the outstanding shares of our common stock; (xxi) possible
issuance of common stock subject to options and warrants that may dilute the interest of stockholders; (xxii) our ability to comply
with Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Section 404 in 2008; (xxiii) our nonpayment of dividends and lack of plans to pay dividends in the
future; (xxiv) future sale of a substantial number of shares of our common stock that could depress the trading price of our common
stock, lower our value and make it more difficult for us to raise capital; (xxv) our additional securities available for issuance, which, if
issued, could adversely affect the rights of the holders of our common stock; (xxvi) our stock price which is likety to be highly volatile
because of several factors, including a relatively limited public float; and (xxvii) indemnification of our officers and directors.

Recent Developments for the Company

Overview

We supply technology-based products based upon portable digital video and audio recording capabilities, primarily for the law
enforcement and security industries. The Company has the ability to integrate electronic, radio, computer, mechanical, and multi-
media technologies to create unique solutions to customers’ requests.

Since our inception in 2003 through the second quarter of 2006, we had been considered a development stage company, with
our activities focused on organizational activities, including design and development of product iines, implementing a business plan,
establishing sales channels, and development of business strategies. In late March 2006, we sold and shipped our first completed
product, thereby becoming an operating company.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet debt nor did we have any transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations}) or other relationships with any unconsclidated entities or other persons that may have material current or future effect on

financial conditions, changes in the financial conditions, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures, capital resources, or
significant components of revenue or expenses.
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
Results of Operations

Summarized immediately betow and discussed in more detail in the subsequent sub-sections is an analysis of our operating
cesults for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 represented as a percentage of total revenues for each respective year:

2007 2006

Revenue 100% 100%
Cost of sales 39% 52%

Gross profit 61% 48%
Operating expenses ' 46% 130%

Operating income (loss) 15% (82%)
Financial income (expense) — % — %
Income (loss) before income tax (provision} benefit 15% (82%)
Income tax (provision) benefit 8% — %
Net income (loss) 23% (82%)
Net income {loss) per share information:

Basic $ 033 (3 0.206)

Diluted $ 028 (3 0.26)

Revenues

We were a development stage company since our inception until we commenced delivery and sale of our digital video mirror
(DVM-500) product in March 2006. We have enjoyed revenue growth in every sequential quarter since our initial deliveries. We
have customers in all 50 states and our largest single order to date in the amount of $5.1 million was placed by an international
customer. We believe our DVM-500 product has achieved widespread acceptance in the marketplace and that our revenue growth will
continue in 2008. Sales for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $19,391,082 and $4,109,394, respectively, an increase
of $15,281,688 (372%), due to increased market penetration. We expect that our 2008 revenue will approximately double from 2007
due to continued market penetration on a domestic and intemational basis.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales on units sold for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $7,649,930 and $2,126,744, respectively, an
increase of $5,523,186 (260%). The significant increase is due to the increase in units sold as well as the establishment of a warranty
reserve of $213,428 and a reserve for slow moving and obsolete inventory of $196,328 for the first time during 2007. We believe
these reserves are appropriate given the tremendous growth in revenues we experienced during 2007, as well as increases in inventory
levels.

Gross Margin

Gross margin for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $11,741,152 and $1,982,650, respectively, an increase of
$9,758,502 (492%). The significant increase is commensurate with the growth in revenues we have experienced during 2007. The
gross margin percentages were 61% and 48%, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. The increase in margin
is attributable to improved productivity and efficiencies as we have significantly increased production rates during 2007 and improved
the efficiencies and costs retated to our supply chain. We primarily order finished component parts including electronics boards, chips
and camera parts, from outside suppliers. Qur internal work consists of assembly, testing and burn-in of the finished units. If our
revenue and production rates continue to increase as we anticipate, we expect to be able to improve our gross margins by reducing our
component and supply chain costs by ordering in larger quantities at better prices and by implementing further efficiencies in our
production processes. We have not experienced significant retail pricing pressures from our domestic customers during 2007. Our
international sales have tended to be priced at discounted rates when we are not required to provide certain follow-on technical
support, but we also benefit from reduced commissions on such sales. Competition for larger contracts and larger customers may
cause us 1o give some price discounts to such customers for our product during 2008. We believe that we will experience growth in
our international orders and compete for larger customers under competitive bids during 2008 that may offset some of the expected
efficiencies in our cost of product sold.
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses were $8,875,915 and $5,324,223 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, an incresse
of $3,551,692 (67%). Overall operating expenses as a percentage of sales declined from 130% in 2006 to 46% in 2007. The changes
are explained as follows:

Research and Development Expenses. While we focused on bringing our products to market, the effort in research and
development activity continued, with these expenses totaling $1,518,914 and $1,203,889 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively, an increase of $315,025 (26%). The increase in 2007 was attributable to our continued efforts on developing new
products and line extensions for our current products that we plan to bring to market, as well as additional internal staff additions
related to the same activities. Research and development expense as a percentage of total revenues has declined from 29% in 2006 to
8% in 2007. We have research and development projects on several new products designed for the school bus, mass transit, taxi cab
and other markets as well as upgrades to our existing products. In addition, we have been and are currently attempting to hire
additional engineers to focus on these development projects. Therefore we believe that such expense will increase during 2008,
although such expense as a percentage of total revenues will likely continue to decline as our revenues increase.

Stock based Compensation Expenses. Stock based compensation expenses totaled $1,784,459 and $1,940,998 for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively a decrease of $156,539 (8%). The decrease in 2007 was primarily attributable o the
lengthening of the vesting period for option grants duning 2007 as compared to 2006. We believe that 2008 stock option expense will
continue to decline as we continue to lengthen the vesting period on options granted and grant fewer options than in previous years,

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. The remainder of operating expenses totaled $5,572,542 and $2,179,336 for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, an increase of $3,393,206 (156%). Consulting expense increased by $201,037
(39%) which is attributable to increased recruiting fees during 2007, primarily in order to identify, attract and hire experienced
engineers. Professional fees, which include legal and accounting expenses, increased by $415,789 (170%) due to our increased needs
in becoming a public reporting company in 2007. These needs included listing our common stock on the OTC-Bulletin Board in July
2007 and on the Nasdaq Capital Market in January 2008 and preparation and filing of a registration statement for common stock,
options and warrants sold or issued in connection with prior private placements. In order to support our significant increase in revenue,
we incurred greater facility-related expenses, depreciation, general and administrative salaries, and travel during 2007. During late
2007, we combined our corporate offices with our sales and marketing offices into one facility, We also increased the size of our
production facility to accommeodate our revenue growth during 2007, Sales commission expense increased by $959,744 for the year
ended December 31, 2007, compared to the same period in 2006 which is attributable to our growth in revenues.

Operating Income (Loss)

For the reasons previously stated, our operating income was $2,865,237 for the year ended December 31, 2007 and our
operating loss was $3,341,573 for the year ended December 31, 2006, respectively, an improvement of $6,206,810. Operating income
as a percentage of revenues, or operating margins, improved to 15% in 2007 as compared to a negative 82% in 2006, We believe that
operating income will continue to grow in 2008 if revenues and gross margins increase as we expect and that our operating margins
will continue to improve.

Financial Income (Expense)

Financial income {expense) improved to {$4,903) in 2007 from ($19,656) in 2006. Financial income {expense) is primarily
composed of interest income and expense. Changes in these items are described as follows:

Interest Income. We earned interest income of $34,609 and $20,742 during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, an increase of $13,867 (67%). The increase in interest income was a result of our accumulation of cash during 2007 due
to our positive cash flow from operations.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $28,006 and $40,398 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, a
decrease of $12,392 (31%). With improved cash flow from business growth, we paid off our line of credit during early 2007 and the
holder of a $500,000 convertible promissory note exercised his right to exchange such promissory note for 500,000 shares of common
stock during May 2007. We have no interest bearing debt outstanding as of December 31, 2007.

Income (Loss) Before Income Tax (Provision) Benefit

As a resuit of the above, we reported income before income tax (provision) benefit of $2,860,334 and net loss before income tax
(provision) benefits of ($3,361,229) for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, an improvement of $6,221,563.
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Income Tax (Provision) Benefit

Income tax benefit was $1,663,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, with none reported in prior periods. We reduced the
deferred tax valuation allowance by $2,725,000 due to the utilization of the net operating loss carryforwards in the year ended
December 31, 2007, the anticipated usage of the remaining net operating loss carryforward based upon our projected profitability and
the reversal of other deferred tax assets. Prior to this year, we recorded a 100% valuation allowance offsetting this tax benefit from
prior net operating loss carryforwards and timing differences due to uncertainty regarding our likelihood of realizing a material portion
of the benefit. ‘

Net Income (Loss)

As a result of the above, for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, we reported net income of $4,523,334 and net loss of
($3,361,229), respectively, an improvement of $7,884,563.

Basic and Diluted Income (Loss) per Share

The basic income (loss) per share was $0.33 and ($0.26) for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, for the
reasons previously noted. The diluted income (loss) per share was $0.28 and (30.26), respectively, for the same periods. The
difference between basic and dilutive income (loss) per share is attributable to the dilutive effect of shares issuable under stock options
and warrants.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overall: We have historically provided for our cash requirements through private placements of our common stock. In 2005 we
raised a net of $4.1 million from the sale of our common stock and during the third quarter of 2006, we completed a private placement
of our common stock and common stock purchase warrants, which raised a net of $1.6 million. During March 2006, we began
shipment of our products and commenced the generation of revenues and operating cash flows to help support our activities. During
the fourth quarter of 2006, we established a $500,000 revolving line of credit with a bank which we utilized to support our activities.
In April 2007, we paid off the line of credit in full, and the bank expanded the line of credit to $1.5 million. The holder of a $500,000
note payable exercised its right to convert the note to 500,000 shares of common stock, which was completed during the second
quarter of 2007. As of December 31, 2007, we had working capital of $7,196,039 and we had no long-term or short-term debt
outstanding.

Cash and cash equivalents balances: As of December 31, 2007, we had cash and cash equivalents with an aggregate balance
of $4,255,039, up from a balance of $57,160 at December 31, 2006. Summarized immediately below and discussed in more detail in
the subsequent sub-sections are the main elements of the $4,197,879 net increase in cash during the year ended December 31, 2007:

. Operating  $4,870,409 of net cash provided by operating activities, primarily from positive cash provided by net
activities: income adjusted for non-cash charges such as stock based compensation expense and non-cash credits
such as deferred income tax benefits.

. Investing $562,978 of net cash used in investing activities, primarily to acquire equipment to expand our
activities:  production capabilities.

’ Financing  $109,552 of net cash used in financing activities, primarily for full repayment of our bank line of
activities:  credit, offset by proceeds from stock option and warrants exercised.

Operating activities: Net cash provided by operating activities was 34,870,409 for the year ended December 31, 2007, as
compared to net cash used in operating activities of ($3,419,666) for the year ended December 31, 2006, an improvement of
$8,290,075. The positive cash flows from operations for the year ended December 31, 2007 are primarily the result of our 2007 net
income of $4,523,334, a net change in operating assets and liabilities of approximately ($78,969), and by non-cash charges of
approximately $2,201,000 which were primarily related to stock based compensation, and partially offset by non-cash deferred tax
benefits of $1,775,000. The cash used in operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 is the result of a net loss of
($3,361,229), a net change in operating assets and liabilities of approximately ($2,084,000), and partially offset by non-cash charges
of approximately $2,026,000.
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Investing activities: Cash used in investing activities was $562,978 and $482,563 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. In both 2007 and 2006, we purchased production equipment and office furniture, fixtures and equipment to support
our activities. '

Financing activities: During the year ended December 31, 2007, net cash used in financing activities was ($109,552). This was
due to payoff of amounts outstanding under our bank line of credit of ($500,000) net of $390,448 received from the proceeds and
related tax benefit from the exercise of stock options and warrants during 2007. During the year ended December 31, 2006, the
Company completed a private placement to raise capital which provided net proceeds of $1,601,468 in addition to net borrowings of
$500,000 under the line of credit and $50,000 proceeds from the exercise of stock options.

The net result of these activities was an increase in cash of $4,197.879 to $4,255,039 for the year ended December 31, 2007, and
a decrease in cash of ($1,750,762) to $57,160 for the year ended December 31, 2006.

We had no material commitments for capital expenditures as of December 31, 2007. In addition, we had a revolving line of
credit providing for maximum borrowings of $1,500,000 available as of December 31, 2007. We believe we have adequate cash
balances and available borrowings under our line of credit to support our anticipated cash needs and related business activities during
2008.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Certain accounting estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements require us to make judgments and estimates and
the financial results we report may vary depending on how we make these judgments and estimates. Our critical accounting estimates
are set forth below and have not changed during 2006 and the year ended December 31, 2007.

Revenue Recognition/Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Nature of estimates required. The allowance for doubtful accounts represents our estimate of uncollectible accounts receivable
at the balance sheet date. We monitor our credit exposure on a regular basis and assess the adequacy of our allowance for doubtfut
accounts on a quarterly basis.

Assumptions and approach used. We estimate our required altowance for doubtful accounts using the following key
assumptions;

. Historical collections — Represented as the amount of historical uncotlectible accounts as a percent of total accounts
receivable.

. Specific credit exposure on certain accounts — Identified based on management’s review of the accounts receivable
portfolio and taking into account the financial condition of customers that management may deem to be higher risk of
collection.

Sensitivity Analysis. Previously, we did not consider an allowance for doubtful accounts necessary. However, with continued
monitoring we determined the need to establish an allowance due to our rapid growth. Even though we do not anticipate bad debt
losses based on our excellent customer payment history, we have established a reserve and will monitor it regularly.

Inventories

Nature of estimates required. In our second year of production, we have carried large quantities of component inventory in
order to meet our customers’ demands, This inventory consisted of electronic circuitry, boards and camera parts. Given the nature of
potential obsolescence in this ever-changing environment, there is a risk of impairment in inventory that is unsalable, non-refundable,
slow moving or obsolete. The nse of estimates is required in determining the salvage value of this inventory.

Assumptions and approach used. We estimate our inventory obsolescence reserve at each balance sheet date based on the
following assumptions;
. Slow moving products — [tems identified as slow moving are evaluated on a case by case basis for impairment.

. Obsolete/discontinued inventory — Products identified that are near or beyond their expiration, or new models are now
available. Should this occur, we estimate the market value of this inventory as if it were to be liquidated.

. Estimated salvage value/sales price — Salvage value is estimated using management’s evaluation of remaining value of

this inventory and the ability to liquidate this inventory. BEST A\f A“_ABLE COPY
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Sensitivity analysis. At this point in our products’ early life cycles, coupled with prudent levels of purchasing activity to
support the growing demands for our products, we have developed a methodology to determine slow moving or obsolete inventory.
We will continue to assess the condition of our inventory and take necessary measures to adjust these values as deemed appropriate.

Warranties

Nature of estimate required. In the second year of sales and as the volume of our sales continues to increase at a rapid pace,
we have established a warranty accrual for future warranty costs related to current sales. We monitor our watranty costs on a regular
basis and assess the adequacy of our warranty accrued on a quarterly basis.

Assumptions and approach used. We estimate our required accrual for warranty costs using the following key assumptions:

. Historical costs - Represented as the amount of historical warranty costs as a percent of sales.
. Specific exposure on certain products or customers - Identified by management’s review of warranty costs and customer
responses.

Sensitivity analysis. Previously, we did not conisider the need for a warranty accrual based upon actual warranty costs due to the
limited amount of sales. As sales volume has continuéd to grow at a rapid pace, there is a greater risk for increased warranty costs. We
will continue to assess the warranty accrual on a quarterly basis and take the necessary measures to adjust the accrual as deemed
appropriate.

Research and Development Costs |
Nature of estimates required. We expense all research and development costs as incurred. We incurred substantial costs
related to research and development as we prepared our products for market, and will continue to incur these costs as we develop new

products and enhance our existing products.

Assumptions and approach used. As we moved to production, many of these costs shifted to expenses related to the
production of this product (cost of sales), thus reducing our research and development expense. However, we continue to provide
support to the development of enhancements to our existing products, as well as to invest resources in the development of new
products.

Sensitivity analysis. We continually evaluate our efforts in new product development so that we properly classify costs to either
production of existing product or research and development costs related to bringing new and enhanced products to market.

Stock Based Compensation

Nature of estimates required. The estimates and assumptions pertaining to stock based compensation pertain to the Black-
Scholes valuation model, and are noted above under Critical Accounting Policies.

Assumption and approach used. For our stock option plans, the assumptions for term, volatility, interest rate and forfeitures
have all been addressed specifically to the particulars of each option plan in calculating the associated expense.

The expected term of each plan has been projected based on the estimated term (expected time to exercise said options) in
relation to the vesting period and expiration of the options. The expected volatility of award grants is properly measured using
historical stock prices over the expected term of the award. The risk-free interest rate used is in relation to the expected term of
awards. Finally, forfeitures are based on the history of cancellation of awards granted.

Sensitivity analysis. We will continually monitor costs related to stock based compensation, and adjust analyses for changes in
estimates and assumptions, such as: shifts in expecte(ll term caused by shifts in the exercising of options; expected volatility shifis
caused by changes in our historical stock prices; interest rate shifts in relation to expected term of awards; and, shnfts in forfeitures as
we experience potential cancellations of awards caused by loss of personnel holding such awards.

The common stock purchase warrants issued to investors in our 2006 private placement are not accounted for under SFAS
No. 150 “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity” because the warrant
agreements contain no provision for us to use any of our cash or other assets to settle the warrants. The stock warrants are not
considered derivatives under SFAS No. 133 “Accouriting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS No. 133) as the
warrant agreements meet the scope exception in paragraph 11.a. of SFAS No. 133 as the stock warrants are indexed to our common
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stock and are classified in stockholder’s equity under Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) 00-19 “Accounting Recognition for Certain
Transactions involving Equity Instruments Granted to Other Than Employees.” The stock warrants are included with the proceeds
from the issuance of common stock. Warrants issued to non-employees who are not investors purchasing common stock are accounted
for under SFAS No. 123. The fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes pricing model and that amount is recognized in the
statement of operations.

Income Taxes

Nature of estimates required. We have substantial net operating loss carryforwards and other deferred tax items for which
deferred tax assets are recognized for financial accounting and reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation
allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. Management must consider the likelihood that such deferred tax assets will be realized based on our current and projected
future operating results,

Assumptions and approach used. Historically, management has provided a 100% valuation allowance against all deferred tax
assets because of our history of operating losses and unproven marketability and profitability of our products. During 2006 we began
shipping products which has resulted in substantial revenue growth whereby we have generated significant taxable income in 2007.
Management has evaluated the likelihood of our ability to realize our deferred tax assets through principally the current and
anticipated generation of taxable income. Based on that evaluation, management has determined that the valuation allowance could be
substantially reduced as of December 31, 2007.

Sensitivity analysis. Management will continually monitor, evaluate and adjust our evaluation/analyses of the likelihood of our
ability to realize our deferred tax assets based upon projected future financial results. This evaluation may require changes in the
valuation allowance when and if conditions change that could affect our current and future operations.

Inflation and Seasonality

Inflation has not materially affected us during the past fiscal year. Our business is not seasonal in nature.
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ITEM7. Financial Statements.

The financial statements of the Company are included following the signature page to this Form 10-KSB commencing on page
F-1.

ITEMS8.  Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None,
ITEM BA(T). Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company, under the supervision and with the participation of its management, including the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's “disclosure controls
and procedures,” as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act, as of this annual report. Based upon that
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report to previde reasonable assurance that material information
required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms,

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act, during its fourth fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, its internal control over financial reporting.

This annual report does not include a report of management's assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting or
an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm due to a transition period established by rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission for newly public companies.

ITEM 8B. Other Information,

Not applicable.
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PART III

ITEM 9. Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters, and Control Persons and Corporate Governance; Compliance with
Section 16(A) of the Exchange Act.

The information concerning the identification and business experience of our directors and identification of our audit comumittee
financial expert is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth in our definitive proxy statement for the 2008 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders under the heading “ Election of Directors,” which proxy statement we expect to file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 (the “Proxy Statement”).

The information concerning the identification and business experience of our executive officers is incorporated herein by
reference to the information set forth in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the heading
“Executive Officers.”

The information concerning compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is incorporéted herein by reference to the
information set forth in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the heading “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management — Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.”

The information concerning significant employees and family relationships is incorporated herein by reference to the
information set forth in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the heading “Significant Employees
and Family Relationships.”

The information conceming the our code of ethics is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth in our Proxy
Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the heading “Code of Ethics.”

ITEM 10. Executive Compensation.

The information concerning executive compensation is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth in our
Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the heading “ Executive Compensation.”

The information concerning compensation of directors is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth in our
Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the heading “ Compensation of Directors.”

ITEM 11.  Security Ownership of Certain Benéficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information conceming security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated herein by
reference to the information set forth in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the heading
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.”

ITEM 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence.
The information concerning certain relationships and related party transactions and director independence is incorporated herein

by reference to the information set forth in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the heading
“Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions and Director Independence.”
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ITEM 13.  Exhibits,

Exhibit Filed
Number Description Incorporated by Reference to: Herewith
2.1 Plan of Merger among Vegas Petra, [nc., a Nevada corporation, and Exhibit 2.1 of the Company’s Form SB-2, filed
Digital Ally, Inc., a Nevada corporation, and its stockholders, dated October 16, 2006, No. 333-138025 (the “October
November 30, 2004. 2006 Form SB-2).
31 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Registrant, dated Exhibit 3.1 of the October 2006 Form $B-2.
December 13, 2004, :
3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of Registrant. Exhibit 3.2 of the October 2006 Form SB-2.
33 Audit Committee Charter, dated September 22, 2005. Exhibit 3.3 of the QOctober 2006 Form SB-2.
34  Compensation Committee Charter, dated September 22, 2005, Exhibit 3.4 of the October 2006 Form SB-2.
3.5 Nominating Commitiee Charter dated December 27, 2007. X
4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate. Exhibit 4.1 of the October 2006 Form SB-2.
42 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant, Exhibit 4.2 of the October 2006 Form SB-2.
10.1 2005 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan. Exhibit 10.1 of the October 2006 Form $B-2.
10.2 2006 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Pian. Exhibit 10.2 of the October 2006 Form SB-2.
10.3 Form of Stock Option Agreement (1SO and Non*Qualified) 2005 Stock  Exhibit 10.3 of the October 2006 Form SB-2.
Option Plan. ‘
104 Form of Stock Option Agreement (ISO and Non-Qualified) 2006 Stock  Exhibit 10.4 of the October 2006 Form SB-2.
Option Plan.
10.5 Promissory Note Extension between Registrant and Acme Resources, Exhibit 10.5 of the October 2006 Form SB-2.
LLC, dated May 4, 2006, in the principal amount of $500,000.
10.6 Promissory Note between Registrant and Acme Resources, LLC, dated  Exhibit 10.6 of the Company’s Amendment No. 1
September 1, 2004, in the principal amount of $500,000. to Form 8B-2, filed January 31, 2007, No. 333-
138025 (“Amendment No. | to Form SB-2")
10.7 Promissory Note Extension between Registrant and Acme Resources, Exhibit 10.7 of Amendment No. 1 to Form $B-2,
LLC, dated October 31, 2006.
10.8 Sofiware License Agreement with Ingenient Technologies, Inc., dated Exhibit 10.8 of Amendment No. 1 to Form SB-2,
March 15, 2004.*
10,9 Software License Agreement with Ingenient Technologies, Inc., dated Exhibit 10.9 of Amendment No. | to Form $B-2.
April 5, 2005.*
10.10  Stock Option Agreement with Daniels & Kaplan, P.C., dated Exhibit 10.10 of Amendment No. 1 to Form SB-2.
September 25, 2006.
10.11  Memorandum of Understanding with Tri Square Communications Exhibit 10.11 of Amendment No. 1 to Form SB-2.
(Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. dated November 29, 2005.
10.12 2007 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan. Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Form S-8, filed
October 23, 2007, No. 333-146874,
10.13  Form of Stock Option Agreement (Non-Qualified) 2007 Stock Option X
Plan.
10.14  Amendment to 2007 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan, X
10.15 2008 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan. X
10.16  Form of Stock Option Agreement {ISQ and Non-Qualified) 2008 Stock X
Option Plan,
10.17  Promissory Note with Enterprise Bank dated February 13, 2008. X
14.1 Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct. X
23.1 Consent of McGladrey & Pullen LLP X
24.1 Power of Attorney. X
31.1 Certificate of Stanton E. Ross, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to X
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. .
31.2 Certificate of Thomas J. Heckman, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to X
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
32.1 Certificate of Stanton E. Ross, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to X
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
322 Certificate of Thomas J. Heckman, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to X

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* Information marked [*] has been omitted pursuant to 2 Confidential Treatment Request filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Omitted material for which confidential treatment has been granted has been filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information coveting principal accountant fees and services required by this item is incorporated by reference to the

information in our Proxy Statement under the heading “Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm.”

The information concerning pre-approval policies for audit and non-audit services required by this item is incorporated by
reference to the information in our Proxy Statement, under the heading “Audit Committee.”
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

DIGITAL ALLY, INC,,
a Nevada corporation

By: /s/ Stanton E. Ross

Stanton E. Ross
President and Chief Executive Officer

Each person whose signature appears below authorizes Stanton E, Ross to execute in the name of each such person who is then
an officer or director of the registrant, and to file, any amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB necessary or advisable to
enable the registrant to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and any rules, regulations and requirements of the Securities
and Exchange Commission in respect thereof, which amendments may make such changes in such Report as such attorney-in-fact
may deem appropriate.

In accordance with the Exchange Act this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and
in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature and Title Date

/s!/ Stanton E. Ross* March 4, 2008
Stanton E. Ross, Director and Chief Executive

Officer

Is/ Leroy C. Richie* March 4, 2008

Leroy C. Richie, Director

/s/ Edward Juchniewicz* March 4, 2008
Edward Juchniewicz, Director

/s/ Elliot M. Kaplan* March 4, 2008
Elliot M. Kaplan, Director

/s/ Daniel F. Hutchins* March 4, 2008
Daniet F, Hutchins, Director

/s/ Thomas J. Heckman March 4, 2008

Thomas J. Heckman, Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary, Treasurer and Principal Accounting
Officer |

* Executed by Thomas J. Heckman, attorney-in-fact, oh March 4, 2008.
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McGladrey &Pullen
Certified Public Accountants

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors
Digital Ally, Inc,

We have audited the balance sheets of Digital Ally, Inc. as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related statements of operations
and stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, ¢vidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Digital Ally,
Inc. as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/?c%//mf&.,_/ e~

March 3, 2008
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DIGITAL ALLY, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

2007 2006
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4255039 % 57,160
Accounts receivable-trade, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $28,224 -2007 and 50 -

2006 523,011 977,826
Accounts receivable-other 211,687 225,716
Inventories 2,964,098 1,526,222
Prepaid expenses 232,901 422,279
Deferred taxes 795,000 _

Total current assets 8,981,736 3,209,203
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,180,318 622,592
Less accumulated depreciation 301,632 114,851
878,686 507,741
Deferred taxes 980,000 —
Other assets 65,007 59,305
Total assets $ 10905429 $§ 3,776,249
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Note payable 3 — § 500,000
Line of credit —_ 500,000
Accounts payable 1,008,831 651,902
Accrued expenses 507,693 180,573
Income taxes payable 26,000 —_
Customer deposits 243,171 20,899
Total current liabilities 1,785,697 1,853,374
Unearned income 3,864 5,248
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 75,000,000 shares authorized; Shares issued and

outstanding: 14,092,260 — 2007; 13,309,027 — 2006 ) 14,002 13,309
Additional paid in capital 12,110,890 0,436,766
Accumulated deficit ‘ (3,009,114} (7,532,448)

Total stockholders’ equity 9,115,868 1,917,627
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 10905429 $§ 3,776,249

See Notes to Financial Statements.




Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Financial income (expense):
Interest income

Interest expense
Other, net

DIGITAL ALLY, INC,
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

Income (loss) before income tax (provision) benefit

Income tax (provision) benefit
Net income (loss)

Net income (loss) per share information:
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

Sc_e Notes to Financial Statements.
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Years Ended
December 31, December 31,
2007 2006
$ 19391082 $ 4,109,394
7,649,930 2,126,744
11,741,152 1,982,650
8,875,915 5,324,223
2,865,237 (3,341,573
34,609 20,742
(28,006) (40,398)
(11,506) —
(4,903) (19,656)
2,860,334 (3,361,229)
1,663,000 —

$ 4523334 §  (3,361,229)

$ 033 $ (0.26)
$ 028 § (0.26)
13,742,070 12,829,610
16,163,337 12,829,610




Balance, January 1, 2006

Stock-based compensation

Shares issued for cash at $1.75 per share, net of
offenng costs

Stock options exercised at $1.00 per share

Shares issued for consulting services at $1.00 per
share in lieu of cash compensation

Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2006

Stock-based compensation

Excess tax benefits related to stock-based
compensation

Stock options exercised at $1.20 per share

Stock options exercised at $2.50 per share

Stock options exercised at $2.15 per share

Stock options exercised at $1.60 per share

Stock warrants exercised at $2.75 per share

Stock warrants exercised at $1.20 per share

Shares issued for consulting services at $1.75 per
share in lieu of cash compensation

Shares issued for conversion of note payable to stock,
at $1.00 per share

Net income

Balance, December 31, 2007

See Notes to Financial Statements.

DIGITAL ALLY, INC.
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

Common Stock Additional
Paid In Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Total
12,200,027 $ 12200 $§ 5845410 $ (4,171,219 $ 1,686,391
— 1,725,998 — 1,725,998
959,000 959 1,600,508 — 1,601,467
50,000 50 49,950 — 50,000
100,000 100 214,900 — 215,000
— — — (3,361,229) (3,361,229)
13,309,027 13,309 9,436,766 (7,532,448) 1,917,627
— 1,696,959 — 1,696,959
— —_ 12,000 — 12,000
75,000 75 89,925 — 90,000
25,000 25 62,475 —_ 62,500
2,500 2 5,373 —_ 5,375
4,233 4 6,769 — 6,773
40,000 40 109,960 — 110,000
86,500 87 103,713 — 103,800
50,000 50 87,450 — 87,500
500,000 500 499,500 — 500,000
— —_ — 4,523,334 4,523,334
14,092,260 $ 14,092 § 12,110,890 $ (3,009,114) $ 9,115868
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DIGITAL ALLY, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash flows provided by (used in) operating
activities:

Depreciation
Stock based compensation
Common stock issued in lieu of cash compensation
Reserve for inventory obsolescence
Reserve for bad debt allowance
Deferred tax benefit

Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable - trade
Accounts receivable - other
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Other assets

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Customer deposits
Unearned income

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of furniture, fixtures and equipment

Net cash (used in) investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net borrowings (repayments) on line of credit
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants
Excess tax benefits related to stock-based compensation
Proceeds from sale of common stock

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash payments for interest
Cash payments for income taxes

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Common stock issued for settlement of note payable

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Years Ended

December 31,
2007

December 31,

2006

$ 4523334 § (3,361,229)

192,033 85,057
1,696,959 1,725,998
87,500 215,000
196,328 —
28,224 —
(1,775,000) —
426,591 (977,826)
14,029 (211,086)
(1,634204)  (1,452,794)
189,378 (162,450)
(5,702) (45,520)
356,929 607,725
327,122 140,321
26,000 —
222,272 11,854
(1,384) 5,284
4870,409  (3,419,666)
(562,978) (482,563)
(562,978) (482,563)
(500,000) 500,000
378,448 50,000
12,000 —

— 1,601,467
(109,552) 2,151,467
4,197,879  (1,750,762)
57,160 1,807,922

$ 4255039 S 57,160
$ 28,006 $ 40,398
$ 74,000 $ —
$ 500,000 $ —




Digital Ally, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Business:

Digital Ally, Inc. produces digital video imaging, audio recording and related storage products for use in law enforcement and
security applications. Our current products are an in-car digital video/audio recorder contained in a rear-view mirror and a digital
video/audio recorder contained in a flashlight. The Company has the ability to integrate electronic, radio, computer, mechanical, and
multi-media technologies to create unique solutions to customers’ requests in a variety of other industries and markets including mass
transit, school bus, taxi cab and the military.

The Company was originally incorporated in Nevada on December 13, 2000 as Vegas Petra, Inc and had no operations until
2004. On November 30, 2004 the Company entered into a Plan of Merger with Digital Ally, Inc. at which time the merged entity was
renamed Digital Ally, Inc. Since inception through early 2006, the Company was considered a development stage company, with its
activities focused on organizational activities, including design and development of product lines, implementing a business plan,
establishing sales channels, and development of business strategies. In late March 2006, the Company shipped its first completed
product, and became an operating company for financial accounting and reporting purposes.

The following is a summary of the Company’s Significant Accounting Policies:
Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The carrying amounts of financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, note
payable, and line of credit approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of these items.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenues from the sale of products are recorded when the product is shipped, title and risk of loss have transferred to the
purchaser, payment terms are fixed or determinable and payment is reasonably assured.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include funds on hand, in bank and short-term investments with original maturities of 90 days or less.
Included in the Company’s cash balances are deposits with our bank of approximately $4,255,000, which is in excess of the FDIC
insurance coverage limit as of December 31, 2007. The Company believes risk of loss on the uninsured deposits is limited.

Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful receivables based on a review of
all outstanding amounts on a weekly basis. The Company determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by regularly evaluating
individual customer receivables and considering a customer’s financial condition, credit history, and current economic conditions.
Trade receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of trade receivables previously written off are recorded when
received.

A trade receivable is considered to be past due if any portion of the receivable balance is outstanding for more than thirty
(30) days beyond terms. No interest is charged on overdue trade receivables.
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Inventories:

Inventories consist of electronic parts, circuitry boards, camera parts and anciliary parts {collectively “components™), work-in-
process and finished goods, and are carried at the lower of cost (First in, First out Method) or market value. The Company determines
the estimate for the reserve for slow moving or obsolete inventories by regularly evaluating individual inventory levels, projected sales
and current economic conditions.

Prepaid Expenses:

Prepaid expenses consist of deposits for trade shows, production tooling and component inventory. These amounts will be
expensed when the goods/services are received or the events occur. In addition, prepaid expenses include advance payments for
service contracts, equipment maintenance, software maintenance, software usage, licenses/sublicenses and insurance that is amortized
to expense over the relevant service period under the straight line method or based on units shipped, as applicable.

Furniture, fixtures and equipment:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment is stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation. Additions and improvements are capitalized
while ordinary maintenance and repair expenditures are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation is recorded by the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life of the asset, which ranges from 3 to 10 years.

Leng-Lived Assets:

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying value of long-lived assets to the
estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets and their eventual disposition. As of
December 31, 2007, there has been no impairment in the carrying value of long-lived assets.

Warranties:

The Company’s products carry explicit product warranties that extend two years. The Company records a provision for
estimated warranty costs based upon historical warranty oss experience and periodically adjusts these provisions to reflect actual
experience, Accrued warranty costs are included in accrued expenses,

Customer deposits;

The Company requires deposits in advance of shipment for certain customer sales orders; in particular when accepting orders
from foreign customers. Customer deposits are reflected as a current liability in the accompanying balance sheet.

Shipping and Handling Costs:

Shipping and handling costs for cutbound sales orders totaled $74,670 and $54,205 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. Such costs are included in cost of sales in the Statements of Operations.

Advertising Costs:

Advertising expense includes costs related to trade shows and conventions, promotional material and supplies and media costs.
Advertising costs are expensed in the year in which they are incurred. The Company incurred total advertising expense of
approximately $478,242 and $272,096 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Such costs are included in
operating expenses in the Statements of Operations.

Income Taxes:

Deferred taxes are provided for by the liability method wherein deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary
differences and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some
portion or alt of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in
tax laws and rates on the date of enactment.




On July 13, 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, and Related
Implementation Issues” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company’s
financial statements in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”
(“SFAS No. 109”). FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for a tax position taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim
periods, disclosure, and transition. The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. As a result of the
implementation of FIN 48, the Company had no changes in the carrying value of its tax assets or liabilities for any unrecognized tax
benefits.

The Company’s policy is to record estimated interest and penaities related to the underpayment of income taxes as income tax
expense in the statements of operations. There has been no interest or penaltics recognized in the accompanying financial statements.

Research and Development Expenses:

The Company expenses all research and development costs as incurred. Research and development expense incurred for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, was approximately $1,518,914 and $1,203,889, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation:

Prior to January 1, 2006 the Company accounted for its stock-based compensation plans under the recognition and measurement
provisions of APB Opinion No. 25 “Accounting for Stock Options™ and related interpretative guidance (“APB 257). APB 25 generally
did not require the recognition of stock-based compensation when options granted under stock-based compensation plans had exercise
prices at least equal to or greater than the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”), using the modified prospective transition method.
Under this transition method, stock-based compensation expense for 2006 and 2007 includes; (a) compensation expense for all stock-
based compensation awards granted prior to January 1, 2006, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the original provisions
of SFAS No. 123, and (b) stock based compensation expense for alt stock-based compensation granted after January 1, 2006 based on
the grant-date fair value calculated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R. The Company recognizes these
compensation costs on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award.

The Company estimates the grant-date fair value of stock-based compensation using the Black-Scholes valuation model.
Assumptions used to estimate compensation expense are determined as follows:

. Expected term is determined using the contractual term and vesting period of the award;

. Expected volatility of award grants made in the Company’s plan is measured using the weighted average of historical
daily changes in the market price of the Company’s common stock over the expected term of the award;

. Expected dividend rate is determined based on expected dividends to be declared;

. Risk-free interest rate is equivalent to the implied yield on zero-coupon U.S. Treasury bonds with a maturity equal to the
expected term of the awards; and

. Forfeitures arc based on the history of cancellations of awards granted and management’s analysis of potential forfeitures.

The stock warrants issued to investors in 2006 are not accounted for under SFAS No. 150 “Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity” as the warrant agreements contain no provision for the Company to
use any of its cash or other assets to settle the warrants. The stock warrants are not considered derivatives under SFAS No. 133
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS No. 133) as the warrant agreements meet the scope exception
in paragraph 11.a. of SFAS No. 133 as the stock warrants are indexed to the Company’s common stock and are classified in
stockholder’s equity under Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) 00-19 “Accounting Recognition for Certain Transactions involving

Equity Instruments Granted to Other Than Employees.”

Income (Loss) per share:

The Company accounts for income (loss) per share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share.” Basic income per
share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the periods
presented. Difuted income per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if outstanding stock options and warrants were
exercised utilizing the treasury stock method.

F-9




Segments of business:

Management has determined that its operations are comprised of one reportable segment; the sale of portable digital video and
audio recording devices. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, sales by geographic area were as follows:

2007 2006
Sales by geographic area:
United States of America $ 13,640,040 $ 4,013,327
Foreign 5,751,042 96,067
Total $ 19,391,082 $§ 4,109,394

Sales to customers outside of the United States are denominated in US dollars. All Company assets are physically located within
the United States.

Reclassifications:

Management has reviewed the classification of expenses as cost of sales or operating expenses as reported in the statement of
operations. As a result of this review, certain direct and indirect manufacturing- related expenses aggregating $332,311, previously
reported as operating expenses on the statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006, have been reclassified to cost of
sales to be consistent with their classification adopted for the year ended December 31, 2007. There was no effect on net income (loss)
or income (loss) per share as a result of such expense reclassifications.

NOTE 2. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK AND MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of accounts receivable. Sales
are typically made on credit and the Company generally does not require collateral. The Company performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and maintains an allowance for estimated losses. Uncollectible accounts are written
off when deemed uncollectible and accounts receivable are presented net of an altowance for doubtful accounts. The allowance for
doubtful accounts totaled $28,224 and $ -0- as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Company sells primarily through a network of unaffiliated distributors/sales agents. In 2007, one distributor/agent
represented 27.4% of total sales for 2007. No other distributor/agent exceeded 10% in 2007 and no distributor/agent exceeded 10% in
2006, In addition, no individual customer receivable balance exceeded 10% of total accounts receivable as of December 31, 2007 and
2006.

The Company currently purchases finished circuit boards and other proprictary component parts from suppliers located in the
United States. Although the Company currently obtains certain of these components from single source suppliers, management
believes it could obtain alternate suppliers in most cases without incurring significant production delays. The Company also purchases
a proprietary audio component from a foreign vendor that could be more difficult to obtain alternate sources should there be a supply
interruption. The Company has not experienced any significant supply disruptions from this foreign vender historically, and does not
anticipate future supply disruptions. The Company acquires most of its components on a purchase order basis and does not have long-
term contracts with suppliers.

NOTE 3. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following at December 31, 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006
Raw material and component parts $ 2919979 3§ 1,348,690
Work-in-process 25,762 —
Finished goods 214,685 177,532
Reserve for excess and obsolete inventory (196,328) —
Total 3 2964098 $ 1,526,222

Finished goods inventory includes units held by potential customers for test and evaluation purposes. Test and evaluation units
totaled $147,596 and 350,063 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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NOTE 4. FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture, fixtures and equipment consists of the following at December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Office furniture, fixtures and equipment
Warehouse equipment

Tradeshow equipment

Rental equipment

Total cost
Less: accumulated depreciation

Net furniture, fixtures and equipment

NOTE 5. PLEDGED ASSETS AND BANK LINE OF CREDIT

Estimated

Useful Life 2007 2006
3-10years $ 590,333 § 173,446
3-5 years 496,361 381,830
3-5 years 88,674 62,366
3 years 4,950 4,950
1,180,318 622,592
301,632 114,851
$ 878,686 % 507,741

The Company has a line of credit facility with a bank that provides for borrowings on a revelving basis of up to $1,500,000. The
line of credit is secured by eligible trade receivables, inventory and equipment and bears variable interest at the bank’s prime rate
(7.25% at December 31, 2007), adjusted daily. The line of credit matures in August 14, 2008. As of December 31, 2007, there were no
amounts outstanding and outstanding borrowings totaled $500,000 at December 31, 2006.

On February 8, 2008, the Company changed its banking relationship including its depository accounts and its revolving line of
credit. The new line of credit facility provides for borrowing of up to $1,500,000 on a revolving basis, and is collateralized by
accounts receivable, inventory and equipment. The line of credit bears interest at the bank’s prime rate minus 0.5% and has a term of

one year.
NOTE 6. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following at December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Accrued warranty expense
Accrued sales commissions
Other

Total

Accrued warranty expense was comprised of the following for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Beginning balance
Provision for warranty expense
Charges applied to warranty reserve

Ending balance
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2007 2006
213,428 $ —
145,858 118,395
148,409 61,878
507,695 $ 180,573
2007 2006

$ — —
359,892 39,750
(146,464) (39,750)

$ 213428 $ —




NOTE 7. INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax (provision) benefit are as follows:

2007 2006
Current taxes: .
Federal ($112,000) § —
State — —
Total current taxes (112,000) —
Deferred tax provision (benefit) 1,775,000 —
Income tax {provision) benefit $ 1,663,000 § —

The Company received total proceeds of $378,448 and $50,000 during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively from the exercise of stock purchase options and warrants. During 2007, the Company realized an aggregate tax deduction
approximating $154,135 relative to the exercise of such stock options and warrants. Excess tax benefits totaled $12,000, which has
been allocated directly to additional paid in capital during the year ended December 31, 2007.

A reconciliation of the income tax provision (benefit) at the statutory rate of 34% for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006 to our effective tax rate is as follows:

2007 2006
U.S. Statutory tax rate 34.0% (34.0%)
State taxes, net of Federal benefit 4.0% (4.0%)
Research and development tax credits (2.4%) (1.8%)
Incentive stock option compensation 2.6% 10.9%
Other, net (1.0%) — %
Change in valuation allowance (95.3%) 28.9%
Income tax provision (benefit) (58.1%) — %

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets (liabilities) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:
Stock-based compensation 3 952,000 $ 445,000
Start-up costs 165,000 165,000
Inventory reserves 91,000 13,000
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable 10,000 —
Accrued expenses 105,000 44,000
Net operating loss carryforward 247,000 2,028,000
Research and development tax credit carryforward 281,000 175,000
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward 100,000 —
Other 5,000 28,000
Total defetred tax assets 1,956,000 2,898,000
Valuation allowance (165,000) (2,890,000)
Net deferred tax assets 1,791,000 8,000
Deferred tax liabilities: :
Equipment depreciation ' (16,000) (8,000)
Net deferred tax assets (liability) $ 1,775,000 $ —
Net deferred tax asset (liability) reported as:
Current 3 795,000 $ —
Non-current ' $ 980,000 3 —

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2007 was reduced to $165,000 from $2,890,000 as of
December 31, 2006 because, in management’s opinion, the Company’s current and projected taxable income make it more likely than
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not that substantially all of deferred tax assets will be realized. The net change in the total valuation allowance for the year ended
December 31, 2007 was a net decrease of $2,725,000, which was recognized in the deferred tax provision (benefit).

At December 31, 2007, the Company had available approximately $667,000 of net operating loss carryforwards available to
offset future taxable income generated by the Company. Such tax net operating loss carryforwards expire between 2024 and 2025. In
addition, the Company has research and development tax credit carryforwards totaling $281,000 available as of December 31, 2007
which expire between 2023 and 2027. Management will continue to evaluate the likelihood of realizing the benefits of the net deferred
tax assets (including the net operating tax loss and research and development credit carryforwards), and will adjust the valuation
allowance accordingly.

The Internal Revenue Code contains provisions under Section 382 which limit the Company's ability to utilize net operating loss
carry-forwards in the event that the Company has experienced a more than 50% change in ownership over a 3-year period. Current
estimates prepared by the Company indicate that due to ownership changes which have occurred, all of our net operating loss and
research and development tax credit carryforwards are currently subject to an annual limitation of approximately $1,151,000, but may
be further limited by additional ownership changes which may occur in the future. As stated above, the net operating loss and research
and development credit carryforwards expire between 2023 and 2027, allowing the Company to utilize all of the limited net operating
loss carry-forwards during the carryforward period.

The Company’s federal and state income tax returns are closed by relevant statute for all tax years prior to 2004
NOTE 8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has several non-cancelable operating lease agreements for equipment, office space and warehouse space. The
agreements expire from October 2008 to October 2012. The Company also has entered into month-to-month leases. Rent expense for

the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $183,306 and $87,900, respectively, related to these leases. The future minimum
amounts due under the leases are as follows:

Year ending December 31:

2008 b 320,454
2009 266,949
2010 180,865
2on 169,086
2012 126,815

$ 1,064,169

The Company has two license agreements whereby we have been assigned the rights to certain licensed materials used in our
products. Upfront license payments of $75,000 in March 2004 and $75,000 in May 2005 were made and expensed immediately. The
terms of the agreements were for three years from the date of the agreement, with automatic one year extensions thereafter, unless
both parties agree otherwise in writing prior to the expiration dates of said agreements. The first license was automatically renewed in
March 2007 under the applicable terms of the agreemént. These agreements require the Company to pay ongoing royalties based on
the number of products shipped containing the licensed material on a quarterly basis. We prepaid $42,500 relative to these ongoing
royalty fees during April 2006 which was capitalized and included in prepaid expenses. We amortize the prepaid royalties based on
the number of units shipped during the period. Amortization aggregated $21,739 and $4,407 during the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively which is included in cost of sales in the accompanying statement of operations.

The Company has entered into a sublicense agreement whereby we have been assigned the rights to certain licensed materials
used in our products. The effective date of the sublicense was October 12, 2007 with an original term of 36 months or October 2010,
with automatic one-year renewals unless either party notifies the other in writing not less than 60 days prior to ¢xpiration. We paid an
upfront license fee of $60,000 during January 2008 which will be capitalized and amortized over the term of the agreement. The
sublicense also requires an ongoing royalty fee based on the number of units shipped on a quarterly basis. Shipments of product
containing the licensed material is expected to commence in midyear 2008. Accordingly, there was no royalties paid during the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

NOTE 9. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company recorded pretax compensation expense related to the grant of stock options and warrants issued of $1,696,959 and
$1,725,998 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2007, the Company has adopted three separate stock-based option plans: (1) the 2005 Stock Option and
Restricted Stock Plan (the “2005 Plan”), (2) the 2006 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan (the “2006 Plan”), and (3) the 2007
Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan (the “2007 Plan™). These Plans permit the grant of share options to its employees, non-
employee directors and others for up to an aggregate total of 5,500,000 shares of common stock. The Company believes that such
awards better align the interests of its employees with those of its shareholders, Option awards are generally granted with an exercise
price equal to the market price of the Company’s stock at the date of grant; those option awards generally vest based on the
completion of continuous service and have 10-year contractual terms. These option awards provide for accelerated vesting if there is a

change in control (as defined in the Plans).

In October 2007, the Company filed a Registration Statement on Form S-8 which registered all 5,500,000 shares of common
stock that are issuable under our 2005 Pian, 2006 Plan and 2007 Plan in effect at that time.

In addition to the Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plans described above the Company has issued an aggregate of 410,000
stock aptions to non-employees for services rendered that are subject to the same general terms.

The fair value of ¢ach option award is estimated on the date of grant using a Black Sholes option valuation model. The
assumptions used for the determining the grant-date fair value of options during each year is reflected in the following table:

Expected term of the options in years

Expected volatility of market price of company stock
Expected dividends

Risk-free interest rate

Expected forfeiture rate

A summary of the options outstanding follows:

Years ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
3 years 3 years 3-10 years
42.17%-61.49% 49.58% - 66.11% 39.41%
None None None
4.07% - 4.92% 457%-4.66% 2.78% - 4.19%
0.0% - 5.0% 0% 0%

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2007

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2006

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Options Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 4225000 % 1.46 2,700,600 % 1.09
Granted 1,628,600 2.06 1,575,000 2.17
Exercised (106,733) 1.54 (50,000) (1.00)
Cancelled (10,000) {2.15) — —
Forfeited {(8,100) (2.11) — —
QOutstanding at end of year 5,728,767 % 1.63 4225000 §$ 1.46
Exercisable at end of the year _ 4,741,068 $ 1.55 2,575,000 % 1.43
Weighted-average fair value for options granted during the year at fair
value : 1,628,600 $ 0.81 1,575,000 $ 0.82

At December 31, 2007, the aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding was approximately $32,493,047, the aggregate

intrinsic value of options exercisable was approximately $27,249,256, and the aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during the {

period was $325,790.

As of December 31, 2007, the unamertized portion of stock compensation expense on all existing stock options was $371,820

and will be recognized over the next twenty-one months.

The following table summarizes the range of exercise prices and weighted average remaining contractual life for outstanding

and exercisable options under the Company’s option plans:




Outstanding options Exercisable options

Weighted average
remaining

Weighted average
remaining

Exercise price range Number contractual life Number contractual life
$1.00t0 $1.99 3,830,267 8.2 years 2,995,693 7.9 years
$2.00 to $2.99 1,615,000 3.7 years 1,615,000 3.7 years
$3.00t0 $3.99 _ — — —
$4.060 to $4.99 283,500 9.8 years 130,375 9.8 years
5,728,767 7.0 years 4,741,068 6.3 years

As part of raising additional equity in 2005 and 2006, the Company agreed to provide further compensation to the placement
agents in the form of warrants (the “Broker Warrants™) and to the investors in conjunction with their purchase of stock.

The following provides additional information related to the warrants issued:

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Warrants Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 709,750 § 1.72 470,000 $ 1.20
Granted — — 239,750 2.75
Exercised (126,500) 1.69 — —
Forfeited — — _ _
Qutstanding at end of the period 583,250 $ 1.73 709,750 $ 1.72
Exercisable at end of the period 583,250 $ 1.73 709,750 1.72
Weighted average fair value of warrant grants during the period — — 239,750 0.65
A further summary about warrants outstanding at December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Outstanding warrants

Exercisable warrants

Weighted average Weighted average
remaining remaining
xercise Prices Number contractual life Number contractual life
1.20 383,500 2.6 years 383,500 2.6 years
2.75 199,750 0.5 years 199,750 0.5 years
583,250 1.4 years 583,250 1.4 years
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At December 31, 2007, the aggregate intrinsic value of the warrants outstanding was approximately $3,248,213.

All shares of common stock issuable under these warrants were registered in conjunction with the Registration Statement on
orm SB-2 which was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 3, 2007.




NOTE 10. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the weighted average number of shares outstanding and earnings per share outstanding and income per share
for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

2007 2006
Numerator for basic and diluted income per share — Net income (loss) $ 4,523,334 §  (3,361,229)
Denominator for basic income per share — weighted average shares outstanding 13,742,070 12,829,610
Dilutive effect of shares issuable under stock options and warrants outstanding 2,421,267 —_
Denominator for diluted income per share - adjusted weighted average shares
outstanding 16,163,337 12,829,610

Net income (loss) per share:

Basic $ 033 % (0.26)

Diluted 5 028 §$ (0.26)

Basic income (loss) per share is based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year. For
the year ended December 31, 2007, weighted-average outstanding stock options and warrants totaling 59,359 shares of common stock
were antidilutive and, therefore, not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share for 2007. Asa result of the net loss for
the year ended December 31, 2006, we did not assume conversion of the convertible debt or exercise of any share-based options as the
effect would be anti-dilutive.

NOTE 11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On September 1, 2004, the Company borrowed $500,000 from a Company controlled by one of the Company’s shareholders.
Such shareholder is not currently, nor has he ever been, an employee, officer or director of the Company. The note carried interest at
7%, was due on May 15, 2007 and was convertible into 500,000 shares of common stock at the option of the holder. The note was
guaranteed by one of the Company’s previous officers and directors who also pledged Company stock he owned as collateral. On
May 15, 2007, the note holder exercised their option to convert the note into 500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. Interest
expense related to this note totaled $14,168 and $35,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

On September 25, 2006, the Company granted options to purchase 10,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to a law firm
for services rendered. The options had a term of five years and are exercisable at $2.15 per share. One of the Company’s outside
directors is also a partner in such law firm. During 2007, the law firm was dissolved and the options were returned to the Company for

cancellation.

The Company sells primarily through a network of unaffiliated distributors/sales agents. An entity that serves as an independent
sales agent is owned by the spouse of one of the Company’s executive officers. The Company paid commissions on sales generated by
this sales agent aggregating $251,982 and $84,800 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. As of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively the Company had $5,107 and $11,590 representing accrued and unpaid commissions due
to this entity. Subsequent to December 31, 2007, this entity was dissolved and will no longer serve as an independent sales agent for

the Company.
NOTE 12. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS No. 157 clarifies
the principle that fair value should be based on the assumptions market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability and
establishes a fair value hicrarchy that prioritizes the information used to develop those assumptions. Under the standard, fair value
measurements would be separately disclosed by level within the fair value hierarchy. SFAS No. 157 is effective for the Company’s
fiscal year beginning January 1, 2008, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this
standard.




In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities -
Including an amendment of SFAS No. 115 (“SFAS No. 159”), which provides all entities, including not-for-profit organizations, with
an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value. The objective of SFAS No. 159 is to improve financial
reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
differently without having to apply the complex provisions of hedge accounting. Certain specified items are eligible for the
irrevocable fair value measurement option as established by SFAS No. 159. SFAS No. 159 is effective as of the beginning of the
Company’s vear beginning after Jamuary 1, 2008. The Company is currently assessing the impact of SFAS No. 159 on its financial
position, results of operations and cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements-an
amendment of ARB No. 517 (“FAS No. 160”). FAS No. 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling
interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary is an
ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements. FAS No. 160 is
effective for the Company in its fiscal year beginning January 1, 2010. The Company does not believe this statement will have a
material impact on its financial position and results of operations upon adoption.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141 R “Business Combinations” (“FAS No. 141R”). FAS No. 141R establishes
principles and requirements for how the acquirer of a business recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable
assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree, FAS No. 141R also provides guidance for
recognizing and measuring the goodwill acquired in the business combination and determines what information to disclose to enable
users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. FAS No. 141R is effective
for the Company’s fiscal year beginning January 1, 2010. The Company does not believe this statement will have a material impact on
its financial position and results of operations upon adoption,

NOTE 13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 2, 2008, the Company’s common stock was listed and commenced trading on the NASDAQ Capital Market under
he symbol “DGLY™.

On January 2, 2008, the Board of Directors approved the 2008 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan (the “2008 Plan”) which
served 1,000,000 shares to be granted under such plan. In addition, the Board of Directors approved the grant of options to purchase
(00,000 shares to executive officers and directors at an exercise price of $6.80 per share subject to a four-year vesting period. The
008 Plan and the related grant are subject 1o ratification by the shareholders at the upcoming 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

During the period from January 1, 2008 through March 3, 2008, the Company issued a total of 435,425 shares pursuant to the

xercise of outstanding stock purchase options and warrants. The Company received proceeds aggregating $625,730 as a result of the
xercise of these options and warrants.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
Stanton E. Ross
Chairman of the Board, CEQ & President

Mr. Ross has served as Chairman,
CEQ & President since September 2005.

Leroy C. Richie
Lead Outside Director

Former VP and General Counsel
for Chrysler Corporation and
former director of the Federal
Tratle Commission

Edward Juchniewicz
Chairman of Nominating Committee

Former Associate Deputy Director of the
Central Intelligence Agency

Daniel F. Hutchins
Chairman of Audit Committee

Founder and principal of a
pubilic accounting firm

Elliot M. Kaplan
Chairman of Compensation Committee

Attorney, legal corporate strategist in
non-traditional conflict resolution

CORPORATE OFFICERS:

Stanton E. Ross
Chairman, CEO & President

Robert Haler
Executive VP of Engineering & Production

Kenneth McCoy
VP of Sales & Marketing

Thomas Heckman
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer & Secretary

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM:

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
4801 Main Street, Suite 400
Kansas City, Missouri 64112

INVESTOR RELATIONS

RJ Falkner & Company, Inc.
(800) 3779893

ADVISORY BOARD
OF DIRECTORS:
John Ashcroft

Former US Attorney General
Former US Senator for Missouri
Former Governor of Missouri

Dr. Neil Livingstone
Founder & CEQ of Executive Action, LLC

Colonel David Halevy

Former Commander with the Israeli
Defense Forces

Ms. Annie Presley
Principal of McKellar Group, Inc.

Robert A. Stein
Strategist with Teleplus Consulting

CORPORATE
HEADQUARTERS:

7311 West 130th Street, Suite 170
Overland Park, Kansas 66213
Telephone: 913.814.7774

Fax: 913.814.7775

PRINCIPAL STOCK
EXCHANGE:

NASDAQ CAPITAL MARKET
Trading Symbol -DGLY-

COUNSEL:

Quaries & Brady, LLP

One Renaissance Square
Two North Central Avenue
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT:

First American Stock Transfer, Inc.
706 E Bell Road Suite 202
Phoenix, AZ 85022
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